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PART

ITEM Business

Provident New York Bancorp

Provident New York Bancorp Provident Bancorp or the Company is Delaware corporation that owns all of

the outstanding shares of common stock of Provident Bank the Bank At September 30 2010 Provident

Bancorp had on consolidated basis assets of $3.0 billion deposits of $2.1 billion and stockholders equity of

$431.0 million As of September 30 2010 Provident Bancorp had 38262288 shares of common stock outstanding

Provident Bank

Provident Bank an independent full-service community bank founded in 1888 is headquartered in Montebello

New York and is the principal bank subsidiary of Provident Bancorp With $3.0 billion in assets and 554 full-time

equivalent employees Provident Bank accounts for substantially all of Provident Bancorps consolidated assets and

net income We operate 35 branches which serve the Hudson Valley region including 34 branches located in

Rockland Orange Sullivan Ulster Westchester and Putnam Counties in New York and one branch in Bergen

County New Jersey which operates under the name Towncenter Bank division of Provident Bank New York
Provident Bank offers complete line of conunercial community business small business and retail banking

products and services

We also offer deposit services to municipalities located in the State of New York through Provident Banks wholly-

owned subsidiary Provident Municipal Bank

Provest Services Corporation is wholly-owned subsidiary of Provident Bank holding an investment in limited

partnership that operates an assisted-living facility percentage of the units in the facility are for low-income

individuals Provest Services Corp II is wholly-owned subsidiary of Provident Bank that has engaged third-party

provider to sell annuities life and health insurance products to Provident Banks customers Through September 30
2010 the activities of these subsidiaries have had an insignificant effect on our consolidated financial condition and

results of operations Provident REIT Inc and WSB Funding are subsidiaries in the form of real estate investment

trusts and hold both residential and commercial real estate loans Also the Bank maintains several Corporations

which hold foreclosed properties acquired by Provident Bank

Provident Banks website www.providentbanking.com contains direct link to the Companys filings with the

Securities and Exchange Commission including copies of annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form

10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these filings as well as ownership reports on Forms and

filed by the Companys directors and executive officers Copies may also be obtained without charge by written

request to Provident New York Bancorp Investor Relations 400 Rella Boulevard Montebello New York 10901
Attention Miranda Grimm Provident Banks website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Non-Bank Subsidiaries

In addition to Provident Bank the Company owns Hardenburgh Abstract Company Inc Hardenburgh that was

acquired in connection with the acquisition of Warwick Community Bancorp WSB and Hudson Valley

Investment Advisors LLC an investment advisory firm that generates investment management fees Flardenburgh

had gross revenue from title insurance policies and abstracts of $1.2 million and net income of $214000 in 2010
Hudson Valley Investment Advisors LLC generated $2.4 million in fee income in 2010 and net income of $369000
and Provident Risk Management Inc captive insurance company generated $441000 in intercompany revenues

and $353000 innet income



Provident Municipal Bank

Provident Municipal Bank wholly-owned subsidiary of Provident Bank is New York State-chartered

commercial bank which is engaged in the business of accepting deposits from municipalities in our market area

New York State law requires municipalities located in the State of New York to deposit funds with commercial

banks effectively forbidding these municipalities from depositing funds with savings banks including federally

chartered savings associations such as Provident Bank

Forward-Looking Statements

From time to time the Company has made and may continue to make written or oral forward-looking statements

regarding our outlook or expectations for earnings revenues expenses capital levels asset quality or other future

financial or business performance strategies or expectations or the impact of legal regulatory or supervisory

matters on our business operations or performance This Annual Report on Form 10-K also includes forward-

looking statements With respect to all such forward-looking statements you should review our Risk Factors

discussion in Item 1A and our Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information included in Item

Market Area

Provident Bank is an independent community bank offering broad range
of financial services to businesses and

individuals as an alternative to large regional multi-state and international banks in our market area At September

30 2010 our 35 full-service banking offices consisted of 12 offices in Rockland County New York 14 offices in

Orange County New York and offices in contiguous Ulster Putnam Westchester and Sullivan Counties New

York There is one office located in Lodi New Jersey operating as Towncenter Bank division of Provident Bank

New York Our primary market for deposits is currently concentrated around the areas where our full-service

banking offices are located

Our primary lending area consists of Rockland and Orange Counties as well as contiguous counties Rockland and

Orange Counties represent suburban area with broad employment base These counties also serve as bedroom

communities for nearby New York City and other suburban areas including Westchester County and northern New

Jersey According to data published by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC as of June 30 2010

Provident Bank holds the share of deposits in Rockland County and share of deposits in Orange County and

overall has the combined share of deposits in Rockland and Orange Counties New York

Management Strategy

We operate as an independent community bank that offers broad range
of customer-focused financial services as

an alternative to large regional multi-state and international banks in our market area Management has invested in

the infrastructure and staffing to support our strategy of serving the financial needs of businesses individuals and

municipalities in our market area focusing on core deposit generation and quality loan growth which provides

favorable platform for long-term sustainable growth Highlights of managements business strategy are as follows

Operating as Community Bank As an independent community bank we emphasize the local nature of our

decision-making to respond more effectively to the needs of our customers while providing full range of fmancial

services to the businesses individuals and municipalities in our market area We offer broad range of financial

products to meet the changing needs of the marketplace including internet banking cash management services and

on selective basis sweep accounts In addition we offer asset management services to meet the investing needs of

individuals corporations and not-for-profit entities As result we are able to provide at the local level the

financial services required to meet the needs of the majority of existing and potential customers in our market

Enhancing Customer Service We are committed to providing superior customer service as way to differentiate us

from our competition As part of our commitment to service we have been engaged in Sunday banking since 1995

In addition we offer multiple access channels to our customers including our branch and ATM network internet

banking our Customer Care Telephone Center and our Automated Voice Response system We reinforce in our

employees commitment to customer service through extensive training recognition programs and measurement of



service standards Initiated in 2006 our Service Excellence Program is an active part of the culture of the bank

designed to maintain the highest level of service to our customer base

Growing and maintaining Diversfied Loan Portfolio We offer broad range of loan products to commercial

businesses real estate owners developers and individuals To support this activity we maintain commercial

consumer and residential loan departments staffed with experienced professionals to promote the continued growth

and prudent management of loan assets We have experienced consistent and significant growth in our commercial

loan portfolio while continuing to provide our residential mortgage and consumer lending services As result we
believe that we have developed high quality diversified loan portfolio with favorable mix of loan types

maturities and yields

Expanding our Banking Franchise Management intends to continue the expansion of the banking franchise and to

increase the number of customers served and products used by businesses and consumers in our market area Our

strategy is to deliver exceptional customer service which depends on up-to-date technology and multiple access

channels as well as courteous personal contact from trained and motivated workforce This approach has resulted

in relatively high level of core deposits which drives our overall cost of funds Management intends to maintain

this strategy which will require ongoing investment in banking locations and technology to support exceptional

service levels for Provident Banks customers Recent expansion efforts have been focused on Westchester County

Lending Activities

General We originate commercial real estate loans commercial business loans and acquisition development and

construction loans collectively referred to as the commercial loan portfolio We also originate in our market area

fixed-rate and adjustable-rate ARM residential mortgage loans collateralized by one- to four-family residential

real estate and consumer loans such as home equity lines of credit homeowner loans and personal loans We retain

most of the loans we originate although we may sell longer-term one- to four-family residential loans and

participations in some commercial loans

Commercial Real Estate Lending We originate real estate loans secured predominantly by first liens on

commercial real estate The commercial properties are predominantly non-residential properties such as office

buildings shopping centers retail strip centers industrial and warehouse properties and to lesser extent more

specialized properties such as churches mobile home parks restaurants and motellhotels We may from time to

time purchase commercial real estate loan participations We target commercial real estate loans with initial

principal balances between $1.0 million and $15.0 million At September 30 2010 loans secured by commercial

real estate totaled $582.0 million or 34.2% of our total loan portfolio and consisted of 1041 loans outstanding

although there are large number of loans with balances substantially greater than the average Substantially all of

our commercial real estate loans are secured by properties located in our primary market area

The majorities of our commercial real estate loans are written as five-year adjustable-rate or ten-year fixed-rate

mortgages and typically have balloon maturities up to ten years Amortization on these loans is typically based on

20-year payout schedules Margins generally range from 200 basis points to 300 basis points above the applicable

Federal Home Loan Bank advance rate

In the underwriting of commercial real estate loans we generally lend up to 75% of the propertys appraised value

Decisions to lend are based on the economic viability of the property and the creditworthiness of the borrower In

evaluating proposed commercial real estate loan we primarily emphasize the ratio of the propertys projected net

cash flow to the loans debt service requirement generally targeting ratio of 120% computed after deduction for

vacancy factor and property expenses we deem appropriate In addition personal guarantee of the loan or

portion thereof is generally required from the principals of the borrower We require title insurance insuring the

priority of our lien fire and extended coverage casualty insurance and flood insurance if appropriate in order to

protect our security interest in the underlying property

Commercial real estate loans generally carry higher interest rates and have shorter terms than one-to four-family

residential mortgage loans Commercial real estate loans entail significant additional credit risks compared to one-

to four-family residential mortgage loans as they typically involve large loan balances concentrated with single

borrowers or groups of related borrowers In addition the payment experience on loans secured by income



producing properties typically depends on the successful operation of the related real estate project and thus may be

subject to greater extent to adverse conditions in the real estate market and in the general economy For

commercial real estate loans in which the borrower is the primary occupant repayment experience also depends on

the successful operation of the borrowers underlying business

commercial Business Loans We make various types of secured and unsecured commercial loans to customers in

our market area for the purpose of financing equipment aqwsrnon expansion working capital and other general

business purposes The term of these loans generally range from less than one year
to seven years The loans are

either negotiated on fixed-rate basis or carry adjustable interest rates indexed to lending rate that is determined

internally or short-term market rate index At September 30 2010 we had 2154 commercial business loans

outstanding with an aggregate balance of $240.7 million or 14.1% of the total loan portfolio As of September 30

2010 the average commercial business loan balance was approximately $111000 although there are large number

of loans with balances substantially greater than this average

Commercial credit decisions are based upon credit assessment of the loan applicant determination is made as to

the applicants ability to repay in accordance with the proposed terms as well as an overall assessment of the risks

involved An evaluation is made of the applicant to determine character and capacity to manage Personal

guarantees of the principals are generally required except in the case of not-for-profit corporations In addition to

an evaluation of the loan applicants fmancial statements determination is made of the probable adequacy of the

primary and secondary sources of repayment to be relied upon in the transaction Credit agency reports of the

applicants credit history supplement the analysis of the applicants creditworthiness Checking with other banks

and trade investigations may also be conducted Collateral supporting secured transaction also is analyzed to

determine its marketability For small business loans and lines of credit generally those not exceeding $100000

we use modified credit scoring system that enables us to process the loan requests more quickly and efficiently

Commercial business loans generally bear higher interest rates than residential loans of like duration because they

involve higher risk of default since their repayment is generally dependent on the successful operation of the

borrowers business and the sufficiency of collateral if any In addition credit scoring models are generally more

predictive in rank-ordering risk default than determining the absolute likelihood of default

One-To Four-Family Real Estate Lending We offer conforming and non-conforming fixed-rate and adjustable-

rate residential mortgage loans with maturities of up to 30 years and maximum loan amounts generally up to $1.1

million that are fully amortizing with monthly or bi-weekly loan payments This portfolio totaled $411.2 million or

24.2% of our total loan portfolio at September 30 2010

One- to four-family residential mortgage loans are generally underwritten according to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac

guidelines for loans they designate as or A- Loans that conform to such guidelines are referred to as

conforming loans We generally originate fixed-rate loans in amounts up to the maximum conforming loan limits

as established by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac which are currently $417000 for single-family homes or higher in

certain areas as determined by the Federal Housing Finance Agency Private mortgage insurance is generally

required for loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 80% In order to reduce exposure to rising interest rates we

sold or securitized substantially all conforming fixed rate 1-4 family residential loans originated in fiscal 2010

totaling $49.0 million in proceeds

We also originate loans above conforming limits referred to as jumbo loans which have been underwritten to

substantially the same credit standards as conforming loans which are generally eligible for sale to various firms

that specialize in the purchase of such non-conforming loans During the past two years the market for jumbo loans

has been erratic with many of the normal outlets unable to purchase this type of loan consequently no loans were

sold during fiscal 2010

We also originate loans other than jumbo loans that are not saleable to Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac but which we

deem to be acceptable risks The amount of such loans originated for fiscal 2010 was $30.2 million all of which

were retained in our loan portfolio

We actively monitor our interest rate risk position to determine the desirable level of investment in fixed-rate

mortgages Depending on market interest rates and our capital and liquidity position we may retain all of our newly

originated longer term fixed-rate residential mortgage loans or from time to time we may decide to sell all or



portion of such loans in the secondary mortgage market to government sponsored entities such as Fannie Mae and

Freddie Mac or other purchasers Our bi-weekly one- to four-family residential mortgage loans that are retaised in

our portfolio result in shorter repayment schedules than conventional monthly mortgage loans and are repaid

through an automatic deduction from the borrowers savings or checking account As of September 30 2010 bi

weekly loans totaled $117.9 million or 28.7% of our residential loan portfolio We retain the servicing tights on

large majority of loans sold to generate fee income and reinforce our commitment to customer service although we

may also selinon-conforming loans to mortgage banking companies generally on servicing-released basis As of

September 30 2010 loans serviced for others excluding loan participations totaled $141.4 million

We currently offer several ARM loan products secured by residential properties with rates that are fixed for period

ranging from six months to ten years After the initial term if the loan is not already refinanced the interest rate on

these loans generally reset every year based upon contractual spread or margin above the average yield on U.S

Treasury securities adjusted to constant maturity of one year as published weekly by the Federal Reserve Board

and subject to certain periodic and lifetime limitations on interest rate changes Many of the borrowers who select

these loans have shorter-term credit needs than those who select long-term fixed-rate loans ARM loans generally

pose
different credit risks than fixed-rate loans primarily because the underlying debt service payments of the

borrowers rise as interest rates rise thereby increasing the potential for default At September 30 2010 our ARIvI

portfolio included $1.3 million in loans that re-price every six months $34.3 million in loans that re-price once

year $5.8 million in loans that re-price periodically after an initial fixed-rate period of one year or more and

$456 that re-price based upon other miscellaneous re-pricing terms Our adjustable rate loans do not have

interest-only or negative amortization features We do not nor have we in the past originated subprime loans

loans to borrowers with subprime credit scores combined with either high loan-to-value or high debt-to-income

ratios

We require title insurance on all of our one- to four-family mortgage loans and we also require that borrowers

maintain fire and extended coverage or all risk casualty insurance and if appropriate flood insurance in an amount

at least equal to the lesser of the loan balance or the replacement cost of the improvements but in any event in an

amount calculated to avoid the effect of any coinsurance clause Nearly all residential first mortgage loans are

required to have mortgage escrow account from which disbursements are made for real estate taxes and for hazard

and flood insurance

Acquisition Development and Construction Loans We originate land acquisition development and construction

ADC loans to builders in our market area These loans totaled $229.5 million or 13.5% of our total loan

portfolio at September 30 2010 Acquisition loans help fmance the purchase of land intended for further

development including single-family houses multi-family housing and commercial income property In some

cases we may make an acquisition loan before the borrower has received approval to develop the land as planned

In general the maximum loan-to-value ratio for land acquisition loan is 50% of the appraised value of the

property although for certain borrowers we deem to be our lowest risk higher loan-to-value ratios may be allowed

We also make development loans to builders in our market area to finance improvements to real estate consisting

mostly of single-family subdivisions typically to fmance the cost of utilities roads sewers and other development

costs Builders generally rely on the sale of single-family homes to repay development loans although in some cases

the improved building lots may be sold to another builder The maximum amount loaned is generally limited to the

cost of the improvements plus limited approval of soft costs In general we do not originate loans with interest

reserves portion of our ADC loans acquired through the purchase of participations do carry interest reserves The

total loans with interest reserves at September 30 2010 were $39.5 million Advances are made in accordance with

schedule reflecting the cost of the improvements

We also make construction loans to area builders often in conjunction with development loans In the case of

residential subdivisions these loans finance the cost of completing homes on the improved property Advances on

construction loans are made in accordance with schedule reflecting the cost of construction Repayment of

construction loans on residential subdivisions is normally expected from the sale of units to individual purchasers In

the case of income-producing property repayment is usually expected from permanent financing upon completion

of construction We commit to provide the permanent mortgage financing on most of our construction loans on

income-producing property Collateral coverage and risk profile is maintained by restricting the number of model or

speculative units in each project



Land acquisition development and construction lending exposes us to greater credit risk than permanent mortgage

fmancing The repayment of land acquisition development and construction loans depends upon the sale of the

property to third parties or the availability of permanent fmancing upon completion of all improvements In the

event we make an acquisition loan on property that is not yet approved for the planned development there is the risk

that approvals will not be granted or will be delayed These events may adversely affect the borrower and the

collateral value of the property To mitigate this risk the Bank implemented an amortization program with

repayment from outside sources over a-five to seven year petiod As--of- September 30 2010 approximately 50% -of

the outstanding balances are being amortized over period not to exceed five
years

and the balance will be

converted as they mature Development and construction loans also expose us to the risk that improvements will not

be completed on time in accordance with specifications and projected costs In addition the ultimate sale or rental of

the property may not occur as anticipated In recent years as result of the economic downturn most projects have

performed behind schedule requiring the borrowers to carry these projects for longer time frame than was

originally contemplated when we approved the credit facilities As result many of the borrowers have been

utilizing other sources to maintain debt service or have been unable to maintain debt service requirements With

current market conditions- the Bank is currently not considering unimproved land loans New acquisition

development and construction loans are being underwritten based on current market conditions

Consumer Loans We originate variety of consumer and other loans including homeowner loans home equity

lines of credit new and used automobile loans and personal unsecured loans including fixed-rate installment loans

and variable lines of credit As of September 30 2010 consumer loans totaled $238.2 million or 14% of the total

loan portfolio

At September 30 2010 the largest group of consumer loans consisted of $225.1 million of loans secured by junior

liens on residential properties We offer fixed-rate fixed-term second mortgage loans referred to as homeowner

loans and we also offer adjustable-rate home equity lines of credit As of September 30 2010 homeowner loans

totaled $48.9 million or 2.9% of ourtotal loan portfolio The disbursed portion of home equity lines of credit totaled

$176.1 million or 10.3% of our- total loan portfolio at September 30 2010 with $147.3 million remaining

undisbursed

Other consumer loans include personal loans and loans secured by new or used automobiles As of September 30

2010 these loans totaled $13.1 million or 0.8% of our total loan portfolio We originate consumer loans directly to

our customers or on an indirect basis through selected dealerships We require borrowers to maintain collision

insurance on automobiles securing consumer loans with us listed as loss payee Personal loans also include secured

and unsecured installment loans for other purposes Unsecured installment loans which include most personal loans

generally have shorter terms than secured consumer loans and generally have higher interest rates than rates

charged on secured installment loans with comparable terms We also offer overdraft lines of credit on an unsecured

basis outstanding balances on these loans totaled $4.8 million with additional undrawn lines totaling $15.4 million

Our procedures for underwriting consumer loans include an assessment of an applicants credit history and the

ability to meet existing obligations and payments on the proposed loan Although an applicants creditworthiness is

primary consideration the uiiderwriting process also includes comparison of the value of the collateral security

if any to the proposed loan amount We generally lend at an 80% loan-to-value ratio for home equity loans but will

go to 90% loan-to-value with strong loan profile and higher pricing

Consumer loans generally entail greater risk than residential mortgage loans particularly in the case of consumer

loans that are unsecured or secured by assets that tend to depreciate rapidly such as automobiles In addition the

repayment of consumer loans depends on the borrowers continued fmancial stability as repayment historically has

been more likely to be adversely affected by job loss divorce illness or personal bankruptcy than single family

mortgage loan
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Loan Originations Purchases Sales and Servicing While we originate both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate loans

our ability to generate each type of loan depends upon borrower demand market interest rates borrower preference

for fixed versus adjustable-rate loans and the interest rates offered on each type of loan by other lenders in our

market area These include competing banks savings banks credit unions mortgage banking companies life

insurance companies and similar financial services firms Loan originations are derived from number of sources

including branch office personnel existing customers borrowers builders attorneys real estate broker referrals and

walk-in customers

Our loan origination and sales activity may be adversely affected by rising interest rate environment or period of

falling house prices that typically results in decreased loan demand while declining interest rates may stimulate

increased loan demand as well as being impacted by the level of unemployment and housing sale activity

Accordingly the volume of loan origination the mix of fixed and adjustable-rate loans and the profitability of this

activity can vary from period to period One- to four-family residential mortgage loans are generally underwritten to

current Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac seller/servicer guidelines and closed on standard Fannie Mae/Freddie Mac

documents If such loans are sold the sales are conducted generally using standard Fannie Mae/Freddie Mac

purchase contracts and master commitments as applicable One- to four-family mortgage loans may be sold to

Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac on non-recourse basis whereby foreclosure losses are generally the responsibility of

the purchaser and not Provident Bank Consistent with its long-standing credit policies Provident Bank does not

originate or hold subprime mortgage loans We also hold no subprime loans through our investment portfolio

During fiscal year 2010 $14.6 million in loans were sold as participation certificates whereby such loans were

retained as mortgage backed securities guaranteed by Freddie Mac We are qualified loan servicer for both Fannie

Mae and Freddie Mac Our policy generally has been to retain the servicing rights for all conforming loans sold We

therefore continue to collect payments on the loans maintain tax escrows and applicable fire and flood insurance

coverage and supervise foreclosure proceedings if necessary We retain portion of the interest paid by the

borrower on the loans as consideration for our servicing activities

Loan Approval/Authority and Underwriting We have four levels of lending authority beginning with the Board of

Directors The Board grants lending authority to the Director Loan Committee the members of which are

Directors the Management Loan Committee the President and certain other designated officers to approve

individual loan authorities Our lending activities are subject to written policies established by the Board These

policies are reviewed periodically

The Director Loan Committee may approve
loans in accordance with applicable loan policies up to the limits

established in our policy governing loans to one borrower This policy places limits on the aggregate dollar amount

of credit that may be extended to any one borrower and related entities Loans exceeding the maximum loan-to-one

borrower limit described below require approval by the Board of Directors The Management Loan Committees

authority varies depending on the quality of the credit and the aggregate relationship up to the policy limits set for

one borrower and group of related borrowers Two loan officers with sufficient loan authority acting together may

approve loans up to $1 million The maximum individual authority to approve an unsecured loan is $50000

however for credit-scored small business loans the maximum individual authority is $100000

We have established risk rating system for our commercial business loans commercial and multi-family real estate

loans and acquisition development and construction loans to builders The risk rating system assesses variety of

factors to rank the risk of default and risk of loss associated with the loan These ratings are performed by

commercial credit personnel who do not have responsibility for loan originations We determine our maximum loan-

to-one-borrower limits based upon the rating of the loan The large majority of loans fall into three categories The

maximum for the best-rated borrowers is $20 million $15 million for the next group
of borrowers and $12 million

for the third group Sub-limits apply based on reliance on any single property and for commercial business loans

On occasion the Board of Directors may approve higher exposure
limits for loans to one borrower in an amount not

to exceed the legal lending limit of the Bank The Board may also authorize the Director Loan Committee to

approve loans for specific borrowers up to designated Board approved limit in excess of the policy limit for that

borrower

In connection with our residential and commercial real estate loans we generally require property appraisals to be

performed by independent appraisers who are approved by the Board Appraisals are then reviewed by the



appropriate loan underwriting areas Under certain conditions appraisals may not be required for loans under

$250000 or in other limited circumstances We also require title insurance hazard insurance and if indicated flood

insurance on property securing mortgage loans Title insurance is not required for consumer loans under $100000
such as home equity lines of credit and homeowner loans and in connection with certain residential mortgage

refinances

Loan Origination Fees and Costs In addition tc interest earned on loans we also receive loan fees

Such fees vary with the volume and type of loans and commitments made and competitive conditions in the

mortgage markets which in turn respond to the demand and availability of money We defer loan origination fees

and costs and amortize such amounts as an adjustment to yield over the term of the loan by use of the level yield

method Deferred loan origination costs net of deferred fees were $720000 at September 30 2010

To the extent that originated loans are sold with servicing retained we capitalize mortgage servicing asset at the

time of the sale The capitalized amount is amortized thereafter over the period of estimated net servicing income

as reduction of servicing fee income The unamortized amount is fully charged to income when loans are prepaid

Originated mortgage servicing rights with an amortized cost of $1.2 million are included in other assets at

September 30 2010 See also Notes and of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Loans to One Borrower At September 30 2010 our five largest aggregate amounts loaned to any one borrower and

certain related interests including any unused lines of credit consisted of secured and unsecured financing of $30.1

million $22.9 million $19.4 million $18.8 million and $18.0 million See Regulation Regulation of Provident

Bank. Loans to One Borrower for discussion of applicable regulatory limitations

Delinquent Loans Troubled Debt Restructure Other Real Estate Owned and Classified Assets

Collection Procedures for Residential and Commercial Mortgage Loans and Consumer Loans computer-

generated late notice is sent by the 16th day after the payment due date on loan requesting the payment due plus

any late charge that was assessed Accounts are distributed to collector or account officer to contact borrowers

determine the reason for delinquency and seek payment and accounts are monitored electronically for receipt of

payments If payments are not received within 30 days of the original due date letter demanding payment of all

arrearages is sent and contact efforts are continued If payment is not received within 60 days of the due date loans

are generally accelerated and payment in full is demanded Failure to pay within 90 days of the original due date

generally results in legal action notwithstanding ongoing collection efforts Unsecured consumer loans are generally

charged-off after 120 days For commercial loans procedures vary depending upon individual circumstances

Loans Past Due and Non-Performing Assets Loans are reviewed on regular basis and are placed on non-accrual

status when either principal or interest is 90 days or more past due unless well secured and in the process of

collection In addition loans are placed on non-accrual status when in the opinion of management there is

sufficient reason to question the borrowers ability to continue to meet principal or interest payment obligations

Interest accrued and unpaid at the time loan is placed on non-accrual status is reversed from interest income related

to current year income and charged to the allowance for loan losses with respect to income that was recorded in the

prior fiscal year Interest payments received on non-accrual loans are not recognized as income unless warranted

based on the borrowers fmancial condition and payment record At September 30 2010 we had non-accrual loans

of $21.4 million and $5.4 million of loans 90 days past due and still accruing interest which were well secured and

in the process of collection At September 30 2009 we had non-accrual loans of $21.9 million and $4.6 million of

loans 90 days past due and still accruing interest

Real estate acquired as result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as real estate owned

REO until such time as it is sold

When real estate is acquired through foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure it is recorded at the lower of book

value or fair value less cost to sell If the fair value of the property is less than the loan balance the difference is

charged against the allowance for loan losses At September 30 2010 we had eight foreclosed properties with

recorded balance of $3.9 million In addition $16.0 million in loan balances was considered troubled debt

restructures which are still accruing interest income
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Troubled Debt Restructure The Company in an effort to assist our borrowers has modified terms of certain loans

secured by real estate These loans were $21.5 million at September 30 2010 of which $5.5 million were classified

as nonaccrual and $16.0 million were performing according to terms The majority of performing TDR consisted of

one relationship totaling $14.2 million The Loan modifications included actions such as extension of maturity date

the lowering of interest rates and monthly payments The amount of commitments to lend debtors with loans that

have been modified is $318000 at September 30 2010 The commitments to lend on the restructured debt is

contingent on clear title and third party inspection to verif completion of work and is associated with loans that

are considered to be performing
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Loan Portfolio Delinquencies The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our loan portfolio

delinquencies at the dates indicated

At Septembcr 30 2010

Loans Delinquent For

90 Days over still

30-89 Days accruing non-accrual

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount

Dollars in thousands

One- to four- family

Commercial real estate

ADC

Commercial business

Consumer

Total

At September 30 2009

One- to four- family

Commercial real estate

ADC

Commercial business

Consumer

Total

At September 30 2008

One- to four- family

Commercial real estate

ADC

Commercial business

Consumer

Total

At September 30 2007

One- to four- family

Commercial real estate

ADC

Commercial business

Consumer

Total

At September 30 2006

One- to four- family

Commercial real estate

Commercial business

Consumer

Total

3403

27 681 22

36 12347 101

390 32

398 24

366 20

18 999

22 494 13

45 2647 97

29 1318 35

43 435 41

99 7525 116

28 4829

31 3387

357 19

49 835 30

117 9408 74

43 4502 10

15 1098

12

54 521 42

112 6121 70

Total

113

1469

6681

37 8146

30 11326

13 12411

19 4106

1666

4779

2525

39187

7747

7201

11636

1456

1076

29116

8324

5498

5596

4129

856

24403

36 8033

26 9857

11 5730

1376

1844 49

26840 137

7357 34

6803 26

11270 21

457 26

582 35

26469 142

19 4218 38

12 3832 20

5596

2811 64

421 84

16878 215

15 1899

2586

689

1683 28

401 79

7258 191

1102 53

2980 21

489 12

453 96

5024 182

43 6728

39 5973

689

2040

1236

16666

5604

4078

489

974

11145
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Risk elements The table below sets forth the amounts and categories of our assets with various risk levels at the dates indicated

September 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Non- Non- Non- Non- Non-

Accrual Accrual Accrual Accrual Accrual

Non-performing loans

One- to four- family 6080 4425 1731 472

Commercial real estate 6886 5826 3100 1099 2367

Commercial business loans 1376 457 2811 1637 459

Acquisition land and development 5730 10830 5596 644

Consumer 1341 371 351 129 144

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more 5427 4560 3289 3749 1582

Total non-performing loans 26840 26469 16878 7258 5024

Foreclosed properties 3891 1712 84 139 87

Totalnon-performingassets 30731 28181 16962 7397 5111

Troubled Debt Restructures still accruing

and not included above 16047 674

Ratios

Non-performing loans to total loans 1.58% 1.55% 0.97% 0.44% 0.34%

Non-performing assets to total assets 1.02% 0.93% 0.57% 0.26% 0.18%

For the
year

ended September 30 2010 gross interest income that would have been recorded had the non-accrual loans at the end of

the year remained on accrual status throughout the year amounted to $1.2 million Interest income actually recognized on such loans

totaled $383000

Classification of Assets Our policies consistent with regulatory guidelines provide for the classification of loans and other assets that

are considered to be of lesser quality as substandard doubtful or loss assets An asset is considered substandard if it is inadequately

protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged if any Substandard assets include

those characterized by the distinct possibility that the bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected Assets classified

as doubtful have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard with the added characteristic that the

weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts conditions and values highly

questionable and improbable Assets classified as loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that their

continuance as assets is not warranted and are either charged off or the subject of specific reserve Assets that do not expose us to

risk sufficient to warrant classification in one of the aforementioned categories but which possess potential weaknesses that deserve

our close attention designated as special mention As of September 30 2010 we had $39.9 million of assets designated as special

mention

Our determination as to the classification of our assets and the amount of our loss allowances are subject to review by our regulatory

agencies which can order the establishment of additional loss allowances Management regularly reviews our asset portfolio to

determine whether
any assets require classification in accordance with applicable regulations On the basis of managements review of

our assets at September 30 2010 classified assets consisted of substandard assets of $135.6 million and $300000 were classified as

doubtful

Loans categorized as troubled debt restructures and still accruing are loans to which the lending relationship with troubled borrower

who was still performing in accordance with the terms of their loan was granted an extension of their credit facility in exchange for

terms and conditions which were favorable to the Bank in improving the credit facility but were not at market rates given the credit

rating of the borrower at the time of the extension of the loan maturity
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Allowance for Loan Losses We provide for loan losses based on the allowance method Accordingly all loan

losses are charged to the related allowance and all recoveries are credited to it Additions to the allowance for loan

losses are provided by charges to income based on various factors which in managements judgment deserve

current recognition in estimating probable incurred losses Management regularly reviews the loan portfolio and

makes provisions for loan losses in order to maintain the allowance for loan losses in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America The allowance for loan losses consists of amounts

specifically allocated to non-performing loans and other criticized or classified loans if any as well as allowances

determined for each major loan category After we establish provision for loans that are known to be non-

performing criticized or classified we calculate percentage to apply to the remaining loan portfolio to estimate the

probable incurred losses inherent in that portion of the portfolio When the loan portfolio increases therefore the

percentage calculation results in higher dollar amount of estimated probable incurred losses than would be the case

without the increase and when the loan portfolio decreases the percentage calculation results in lower dollar

amount of estimated probable incurred losses than would be the case without the decrease These percentages are

determined by management based on historical loss experience for the applicable loan category and are adjusted to

reflect our evaluation of

levels of and trends in delinquencies and non-accruals

trends in volume and terms of loans

effects of any changes in lending policies and procedures

experience ability and depth of lending management and staff

national and local economic trends and conditions

concentrations of credit by such factors as location industry inter-relationships and borrower and

for commercial loans trends in risk ratings

Of the major parts of our loan portfolio we consider land acquisition development and construction loans

commercial real estate loans and commercial business loans to be the higher risk categories We consider one-to-

four family mortgage loans to be lower risk category Although we offer unsecured consumer loans and overdraft

protection lines of credit which are higher risk in nature they constitute modest percentage of our loan portfolio

Land acquisition development and construction lending is considered higher risk and exposes us to greater credit

risk than permanent mortgage financing The repayment of land acquisition development and construction loans

depends upon the sale of the property to third parties or the availability of permanent financing upon completion of

all improvements In the event we make an acquisition loan on property that is not yet approved for the planned

development there is the risk that approvals will not be granted or will be delayed These events may adversely

affect the borrower and the collateral value of the property Development and construction loans also expose us to

the risk that improvements will not be completed on time in accordance with specifications and projected costs In

addition the ultimate sale or rental of the property may not occur as anticipated All of these factors are considered

as part of the underwriting structuring and pricing of the loan

Commercial real estate loans subject us to the risks that the property securing the loan may not generate sufficient

cash flow to service the debt or the borrower may use the cash flow for other purposes In addition the foreclosure

process if necessary may be slow and properties may deteriorate in the process The market values are also subject

to wide variety of factors including general economic conditions industry specific factors environmental factors

interest rates and the availability and terms of credit

Commercial business lending is also higher risk because repayment depends on the successful operation of the

business which is subject to wide
range of risks and uncertainties In addition the ability to successfully liquidate

collateral if any is subject to variety of risks because we must gain control of assets used in the borrowers

business before foreclosing which we cannot be assured of doing and the value in foreclosure sale or other means

of liquidation is subject to downward pressure

When we evaluate residential mortgage loans and equity loans we weigh both the credit capacity of the borrower

and the collateral value of the home As unemployment and underemployment increases and liquidity reserves if

any diminish the credit capacity of the borrower decreases which increases our risk Also after period of years

of stable or increasing home values in our market home prices have declined from high in 2005 and 2006 We are

14



exposed to risk in both our first mortgage and equity lending programs due to declines in values in recent years We

are also exposed to risk because the time to foreclose is significant and has become longer under current conditions

The carrying value of loans is periodically evaluated and the allowance is adjusted accordingly While management

uses the best information available to make evaluations future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if

conditions differ substantially from the information used in making the evaluations In addition as an integral part of

their examination process our regulatory agencies periodically review the allowance for loan losses Such agencies

may require us to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments of information available to them at

the time of their examination

Allowance for Loan Losses by Year The following table sets forth activity in our allowance for loan losses for the

years
indicated

At or For Years Ended September 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of year 30050 23101 20389 20373 21047

Transfer to reserve for contingent loan commitments 395

Charge-offs

One- to four- family 749 461 97
Commercial real estate 987 902 627

ADC 848 1515
Commercial business 6578 7271 3596 2164 1509

Consumer 1168 1140 609 329 327

Total charge-offs 10330 11289 4929 2493 1836

Recoveries

One- to four- family

Commercial real estate 23

ADC 261 200

Commercial business 670 249 291 581 236

Consumer 166 187 150 128 121

Total recoveries 1123 638 441 709 357

Net charge-offs 9207 10651 4488 1784 1479

Provision for loan losses 10000 17600 7200 1800 1200

Balance at end of year 30843 30050 23101 20389 20373

Ratios

Net charge-offs to average
loans

outstanding
0.56% 0.62% 0.28% 0.12% 0.11%

Allowance for loan losses to non

performing loans 115% 114% 137% 281% 406%

Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.81% 1.76% 1.33% 1.24% 1.38%
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Securities Investments

Our securities investment policy is established by our Board of Directors This policy dictates that investment decisions

be made based on the safety of the investment liquidity requirements potential returns cash flow targets and

consistency with our interest rate risk management strategy The Boards Asset/Liability Committee oversees our

investment program and evaluates on an ongoing basis our investment policy and objectives Our chief financial officer

or our chief financial officer acting with our chief executive officer is responsible for making securities portfolio

decisions in accordance with established policies Our chief financial officer chief executive officer and certain other

executive officers have the authority to purchase and sell securities within specific guidelines established by the

investment policy In addition all transactions are reviewed by the Boards Asset/Liability Committee at least quarterly

Our current investment policy generally permits securities investments in debt securities issued by the U.S government

and U.S agencies municipal bonds and notes and corporate debt obligations as well as investments in preferred and

common stock of government agencies and government sponsored enterprises such as Fannie Mae Freddie Mac and the

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York federal agency securities and to lesser extent other equity securities

Securities in these categories are classified as investment securities for financial reporting purposes The policy also

permits investments in mortgage-backed securities including pass-through securities issued and guaranteed by Fannie

Mae Freddie Mac and Girmie Mae as well as collateralized mortgage obligations CMOs issued or backed by

securities issued by these government agencies Also permitted are investments in securities issued or backed by the

Small Business Administration privately issued mortgage-backed securities and CMOs and asset-backed securities

collateralized by auto loans credit card receivables and home equity and home improvement loans Our current

investment strategy uses risk management approach of diversified investing in fixed-rate securities with short- to

intermediate-term maturities as well as adjustable-rate securities which may have longer term to maturity The

emphasis of this approach is to increase overall investment securities yields while managing interest rate and credit risk

FASB ASC Topic 320 Investments Debt and Equity securities requires that at the time of purchase we designate

security as held to maturity available for sale or trading depending on our ability to hold and our intent Securities

available for sale are reported at fair value while securities held to maturity are reported at amortized cost We do not

have trading portfolio Excluding mortgage backed securities discussed elsewhere management sold $163.9 million in

investment securities and realized net gains of $1.8 million as the market yields associated with the securities sold were

below levels management believed justifying retaining such securities

Government and Agency Securities At September 30 2010 we held government and agency
securities available for

sale with fair value of $418.3 million consisting primarily of agency obligations with maturities of more than one year

through ten years While these securities generally provide lower yields than other investments such as mortgage-

backed securities our current investment strategy is to maintain investments in such instruments to the extent

appropriate for liquidity purposes and as collateral for borrowings

Corporate and Municipal Bonds and Notes At September 30 2010 we held $30.5 million in corporate debt securities

Corporate bonds have higher risk of default due to adverse changes in the creditworthiness of the issuer In

recognition of this risk our policy limits investments in corporate bonds to securities with maturities of ten years or less

and rated or better by at least one nationally recognized rating agency at time of purchase and to total investment

of no more than $2.0 million per issuer and total corporate bond portfolio limit of $40.0 million The policy also limits

investments in municipal bonds to securities with maturities of 20 years or less and rated as investment grade by at least

one nationally recognized rating agency at the time of purchase and favors issues that are insured however we also

purchase securities that are issued by local government entities within our service area Such local entity obligations

generally are not rated and are subject to internal credit reviews In addition the policy generally imposes an

investment limitation of $5.0 million per municipal issuer and total municipal bond portfolio limit of 10% of assets

At September 30 2010 we held $219.5 million in bonds issued by states and political subdivisions $27.8 million of

which were classified as held to maturity at amortized cost and are mostly unrated and $191.7 million of which were

classified as available for sale at fair value At September 30 2010 we did not hold any obligations that were rated less

than as available for sale

Equity Securities At September 30 2010 our equity securities available for sale had fair value of $889000 We also

held $19.6 million at cost of Federal Home Loan Bank of New York FHLBNY common stock portion of which

must be held as condition of membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank System with the remainder held as

condition to our borrowing under the Federal Home Loan Bank advance program Dividends on FHLBNY stock

recorded in the year ended September 30 2010 amounted to $1.2 million We held no preferred shares of Freddie Mac
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or Fannie Mae for the year
ended September 30 2010 We also held no auction rate securities or pooled trust

preferred securities during the year
ended September 30 2010

Mortgage-Backed Securities We purchase mortgage-backed securities in order to generate positive interest rate

spreads with minimal administrative expense ii lower credit risk as result of the guarantees provided by Freddie

Mac and Fannie Mae iii increase liquidity and iv maintain our status as thrift for charter and income tax purposes

We invest primarily in mortgage-backed securities issued or sponsored by Freddie Mac Fannie Mae and Ginnie Mae or

private issuers for CMOs To lesser extent we also invest in securities backed by agencies of the U.S Government

such as Ginnie Mae At September 30 2010 our mortgage-backed securities portfolio totaled $264.6 million consisting

of $259.6 million available for sale at fair value and $5.0 million held to maturity at amortized cost The total mortgage-

backed securities portfolio includes CMOs of $39.4 million consisting of $38.7 million available for sale at fair value

and $729000 held to maturity at amortized cost Within this total $6.3 million at amortized cost and $6.0 fair value

were issued by private issuers including $2.3 million at amortized cost below investment grade which have

experienced no losses to date The remaining mortgage-backed securities of $225.2 million were pass-through

securities consisting of $221.0 million available for sale at fair value and $4.2 million held to maturity at amortized

cost

Mortgage-backed securities are created by pooling mortgages and issuing security collateralized by the pool of

mortgages with an interest rate that is less than the interest rate on the underlying mortgages Mortgage-backed

securities typically represent participation interest in pool of single-family or multi-family mortgages although most

of our mortgage-backed securities are collateralized by single-family mortgages The issuers of such securities

generally U.S Government agencies and government sponsored enterprises including Fannie Mae Freddie Mac and

Ginnie Mae pool and resell the participation interests in the form of securities to investors such as us and guarantee

the payment of principal and interest to these investors Investments in mortgage-backed securities involve risk in

addition to the guarantee of repayment of principal outstanding that actual prepayments will be greater or less than the

prepayment rate estimated at the time of purchase which may require adjustments to the amortization of any premium

or accretion of any discount relating to such instruments thereby affecting the net yield and duration of such securities

We review prepayment estimates for our mortgage-backed securities at purchase to ensure that prepayment assumptions

are reasonable considering the underlying collateral for the securities at issue and current interest rates and to determine

the yield and estimated maturity of the mortgage-backed securities portfolio Periodic reviews of current prepayment

speeds are performed in order to ascertain whether prepayment estimates require modification that would cause

amortization or accretion adjustments As result of our reviews we anticipated an acceleration of prepayments

Management sold $279.4 million in mortgage backed securities and realized $6.4 million in net gains on the sales Such

proceeds were reinvested in securities with yields which were lower than the recorded yields of the securities sold and

more diversified risk profile

portion of our mortgage-backed securities portfolio is invested in CMOs including Real Estate Mortgage Investment

Conduits REMICs backed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and certain private issuers CMOs and REMICs are

types of debt securities issued by special-purpose entity that aggregates pools of mortgages and mortgage-backed

securities and creates different classes of securities with varying maturities and amortization schedules as well as

residual interest with each class possessing different risk characteristics The cash flows from the underlying collateral

are generally divided into tranches or classes that have descending priorities with respect to the distribution of

principal and interest cash flows while cash flows on pass-through mortgage-backed securities are distributed pro rata

to all security holders Our practice is to limit fixed-rate CMO investments primarily to the early-to-intermediate

tranches which have the greatest cash flow stability Floating rate CMOs are purchased with emphasis on the relative

trade-offs between lifetime rate caps prepayment risk and interest rates
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Available for Sale Portfolio The following table sets forth the composition of our available for sale portfolio at the

dates indicated

September 30

2010 2009 2008

Amortized Amortized Amortized

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Dollars in thousands

Investment Securities

U.S Government securities 71071 72293 20893 21076

Federal agency obligations 344154 346019 186301 186700 30022 30041

Corporate Bonds 29406 30540 25245 25823

State and municipal securities 180879 191657 158007 167584 159334 149601

Equity securities 1146 889 1145 885 1146 1030

Total investment securities

available for sale 626656 641398 391591 402068 190502 180672

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Pass-through securities

Fannie Mae 149084 153188 238723 243063 385138 384672

Freddie Mac 56632 58452 92885 94506 189113 189989

Ginme Mae 9047 9315 26586 26929 2300 2300

CMOs and REMICs 38338 38659 66784 66017 34521 34055

Total mortgage-backed securities

available for sale 253101 259614 424978 430515 611072 611016

Total securities available for sale 879757 901012 816569 832583 801574 791688

At September 30 2010 our available for sale federal agency securities portfolio at fair value totaled $418.3 million or

13.8% of total assets Of the federal agency portfolio based on amortized cost none had maturities of one year or less

and $415.2 million had maturities of between one and ten years and weighted average yield of 1.76% The agency

securities portfolio currently includes both callable debentures and non callable debentures

At September 30 2010 our available for sale state and municipal notes securities portfolio at fair value totaled $191.7

million or 6.3% of total assets Of the state and municipal note securities portfolio based on amortized cost had $3.3

million in securities with final maturity of one year or less and weighted average yield of 1.96% $11.9 million

maturing in one to five
years

with weighted average yield of 3.33% $102.9 million maturing in five to ten years with

weighted average yield of 3.42% and $62.8 million maturing in greater than ten years with weighted average yield

of 4.12% Equity securities available for sale at September 30 2010 had fair value of $889000

At September 30 2010 $259.6 million of our available for sale mortgage-backed securities at fair value consisted of

pass-through securities which totaled 8.5 9% of total assets and $38.7 million of CMO securities at fair value The total

amortized cost of these pass- through securities was $253.1 million and consisted of $149.1 million $56.6 million and

$9.0 million of Fannie Mae Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae MBS respectively with respective weighted averages yields

of 3.43% 3.85% and 3.52% At the same date the fair value of our available for sale CMO portfolio totaled $38.7

million or 1.28% of total assets and consisted of CMOs issued by government sponsored agencies such as Fannie Mae
Freddie Mac and $6.0 million sold by private party issuers The amortized costs of these CMOs result in weighted

average yield of 2.82% We own both fixed-rate and floating-rate CMOs The underlying mortgage collateral for our

portfolio of CMOs available for sale at September 30 2010 had contractual maturities of over five years However as

with mortgage-backed pass-through securities the actual maturity of CMO may be less than its stated contractual

maturity due to prepayments of the underlying mortgages and the terms of the CMO tranche owned
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Held to Maturity Portfolio The following table sets forth the composition of our held to maturity portfolio at the dates

indicated

September 30

2010 2009 2008

Amortized Amortized Amortized

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Dollars in thousands

Investment Securities

State and municipal securities 27879 28815 37162 38055 32604 32391

Other 1000 1038 1000 1034 58 60

Total investment securities

heldtomaturity 28879 29853 38162 39089 32662 32451

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Pass-through securities

Fannie Mae 1835 1931 2713 2823 4929 4987

Freddie Mac 2389 2513 2834 2916 4297 4335

Ginnie Mae 16 17 45 45 87 89

CMOs and REMICs 729 748 860 866 1038 1037

Total mortgage-backed

securities held to maturity 4969 5209 6452 6650 10351 10448

Total securities held to

maturity 33848 35062 44614 45739 43013 42899

At September 30 2010 our held to maturity mortgage-backed securities portfolio totaled $5.0 million at amortized cost

consisting of none with contractual maturities of one year or less $839000 with weighted average yield of 5.03%

and contractual maturities within five years and $451000 with weighted average yield of 6.15% and contractual

maturities of five to ten years
and $3.7 million with weighted average yield of 2.68% with contractual maturities of

greater than ten years CMOs of $729000 are included in this portfolio While the contractual maturity of the CMOs

underlying collateral is greater than ten years
the actual period to maturity of the CMOs may be shorter due to

prepayments on the underlying mortgages and the terms of the CMO tranche owned

State and municipal securities totaled $27.9 million at amortized cost primarily unrated obligations and consisted of

$12.6 million with final maturity of one year or less and weighted average yield of 2.53% $7.9 million maturing in

one to five years with weighted average yield of 3.63% $2.1 million maturing in five to ten years with weighted

average yield of 4.55% and $5.3 million maturing in greater than ten years with weighted average yield of 4.35%
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Sources of Funds

General Deposits borrowings repayments and prepayments of loans and securities proceeds from sales of loans and

securities proceeds from maturing securities and cash flows from operations are the primary sources of our funds for

use in lending investing and for other general purposes

Deposits We offer variety of deposit accounts with
range

of interest rates and terms Our deposit accounts consist of

savings accounts NOW accounts checking accounts money market accounts club accounts certificates of deposit and

IRAs and other qualified plan accounts We provide variety of commercial checking accounts and other products for

businesses In addition we provide low-cost checking account services for low-income customers

At September 30 2010 our deposits totaled $2.1 billion Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.6 billion and non-interest-

bearing demand deposits totaled $529.9 million NOW savings and money market deposits totaled $1.2 billion at

September 30 2010 Also at that date we had total of $377.6 million in certificates of deposit of which $316.1

million had maturities of one year or less Although we have significant portion of our deposits in shorter-term

certificates of deposit our management monitors activity on these accounts and based on historical experience and our

current pricing strategy we believe we will retain large portion of such accounts upon maturity although we may
have to match competitive rates to retain many of these accounts

Our deposits are obtained predominantly from the areas in which our branch offices are located We rely on our

favorable locations customer service and competitive pricing to attract and retain these deposits While we accept

certificates of deposit in excess of $100000 for which we may provide preferential rates we do not actively solicit such

deposits as they are more difficult to retain than core deposits Our limited purpose
commercial bank subsidiary

Provident Municipal Bank accepts municipal deposits Municipal time accounts certificates of deposit are generally

obtained through bidding process and tend to carry higher average
interest rates than retail certificates of deposit of

similar term The Company had $18.6 million of certificates of deposit account registry service CDARs $7.9 million

of which were reciprocal CDs at September 30 2010 This compares to $20.6 million CDARs $10.6 million of which

were reciprocal as of September 30 2009

Distribution of Deposit Accounts by Type The following table sets forth the distribution of total deposit accounts by

account type at the dates indicated

For the year ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Dollars in thousands

Demand deposits

Retail 174731 8.2 169122 8.1 162161 8.1

Commercial municipal 355126 16.6 323112 15.5 325729 16.4

Total demand deposits 529857 24.8 492234 23.6 487890 24.5

Business municipal NOW deposits 276100 12.9 225046 10.8 217462 10.9

Personal NOW deposits 139517 6.5 127595 6.1 115442 5.8

Savings deposits 392321 18.3 357814 17.2 335986 16.9

Moneymarketdeposits 427334 19.9 384632 18.5 306504 15.4

Subtotal 1765129 82.4 1587321 76.2 1463284 73.5

Certificates of deposit 377573 17.6 494961 23.8 525913 26.5

Total deposits 2142702 100.0 2082282 100.0 1989197 100.0
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As of September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 the Company had $513.8 million and $470.2 million respectively

in municipal deposits Of these amounts $219.0 million and $201.0 million were deposits related to school district tax

deposits due on September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively which we generally retain only for short period The

following table sets forth the distribution of average deposit accounts by account category with the
average

rates paid at

the dates indicated

September 30

Non interest bearing deposits 429655

NOW
deposits 280304 579

Savings depositsl 397760 403

Money market deposits 419152 1456

Certificates of deposit 451509 6079

Total interest bearing deposits 1548725 8517

Total deposits 1978380

Includes club accounts and mortgage escrow balances

Average Rate Average Average Rate

Paid Balance interest Paid

Dollars in thousands

351995

189524 1015

356854 1243

285119 5299

556973 20787

1388470 28344

1740465

Certificates of Deposit by Interest Rate Range The following table sets forth information concerning certificates of

deposit by interest rate ranges at the dates indicated

Interest Rate Range

At September 30 2010

Period to Maturity

Less than One to Two Two to More than

One Year Years Three Years Three Years Total

Dollars in thousands

Total 316096 26844 13273 23360 379573 100% 494961 525913

Certificates of Deposit by Time to Maturity The following table sets forth certificates of deposit by time remaining

until maturity as of September 30 2010

87746 72245

35168 28756

122914 101001

Total

271856

105717

377573

The weighted interest rates for these accounts by maturity period are 0.65% for months or less 0.79% for to months

0.95% for to 12 months and 2.87% for over 12 months The overall weighted average interest rate for accounts of$l00000

or more was 1.12%

Average

Balance interest

2010 2009

Average

Balance

Average

Interest Rate Paid

380571$

0.21% 232164 670

0.10% 366355 758

0.35% 374507 2707

1.35% 577723 14240

0.55% 1550749 18375

1931320

0.29%

0.2 1%

0.72%

2.46%

1.18%

0.54%

0.35%

1.86%

3.73%

2.04%

Percent of Total at September 30

Total 2009 2008

2.00%andbelow 303066 14237 3927 220 321450 84.7% 322674 5869

2.01% to 3.00% 4531 4712 1168 10850 21261 5.6% 72483 422672

3.01%to4.00% 5854 4208 2554 6476 19092 5.0% 77720 28556

4.01% to 5.00% 2491 3501 5309 5814 17115 4.5% 21439 66726

5.0l%to6.00% 154 186 315 655 0.2% 645 2080

6.0 1% and above 0.0% 10

3monthsor Over3to6

Certificates of deposit less than $100000

Certificates of deposit of$ 100000 or more

Maturity

Over6tol2 Overl2

Less Months Months Months

Dollars in thousands

68516

23665

92181

43349

18128

61477
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Short-term Borrowings Our short-term borrowings less than one year consist of advances and overnight

borrowings At September 30 2010 we had access to additional Federal Home Loan Bank advances of up to an

additional $200 million in overnight advances on collateralized basis The following table sets forth information

concerning balances and interest rates on our short-term borrowings at the dates and for the years indicated

At or For the Years Ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Balance at end of year 44873 62677 153893

Average balance during year 91442 91985 257942

Maximum outstanding at any month end 184040 293608 372021

Weighted average interest rate at end of year 382/ 4.09/a l6/

Weighted average interest rate during year 2.33% 3.38% 3.50%

Competition

We face significant competition in both originating loans and attracting deposits The New York metropolitan area has

high concentration of financial institutions many of which are significantly larger institutions with greater fmancial

resources than us and many of which are our competitors to varying degrees Our competition for loans comes

principally from commercial banks savings banks mortgage banking companies credit unions insurance companies

and other financial service companies Our most direct competition for deposits has historically come from

commercial banks savings banks and credit unions We face additional competition for deposits from non-depository

competitors such as the mutual fund industry securities and brokerage firms and insurance companies We have

emphasized personalized banking and the advantage of local decision-making in our banking business and this

strategy appears to have been well received in our market area We do not rely on any individual group or entity for

material portion of our deposits Although we have not done so in the past net interest income could be adversely

affected should competitive pressures cause us to increase our interest rates paid on deposits in order to maintain our

market share

Employees

As of September 30 2010 we had 497 full-time employees and 106 part-time employees The employees are not

represented by collective bargaining unit and we consider our relationship with our employees to be good

24



Regulation

General

As savings and loan holding company Provident Bancorp and its federal savings bank subsidiary Provident Bank

are supervised and regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision OTS As state-chartered insured bank

Provident Municipal Bank is regulated by the New York State Department of Banking and the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation FDIC Because it is an FDIC-insured institution Provident Bank also is subject to

regulation by the FDIC Provident Banks relationship with its depositors and borrowers is governed to great

extent by both federal and state laws especially in matters concerning the ownership of deposit accounts and the

form and content of Provident Banks loan documents As regulated fmancial services firm our relationships and

good standing with regulators are of fundamental importance to the continuation and growth of our businesses The

OTS FDIC SEC and other regulators have broad enforcement powers and powers to approve deny or refuse to

act upon our applications or notices to conduct new activities acquire or divest businesses or assets or reconfigure

existing operations

Certain federal banking laws have been recently amended by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act the Dodd-Frank Act See RegulationFinancial Reform Legislation below Among the more

significant changes made by the Dodd-Frank Act changes effective July 21 2011 with possible delay of up to six

months the so-called Designated Transfer Date the OTS will cease to exist as separate entity and will be

merged and become separate division of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency 0CC The 0CC will

assume the OTS role as regulator and supervisor of Provident Bank The Federal Reserve will become the primary

supervisor and regulator with respect to Provident Bancorp References in the following discussion to the OTS

should be read to mean the Federal Reserve or 0CC as appropriate once the Designated Transfer Date occurs

Some of the numerous governmental regulations to which Provident Bancorp and its subsidiaries are subject are

summarized below These summaries are not complete and you should refer to these laws and regulations for more

information Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could result in range of sanctions and

enforcement actions including the imposition of civil money penalties formal agreements and cease and desist

orders Applicable laws and regulations may change in the future and any such change could have material

adverse impact on Provident Bancorp Provident Bank or Provident Municipal Bank

In addition Provident Bancorp and its subsidiaries are subject to examination by regulators which results in

examination reports and ratings which are not publicly available that can impact the conduct and growth of our

businesses These examinations consider not only compliance with applicable laws and regulations but also capital

levels asset quality and risk management ability and performance earnings liquidity and various other factors An
examination downgrade by any of our federal bank regulators potentially can result in the imposition of significant

limitations on our activities and growth These regulatory agencies generally have broad discretion to impose

restrictions and limitations on the operations of regulated entity where the agencies determine among other things

that such operations are unsafe or unsound fail to comply with applicable law or are otherwise inconsistent with

laws and regulations or with the supervisory policies of these agencies This supervisory framework could materially

impact the conduct growth and profitability of our operations

Holding Company Regulation

Provident Bancorp is unitary savings and loan holding company because it owns only one savings association

The OTS has supervisory and enforcement authority over Provident Bancorp and its non-bank subsidiaries Among
other things this authority permits the OTS to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to be risk to

Provident Bank

Provident Bancorp must generally limit its activities to those permissible for financial holding companies under

the Bank Holding Company Act or ii multiple savings and loan holding companies under the Savings and Loan

Holding Company Act Activities in which financial holding company may engage are those considered fmancial

in nature or those incidental or complementary to financial activities These activities include lending trust and

investment advisory activities insurance agency activities and securities and insurance underwriting activities
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Activities permitted to multiple savings and loan holding companies include certain real estate investment activities

and other activities permitted to bank holding companies under the Bank Holding Company Act

Federal law prohibits Provident Bancorp directly or indirectly or through one or more subsidiaries from acquiring

control of another savings association or savings and loan holding company without prior written approval of the

OTS It also prohibits the acquisition or retention of with specified exceptions more than 5% of the voting shares of

savings association or savings and loan holding company that is not already subsidiary without prior written

approval of the OTS In evaluating applications for acquisition the OTS must consider the financial and managerial

resources and future prospects of the company and association involved the effect of the acquisition on the

association the risk to the Deposit Insurance Fund the convenience and needs of the community to be served and

competitive factors

As public company with securities registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Provident Bancorp also

is subject to that statute and to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Dividends

Provident Bancorp is legal entity separate and distinct from its savings association and other subsidiaries and its

principal sources of funds are cash dividends paid by these subsidiaries OTS regulations limit the amount of capital

distributions including cash dividends stock repurchases and other transactions charged to the institutions capital

account that can be made by Provident Bank Furthermore because Provident Bank is subsidiary of holding

company it must file notice with the OTS at least 30 days before Provident Banks Board of Directors declares

dividend or approves capital distribution This notice may be denied if the OTS finds that

the savings association would be undercapitalized or worse following the distribution

the proposed capital distribution raises safety and soundness concerns

or the capital distribution would violate prohibition contained in any statute regulation agreement with the

OTS or OTS-imposed condition

Provident Bank must file an application rather than notice with the OTS if among other things the total amount

of all capital distributions including the proposed distribution for the calendar year exceeds the institutions net

income for that year plus retained net income for the preceding two years

As of October 2010 the maximum amount of dividends that could be declared by Provident Bank for fiscal 2011
without regulatory approval is net income for calendar year 2011 plus $16.2 million

Capital Requirements

As savings and loan holding company Provident Bancorp is not currently subject to any regulatory capital

requirements However as federal savings association Provident Bank is subject to OTS capital requirements

The OTS regulations require savings associations to meet three minimum capital standards at least an 8% risk-

based capital ratio 4% leverage ratio 3% for institutions receiving the highest supervisory rating and at least

1.5% tangible capital ratio

The OTS risk-based capital standards require savings association to maintain at least Tier core capital ratio

to risk-weighted assets of at least 4% and total core plus supplementary capital ratio to risk-weighted assets of at

least 8% To determine these ratios the regulations define core capital as common stockholders equity including

retained earnings certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus and minority interests in

equity accounts of fully consolidated subsidiaries less intangible capital other than certain mortgage servicing

rights and credit card relationships Supplementary capital is defined as including cumulative perpetual preferred

stock mandatory convertible securities subordinated debt intermediate preferred stock allowance for loan and

lease losses up to maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets and up to 45% of net unrealized gains on available

for-sale equity securities with readily determinable fair market values The amount of supplementary capital

included as part of total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital In determining the amount of risk-weighted

assets all assets including certain off-balance sheet assets are multiplied by risk-weight factor ranging from 0%
to 100% assigned by the OTS capital regulation based on the risks inherent in the type of asset
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The OTS leverage ratio is defined as the ratio of core capital to adjusted total assets The tangible capital ratio is

defmed as the ratio of tangible capital the components of which are very
similar to those of core capital to adjusted

total assets

As an FDIC-insured bank Provident Municipal Bank is subject to the risk-based capital and leverage capital

requirements of the FDIC These requirements are similar to the OTS risk-based capital and leverage capital

requirements described above

The Dodd-Frank Act contains number of provisions that will affect the capital requirements applicable to

Provident Bank and to Provident Bancorp including the requirement that thrift holding companies be subject to

consolidated capital requirements effective on the Designated Transfer Date See Regulation--Financial Reform

Legislation below In addition on September 12 2010 the Basel Committee adopted the Basel III capital rules

These rules which will be phased in over period of years set new standards for common equity Tier and total

capital determined on risk-weighted basis The impact on Provident Bank and Provident Bancorp of the Dodd-

Frank requirements and the Basel III rules cannot be determined at this time

The OTS the FDIC and other federal banking agencies have broad powers under current federal law to take prompt

corrective action in connection with depository institutions that do not meet minimum capital requirements For

this purpose the law establishes five capital categories for insured depository institution well-capitalized

adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized To

be considered well capitalized an institution must maintain total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater

Tier risk-based capital ratio of 6% or greater leverage capital ratio of 5% or greater and not be subject to any

order or written directive to meet and maintain specific capital level for any capital measure An adequately

capitalized institution must have Tier capital ratio of at least 4% total capital ratio of at least 8% and

leverage capital ratio of at least 4%

If an institution fails to meet these capital requirements progressively more severe restrictions are placed on the

institutions operations management and capital distributions depending on the capital category in which an

institution is placed Any institution that is adequately capitalized is absent waiver from the FDIC prohibited

from accepting or renewing brokered deposits Any institution that is determined to be undercapitalized

significantly undercapitalized or critically undercapitalized is required to raise additional capital and may not

accept or renew brokered deposits In addition numerous mandatory supervisory actions become immediately

applicable to the insured depository institution including but not limited to restrictions on growth investment

activities capital distributions and affiliate transactions The federal banking agencies also may take any one of

number of discretionary supervisory actions against undercapitalized institutions including the replacement of

senior executive officers and directors The agencies also may appoint receiver or conservator for savings

association that is critically undercapitalized

At September 30 2010 the capital of Provident Bank and Provident Municipal Bank exceeded all applicable capital

requirements and each met the requirements to be treated as well-capitalized institution

Deposit Insurance

The FDIC insures deposit accounts in Provident Bank and Provident Municipal Bank generally up to maximum of

$250000 per separately-insured depositor As FDIC-insured depository institutions Provident Bank and Provident

Municipal Bank are required to pay deposit insurance premiums based on the risk each institution poses to the

Deposit Insurance Fund Currently the annual FDIC assessment rate ranges
from $0.05 to $0.43 per $100 of

insured deposits based on the institutions relative risk to the Deposit Insurance Fund as measured by the

institutions regulatory capital position and other supervisory factors The FDIC also has the authority to raise or

lower assessment rates on insured deposits subject to limits and to impose special additional assessments

Under the FDICs Temporary Liquidity Guaranty Program TLGP non-interest bearing transaction deposit

accounts interestbearing transaction accounts paying 25 basis points or less and IOLTA accounts may be fully

insured above and beyond the $250000 limit through December 31 2010 Provident Bank and Provident Municipal

Bank each opted out of the TLGP for the period of July 2010 through December 31 2010 The Dodd-Frank Act

requires federal deposit insurance coverage for non-interest bearing transaction deposit accounts at an unlimited
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amount from December 31 2010 through December 31 2012 However interest-bearing transaction accounts

paying 25 basis points or less and IOLTA accounts will no longer be insured after December 31 2010 beyond the

$250000 limit

In February 2009 the FDIC substantially increased the quarterly initial base assessment rates as of the second

quarter of 2009 In May 2009 the FDIC imposed basis point special assessment on each institutions assets

excluding Tier capital as reported on the institutions report of condition as of June 30 2009 up to maximum

special assessment amount of one tenth of one percent of the institutions assessment base for the second quarter

2009 risk-based assessment As of December 31 2009 insured depository institutions were required to prepay
their

estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 2011 and 2012

together with their quarterly risk-based assessment for the third quarter of 2009

On October 19 2010 the Board of Directors of the FDIC adopted new Restoration Plan to ensure that the DIF

reserve ratio reaches 1.35% by September 30 2020 as required by the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of

2005 Reform Act Among other things the Restoration Plan provides that the FDIC will forego the uniform

three basis point increase in initial assessment rates that was previously scheduled to take effect on January 2011

and will maintain the current assessment rate schedule for all insured depository institutions until the reserve ratio

reaches 1.15% The FDIC intends to pursue further rulemaking in 2011 regarding the requirement under the Reform

Act that the FDIC offset the effect on institutions with less than $10 billion in assets such as the Bank of the

requirement that the reserve ratio reach 1.35% by September 30 2020 rather than 1.15% by the end of 2016 as

required under the prior restoration plan so that more of the cost of raising the reserve ratio to 1.35% will be borne

by institutions with more than $10 billion in assets Implementation of the Restoration Plan is not expected to have

material effect upon the Companys consolidated operating results

The Dodd-Frank Act also broadens the base for FDIC insurance assessments Assessments will now be based on the

average
consolidated total assets less tangible equity capital of financial institution This could result in an

increase in deposit insurance assessments to be paid by Provident Bank This change will be effective for the fiscal

quarter beginning April 2011

In addition the FDIC collects funds from insured institutions sufficient to pay interest on debt obligations of the

Financing Corporation FICO FICO is government-sponsored entity that was formed to borrow the money

necessary to carry out the closing and ultimate disposition of failed thrift institutions by the Resolution Trust

Corporation

For the quarter ended September 30 2010 the annualized FICO assessment was equal to $0.0l04 for each $100 of

insured domestic deposits maintained at an institution We were allocated $5000 in DIF assessment credits as of

January 2010 There were no remaining DIF assessment credits at September 30 2010

Regulation of Provident Bank

Business Activities As federal savings association Provident Bank derives its deposit lending and investment

powers from the Home Owners Loan Act the HOLA and the regulations of the OTS Under these laws and

regulations Provident Bank may offer any type of deposit accounts make or invest in mortgage loans secured by

residential and commercial real estate make and invest in commercial and consumer loans certain types of debt

securities and certain other loans and assets subject in certain cases to certain limits Provident Bank also may

establish and operate subsidiaries that engage in activities permissible for Provident Bank as well as service

corporation subsidiaries that engage in activities not permissible for Provident Bank to engage
in directly such as

real estate investment and securities and insurance brokerage Pursuant to this authority Provident Bank operates

certain subsidiaries including Provest Services Corp which holds an investment in limited partnership
that

operates an assisted living facility Provest Services Corp II through which Provident Bank offers annuities and

insurance products to its customers Provident Bank also controls Provident REIT Inc and WSB Funding to hold

residential and commercial real estate loans and the Bank maintains several corporations which hold foreclosed

properties acquired by Provident Bank Certain of Provident Banks subsidiaries are subject to separate regulatory

requirements such as those applicable to insurance agencies and investment advisors Hardenburgh Abstract

Company Inc title insurance agency Provident Risk Management Inc captive insurance company insuring
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Provident affiliated risk and Hudson Valley Investment Advisors LLC an investment advisory firm are

subsidiaries of Provident New York Bancorp

Qualzfled Thrfl Lender Test As federal savings association Provident Bank must meet the qualified thrift lender

QTL test Under the QTL test Provident Bank must maintain at least 65% of its portfolio assets in qualified

thrift investments in at least nine months of the most recent 12-month period Portfolio assets generally means

total assets of savings association less the sum of certain specified liquid assets goodwill and other intangible

assets and the value of property used in the conduct of the savings associations business Qualified thrift

investments are primarily mortgage loans and securities and other investments related to housing home equity

loans credit card loans education loans and other consumer loans up to certain percentage of assets Provident

Bank also may satisfy the QTL test by qualifying as domestic building and loan association as defined in the

Internal Revenue Code of 1986 If Provident Bank were to fail the QTL test it would be required to either convert

to bank charter or operate under specified restrictions

At September 30 2010 Provident Bank maintained approximately 77.1% of its portfolio assets in qualified thrift

investments and satisfied the QTL test

Loans to One Borrower Provident Bank generally may not make loans or extend credit to single or related group

of borrowers in excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus An additional amount may be loaned up to 10%

of unimpaired capital and surplus if the loan is secured by readily marketable collateral which generally does not

include real estate As of September 30 2010 Provident Bank was in compliance with the loans-to-one-borrower

limitations

Transactions with Affiliates Provident Bank currently is subject to restrictions on transactions with affiliates that

are the same as those applicable to commercial banks under Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act as

well as certain additional restrictions imposed on federal savings associations by the Home Owners Loan Act The

term affiliate under these laws means any company that controls or is under common control with savings

association and includes Provident Bancorp and its non-bank subsidiaries Transactions between Provident Bank

and certain affiliates are restricted to an aggregate percentage of Provident Banks capital and in general must be

collateralized with certain specified assets The Home Owners Loan Act further prohibits savings association

from lending to any affiliate that is engaged in activities not permissible for bank holding company and from

purchasing or investing in securities issued by any affiliate other than with respect to shares of subsidiary

Permissible transactions with affiliates must be on terms that are as favorable to the savings association as

comparable transactions with non-affiliates

Provident Bank also is restricted in its ability to extend credit to its directors executive officers and 10%

shareholders as well as to entities controlled by such persons to the same extent as such restrictions apply to

commercial banks Extensions of credit to insiders must be made on terms that are substantially the same as and

follow credit underwriting procedures that are not less stringent than those prevailing for comparable transactions

with unaffiliated persons ii not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable

features and iiinot exceed certain limitations on the amount of credit extended to such persons individually and

in the aggregate In addition extensions of credit in excess of certain limits must be approved by Provident Banks

Board of Directors

The Dodd-Frank Act imposes further restrictions on transactions with affiliates and extensions of credit to executive

officers director and principal shareholders by among other things expanding the types of transactions covered by

the law to include securities lending repurchase agreement and derivatives activities with affiliates These changes

are effective one year after the Designated Transfer Date See Regulation--Financial Reform Legislation

Safety and Soundness Regulations Federal law requires each federal banking agency to prescribe certain safety

and soundness standards for all insured depository institutions These standards relate to among other things

internal controls information systems and audit systems loan documentation credit underwriting interest rate risk

exposure asset growth compensation and other operational and managerial standards as the agency deems

appropriate The federal banking agencies adopted Interagency Guidelines Establishing Standards for Safety and

Soundness to implement the safety and soundness requirements of federal law The guidelines set forth the safety

and soundness standards that the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository
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institutions before capital becomes impaired If the appropriate federal banking agency determines that an institution

fails to meet any standard prescribed by the guidelines the agency may require the institution to submit to the

agency an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard If deficiency persists the agency must issue an

order that requires the institution to correct the deficiency in addition to taking other statutorily-mandated or

discretionary actions

Enforcement The OTS has primary enforcement responsibility over federal savings associations such as Provident

Bank and has the authority to bring enforcement action against all institution-affiliated parties including

controlling stockholders and attorneys appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in

wrongful action likely to have significant adverse effect on an insured institution Formal enforcement action may

range
from the issuance of capital directive or cease and desist order to removal of officers or directors of the

institution receivership conservatorship or the termination of deposit insurance Civil money penalties may be

imposed for wide range of violations and actions The FDIC also has the authority to recommend to the Director of

the OTS that enforcement action be taken with respect to particular savings association If action is not taken by

the OTS the FDIC has authority to take action under specified circumstances

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Laws All savings associations have responsibility under the

Community Reinvestment Act CRA and related regulations of the OTS to help meet the credit needs of their

communities including low-and moderate-income neighborhoods consistent with safe and sound operations The

OTS is required to assess the savings associations record of compliance with the CRA and to assign one of four

possible ratings to an institutions CRA performance including outstanding satisfactory needs to improve

and substantial noncompliance The Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act also prohibit lenders

from discriminating in their lending practices on the basis of characteristics specified in those statutes savings

associations failure to comply with the provisions of the CRA could at minimum result in regulatory restrictions

on its activities The failure to comply with the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act could result

in enforcement actions by the OTS as well as other federal regulatory agencies and the Department of Justice

Provident Bank received an outstanding Community Reinvestment Act rating in its most recent federal

examination

Federal Home Loan Bank System Provident Bank is member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System which

consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks The Federal Home Loan Bank System provides central credit

facility primarily for member institutions As member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York Provident

Bank is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York in an

amount at least equal to of the aggregate principal amount of its unpaid residential mortgage loans and similar

obligations at the beginning of each year or 1/20 of its borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank whichever is

greater As of September 30 2010 Provident Bank was in compliance with this requirement

Other Regulations Provident Bank is subject to federal consumer protection statutes and regulations promulgated

under these laws including but not limited to the

Truth-In-Lending Act governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers Home Mortgage Disclosure

Act requiring financial institutions to provide certain information about home mortgage and refinanced loans

Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race creed or other prohibited factors in

extending credit

Fair Credit Reporting Act governing the provision of consumer information to credit reporting agencies and the

use of consumer information

Fair Debt Collection Act governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by collection

agencies and

Electronic Funds Transfer Act governing automatic deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts and

customers rights and liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines and other electronic banking

services

Provident Bank also is subject to federal laws protecting the confidentiality of consumer financial records and

limiting the ability of the institution to share non-public personal information with third parties
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Finally Provident Bank is subject to extensive anti-money laundering provisions and requirements which require

the institution to have in place comprehensive customer identification program and an anti-money laundering

program and procedures These laws and regulations also prohibit financial institutions from engaging in business

with foreign shell banks require financial institutions to have due diligence procedures and in some cases

enhanced due diligence procedures for foreign correspondent and private banking accounts and improve

information sharing between financial institutions and the U.S government Provident Bank has established policies

and procedures intended to comply with these provisions

Recent Regulatory Initiatives

Capital Purchase Program Under the Capital Purchase Program CPP announced by the U.S Department of

the Treasury on October 14 2008 as part of the Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP Treasury committed to

invest up to $250 billion in eligible institutions in the form of non-voting senior preferred stock Treasury approved

the purchase up to $58.4 million of Provident Bancorp non-voting preferred stock but the Company decided not to

participate in the program

TLGP Provident Bancorp and Provident Bank decided to opt-out of the TLGP effective July 2010 As result

Provident Banks non-interest-bearing transaction deposits accounts such as business checking accounts and

interest bearing transaction accounts and IOLTA accounts will be fully insured up to $250000 from July 2010

through December 30 2010 From December 31 2010 through December 31 2012 only non-interest bearing

transaction deposit accounts will be fully insured beyond the $250000 limit under the Dodd-Frank Act Beginning

January 2013 deposit insurance coverage
for non-interest bearing transaction deposit accounts will be limited to

$250000

In addition the FDIC has guaranteed all newly issued senior unsecured debt e.g promissory notes unsubordinated

unsecured notes and commercial paper up to prescribed limits issued by participating entities between October 14

2008 and October 31 2009 For eligible debt issued by that date the FDIC will provide the guarantee coverage until

the earlier of the maturity date of the debt or December 31 2012 Provident Bank issued $51.5 million senior

unsecured debt in pooled security in February 2009 This debt matures in February 2012 Provident prepaid $1.00

of insurance premiums for each $100 on per annum basis of debt that was guaranteed Additionally the FDIC

previously established an emergency debt guarantee facility through April 30 2010 through which institutions that

are unable to issue non-guaranteed debt to replace maturing senior unsecured debt because of market disruptions or

other circumstances beyond their control may apply on case-by-case basis to issue FDIC-guaranteed senior

unsecured debt The FDIC guarantee
of any debt issued under this emergency facility would expire the earlier of the

maturity date or December 31 2012 and the guarantee would be subject to an annualized assessment rate equal to

minimum of 300 basis points

Financial Reform Legislation

On July 21 2010 the President signed the Dodd-Frank Act into law This new law will significantly change the

current bank regulatory structure and affect the lending deposit investment trading and operating activities of

financial institutions and their holding companies including Provident Bancorp and Provident Bank It requires

various federal agencies to adopt broad range
of new implementing rules and regulations and to prepare numerous

studies and reports for Congress The federal agencies are given significant discretion in drafting the implementing

rules and regulations and consequently many of the details and much of the impact of the Act may not be known

for many months or years

One change that is particularly significant to Provident Bancorp and Provident Bank is the abolition of the OTS
their historical federal financial institution regulator Currently this is scheduled to occur on the Designated

Transfer Date which has been established as July 21 2011 with the possibility of six-month extension After the

agency is abolished supervision and regulation of Provident Bancorp will move to the Federal Reserve and

supervision and regulation of Provident Bank will move to the 0CC Except as described below however the laws

and regulations applicable to Provident Bancorp and Provident Bank will not generally change -- the HOLA and the

regulations issued under the Act will generally still apply although these laws and regulations will be interpreted by

the Federal Reserve and the 0CC respectively
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The Dodd-Frank Act contains number of provisions intended to strengthen capital For example the federal

banking agencies are directed to establish minimum leverage and risk-based capital that are at least as stringent as

those currently in effect The regulations implementing these rules are to be finalized not later than January 22 2012

although they are not applicable to savings and loan holding companies like the Provident Bancorp until July 21
2015 In addition Provident Bancorp for the first time will be subject to consolidated capital requirements and will

be required to serve as source of strength to Provident Bank

The Dodd-Frank Act also expands the affiliate transaction rules in Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act

to broaden the definition of affiliate and to apply to securities lending repurchase agreement and derivatives

activities that Provident Bank may have with an affiliate as well as to strengthen collateral requirements and limit

Federal Reserve exemptive authority Also the defmition of extension of credit for transactions with executive

officers directors and principal shareholders is being expanded to include credit exposure arising from derivative

transaction repurchase or reverse repurchase agreement and securities lending or borrowing transaction These

expansions will be effective one year after the Designated Transfer Date At this time we do not anticipate that being

subject to any of these provisions will have material effect on Provident Bancorp or Provident Bank

The Dodd-Frank Act also contains provisions that expand the insurance assessment base and increase the scope of

deposit insurance coverage See Regulation--Deposit Insurance

The Dodd-Frank Act will require publicly traded companies to give stockholders non-binding vote on executive

compensation and so-called golden parachute payments and authorizes the Securities and Exchange Commission

to promulgate rules that would allow stockholders to nominate their own candidates for election as directors using

companys proxy materials The legislation also directs the federal financial institution regulatory agencies to

promulgate rules prohibiting excessive compensation being paid to financial institution executives

The Dodd-Frank Act also creates new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau that will take over responsibility as

of the Designated Transfer Date of the principal federal consumer protection laws such as the Truth in Lending Act
the Equal Credit Opportunity Act the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act and the Truth in Saving Act among
others Institutions that have assets of $10 billion or less such as the Bank will continue to be supervised in this

area by their primary federal regulators in the case of Provident Bank the OTS until it is abolished and then the

0CC The Act also gives the CFPB expanded data collecting powers for fair lending purposes
for both small

business and mortgage loans as well as expanded authority to prevent unfair deceptive and abusive practices The

consumer complaint function also will be consolidated into the CFPB The Dodd-Frank Act also narrows the scope
of federal preemption of state laws related to federally chartered institutions including federal savings banks As

result it is likely the Bank would be subject to wider array of State laws going forward In addition the Federal

Reserve is required to adopt rule addressing interchange fees applicable to debit card transactions that is expected

to lower fee income generated from this source

Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will not become effective until the Designated Transfer Date or after

and if required the adoption and effectiveness of implementing regulations In addition the scope and impact of

many of the Dodd-Frank Acts provisions will be determined through the rulemaking process As result we
cannot predict the ultimate impact of the Act on Provident Bancorp or Provident Bank at this time including the

extent to which it could increase costs or limit our ability to pursue business opportunities in an efficient manner or

otherwise adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations Nor can we predict the impact

or substance of other future legislation or regulation However it is expected that they at minimum will increase

our operating and compliance costs
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ITEM 1A Risk Factors

Financial reform legislation will among other things eliminate the OTS tighten capital standards create new Consumer

Financial Protection Bureau and result in new laws and regulations that may increase our costs of operations

The Dodd-Frank Act will significantly change the current bank regulatory structure and affect the lending deposit investment trading

and operating activities of fmancial institutions and their holding companies It requires various federal agencies to adopt broad

range of new implementing rules and regulations and to prepare numerous studies and reports for Congress The federal agencies are

given significant discretion in drafting the implementing rules and regulations and consequently many of the details and much of the

impact of the Dodd-Frank Act may not be known for many months or years

One change that is particularly significant to us is the abolition of the OTS our historical federal fmancial institution regulator

effective on the Designated Transfer Date After the agency is abolished supervision and regulation of Provident Bancorp will move

to the Federal Reserve and supervision and regulation of Provident Bank will move to the 0CC Except as described below however

the laws and regulations applicable to us will not generally change -- the Home Owners Loan Act and the regulations issued under the

Dodd-Frank Act will generally still apply although these laws and regulations will be interpreted by the Federal Reserve and the

0CC respectively However the application of the laws and regulations may vary as administered by the Federal Reserve and the

0CC It is possible that the 0CC may rate the activities of Provident Bank in ways that are more restrictive than the OTS has This

might cause us to incur increased costs or become more restrictive in certain activities than we have in the past We cannot now

predict the effect if any of the change in regulators on Provident Bank

In addition Provident Bancorp for the first time will be subject to consolidated capital requirements and will be required to serve as

source of strength to Provident Bank The specific requirements are not now known although it is possible such requirements may

limit our capacity to pay dividends or repurchase shares Provident Bank also will be subject to the same lending limits as national

banks In addition the affiliate transaction rules in Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act will apply to securities lending repurchase

agreement and derivatives activities that Provident Bank may have with an affiliate

The Dodd-Frank Act also broadens the base for FDIC insurance assessments Assessments will now be based on the average

consolidated total assets less tangible equity capital of fmancial institution This could result in an increase in deposit insurance

assessments to be paid by Provident Bank The Dodd-Frank Act also permanently increases the maximum amount of deposit

insurance for banks savings institutions and credit unions to $250000 per depositor retroactive to January 2008 Non-interest

bearing transaction accounts will have unlimited deposit insurance beginning December 31 2010 through December 31 2012

The Dodd-Frank Act creates new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau to take over responsibility for the principal federal

consumer protection laws such as the Truth in Lending Act the Equal Credit Opportunity Act the Real Estate Settlement Procedures

Act and the Truth in Savings Act among others Institutions such as Provident Bank which have assets of $10 billion or less will

continue to be supervised in this area by their primary federal regulators in the case of Provident Bank the OTS until it is abolished

and then the 0CC The Federal Reserve will also be adopting rule addressing interchange fees for debit card transactions that is

expected to lower fee income generated from this source Although technically this rule will only apply to institutions with assets in

excess of $10 billion it is expected that smaller institutions such as Provident Bank may also be impacted

In addition the Dodd-Frank Act significantly rolls back the federal preemption of state consumer protection laws that is currently

enjoyed by federal savings associations and national banks by requiring that state consumer financial law prevent or significantly

interfere with the exercise of federal savings associations or national banks powers before it can be preempted mandating that

any preemption decision be made on case by case basis rather than blanket rule and ending the applicability of preemption to

subsidiaries and affiliates of national banks and federal savings associations As result we may now be subject to state consumer

protection laws in each state where we do business and those laws may be interpreted and enforced differently in different states

Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will not become effective until year or more after its enactment and if required the

adoption and effectiveness of implementing regulations In addition the scope and impact of many of the Dodd-Frank Acts

provisions will be determined through the rulemaking process As result we cannot predict the ultimate impact of the Dodd-Frank

Act on us at this time including the extent to which it could increase costs or limit our ability to pursue business opportunities in an

efficient maimer or otherwise adversely affect our business fmancial condition and results of operations However it is expected that

at minimum they will increase our operating and compliance costs
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Difficult market conditions have adversely affected our industry

We are operating in challenging economic environment including generally uncertain national and local conditions Financial

institutions continue to be affected by declines in the real estate market and constrained financial markets Declines in the housing

market over the past two years with falling home prices and increasing foreclosure unemployment and under-employment have

negatively impacted the credit performance of mortgage loans and resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by financial

institutions including government-sponsored entities as well as major commercial and investment banks These write-downs initially

of mortgage-backed securities but spreading to credit default swaps and other derivative and cash securities in turn have caused many
financial institutions to seek additional capital to merge with larger and stronger institutions and in some cases to fail Reflecting

concern about the stability of the financial markets generally and the strength of counterparties many lenders and institutional

investors have reduced or ceased providing funding to borrowers including to other financial institutions This tightening of credit

has led to an increased level of commercial and consumer delinquencies lack of consumer confidence increased market volatility and

reduction of business activity generally The resulting economic pressure on consumers and lack of confidence in the financial

markets has adversely affected our business financial condition and results of operations worsening of these conditions would

likely exacerbate the adverse effects of these market conditions on us and others in the financial services industry In particular we

may face the following risks in connection with these events

Loan delinquencies could increase further

Problem assets and foreclosures could increase further

Demand for our products and services could decline

Collateral for loans made by us especially real estate could decline further in value in turn reducing customers borrowing

power and reducing the value of assets and collateral associated with our loans and

Investments in mortgage-backed securities could decline in value as result of performance of the underlying loans or the

diminution of the value of the underlying real estate collateral

An inadequate allowance for loan losses would negatively impact our results of operations

We are exposed to the risk that our customers will be unable to repay their loans according to their terms and that any collateral

securing the payment of their loans will not be sufficient to avoid losses Credit losses are inherent in the lending business and could

have material adverse effect on our operating results Volatility and deterioration in the broader economy may also increase our risk

of credit losses The determination of an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses is an inherently uncertain process and is based

on numerous assumptions The amount of future losses is susceptible to changes in economic operating and other conditions

including changes in interest rates that may be beyond our control and charge-offs may exceed current estimates We evaluate the

collectability of our loan portfolio and provide an allowance for loan losses that we believe is adequate based upon such factors as

including but not limited to the risk characteristics of various classifications of loans previous loan loss experience specific loans

that have loss potential delinquency trends the estimated fair market value of the collateral current economic conditions the views

of our regulators and geographic and industry loan concentrations If any of our evaluations are incorrect and borrower defaults result

in losses exceeding our allowance for loan losses our results of operations could be significantly and adversely affected We cannot

assure you that our allowance will be adequate to cover probable loan losses inherent in our portfolio

The need to account for assets at market prices may adversely affect our results of operations

We report certain assets including investments and securities at fair value Generally for assets that are reported at fair value we use

quoted market prices or valuation models that utilize market data inputs to estimate fair value Because we carry these assets on our

books at their fair value we may incur losses even if the asset in question presents minimal credit risk We may be required to

recognize other-than-temporary impairments in future periods with respect to securities in our portfolio The amount and timing of

any impairment recognized will depend on the severity and duration of the decline in fair value of the securities and our estimation of

the anticipated recovery period

Acquisition development and construction AD loans commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans expose us to

increased risk

We consider our commercial real estate loans commercial and industrial loans and ADC loans to be the higher risk categories in our

loan portfolio These loans are particularly sensitive to economic conditions At September 30 2010 our portfolio of commercial

real estate loans totaled $582.0 million or 34.2% of total loans our commercial and industrial business loan portfolio totaled $240.7

million or 14.1% of total loans and our portfolio of ADC loans totaled $229.5 million or 13.5% of total loans We plan to continue to
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emphasize the origination of these types of loans In addition many of our borrowers also have more than one commercial real estate

commercial business or ADC loan outstanding with us Consequently an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit

relationship may expose us to significantly greater risk of loss In particular many of our ADC loans continue to pose higher risk

levels than the levels expected at origination Many projects are stalled or are selling at prices lower than expected While we
continue to seek paydowns on loans with or without sales activity this portfolio may cause us to incur additional bad debt expense

even if losses are not realized Additionally the balance on over half of our ADC loans is maturing within one year which may

expose us to greater risk of loss

Changes in the value of goodwill and intangible assets could reduce our earnings

We are required by U.S generally accepted accounting principles to test goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment at least

annually Testing for impairment of goodwill and intangible assets is performed annually and involves the identification of reporting

units and the estimation of fair values The estimation of fair values involves high degree of judgment and subjectivity in the

assumptions used Using discount rate of 12% and terminal multiple of 14 times expected earnings the net present value of

Provident New York Bancorp shares exceed recorded book value by 17% as of September 30 2010 If there were further declines in

the value of bank stocks and the fair value of banks in general we could have to record an impairment of goodwill

Our continuing concentration of loans in our primary market area may increase our risk

Our success depends primarily on the general economic conditions in the counties in which we conduct business and in the New York

metropolitan area in general Unlike large banks that are more geographically diversified we provide banking and financial services to

customers primarily in Rockland and Orange Counties New York We also have branch presence in Ulster Sullivan Westchester

and Putnam Counties in New York and in Bergen County New Jersey The local economic conditions in our market area have

significant impact on our loans the ability of the borrowers to repay these loans and the value of the collateral securing these loans

significant decline in general economic conditions caused by inflation recession unemployment or other factors beyond our control

would affect the local economic conditions and could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

Changes in Market Interest Rates Could Adversely Affrct Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our fmancial condition and result of operations are significantly affected by changes in market interest rates Our results of operations

substantially depend on our net interest income which is the difference between the interest income that we earn on our interest-

earning assets and the interest
expense

that we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities In recent years
the structure of the balance

sheet has become more asset sensitive in which assets either mature or re-price at faster pace than liabilities and in particular

borrowings If general levels of interest rates were to continue at existing levels or decline further net interest income would be

adversely affected as asset yields would be expected to decline at faster rates than deposit or borrowing costs decline in net interest

income may also occur offsetting portion or all gains in net interest income from assets re-pricing and increases in volume if

competitive market
pressures

limit our ability to maintain or lag deposit costs Wholesale funding costs may also increase at faster

pace then asset re-pricing and in this regard we have $265 million in structured/convertible advances with the FHLB at an average

cost of 4.08% If interest rates were to approach or exceed this level it would be expected that the FHLB would call for conversion of

those funds at then current market rates which potentially would be higher

We also are subject to reinvestment risk associated with changes in interest rates Changes in interest rates may affect the average life

of loans and mortgage-related securities Decreases in interest rates often result in increased prepayments of loans and mortgage-

related securities as borrowers refinance their loans to reduce borrowings costs Under these circumstances we are subject to

reinvestment risk to the extent that we are unable to reinvest the cash received from such prepayments in loans or other investments

that have interest rates that are comparable to the interest rates on existing loans and securities Additionally increases in interest rates

may decrease loan demand and/or may make it more difficult for borrowers to repay adjustable rate loans

Changes in interest rates also affect the value of our interest earning assets and in particular our securities portfolio Generally the

value of securities fluctuates inversely with changes in interest rates At September 30 2010 our investment and mortgage-backed

securities available for sale totaled $901.0 million Unrealized gains on securities available for sale net of tax amounted to $12.6

million and are reported as part of other comprehensive income included as separate component of stockholders equity Further

decreases in the fair value of securities available for sale therefore could have an adverse effect on stockholders equity
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Our ability to pay dividends is subject to regulatory limitations and other limitations which may affrct our ability to pay dividends

to our stockholders or to repurchase our common stock

Provident Bancorp is separate legal entity from its subsidiary Provident Bank and does not have significant operations of its own
The availability of dividends from Provident Bank is limited by various statutes and regulations It is possible depending upon the

financial condition of Provident Bank and other factors that Provident Banks regulator could assert that payment of dividends or other

payments may result in an unsafe or unsound practice In addition under the Dodd-Frank Act Provident Bancorp will be subjected to

consolidated capital requirements and will be required to serve as source of strength to Provident Bank If Provident Bank is unable

to pay dividends to Provident Bancorp or Provident Bancorp is required to retain capital or contribute capital to Provident Bank we

may not be able to pay dividends on our common stock or to repurchase shares of common stock

breach of information security could negatively affect our earnings

Increasingly we depend upon data processing communication and information exchange on variety of computing platforms and

networks and over the internet We cannot be certain all our systems are entirely free from vulnerability to attack despite safeguards

we have instituted In addition we rely on the services of variety of vendors to meet our data processing and communication needs

Disruptions to our vendors systems may arise from events that are wholly or partially beyond our vendors control including for

example computer viruses or electrical or telecommunications outages If information security is breached despite the controls we
have instituted information can be lost or misappropriated resulting in financial loss or costs to us or damages to others These costs

or losses could materially exceed the amount of insurance coverage if any which would adversely affect our earnings

We are subject to extensive regulatory oversighL

We and our subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation and supervision Regulators have intensified their focus on bank lending

criteria and controls and on the USA PATRIOT Acts anti-money laundering and Bank Secrecy Act compliance requirements There

is also increased scrutiny of our compliance with the rules enforced by the Office of Foreign Assets Control In order to comply with

regulations guidelines and examination procedures in the anti-money laundering area we have been required to adopt new policies

and procedures and to install new systems We cannot be certain that the policies procedures and systems we have in place are

flawless Therefore there is no assurance that in every instance we are in full compliance with these requirements Our failure to

comply with these and other regulatory requirements can lead to among other remedies administrative enforcement actions and legal

proceedings

Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations also could result in range of sanctions and enforcement actions including the

imposition of civil money penalties formal agreements and cease and desist orders In addition the OTS and the FDIC have specific

authority to take prompt corrective action depending on our capital level Currently we are considered well-capitalized for

prompt corrective action purposes If we were to drop to the adequately capitalized level the OTS could restrict our ability to take

brokered deposits If we were to fall to the lower capital levels undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically

undercapitalized we would be required to raise additional capital and also would be subject to progressively more severe

restrictions on our operations management and capital distributions replacement of senior executive officers and directors and if we
became critically undercapitalized to the appointment of conservator or receiver

In addition recently enacted proposed and future legislation and regulations including the Dodd-Frank Act which is discussed

above have had will continue to have or may have significant impact on the fmancial services industry Regulatory or legislative

changes could make regulatory compliance more difficult or expensive for us could cause us to change or limit some of our products

and services or the way we operate our business and could limit our ability to pursue business opportunities

We are subject to competition from both banks and non-banking companies

The fmancial services industry including commercial banking is highly competitive and we encounter strong competition for

deposits loans and other financial services in our market area Our principal competitors include commercial banks other savings

banks and savings and loan associations mutual funds money market funds finance companies trust companies insurers leasing

companies credit unions mortgage companies real estate investment trusts REITs private issuers of debt obligations venture

capital firms and suppliers of other investment alternatives such as securities firms Many of our non-bank competitors are not

subject to the same degree of regulation as we are and have advantages over us in providing certain services Many of our competitors

are significantly larger than we are and have greater access to capital and other resources Also our ability to compete effectively is

dependent on our ability to adapt successfully to technological changes within the banking and financial services industry

36



Various factors may make takeover attempts more difficult to achieve

Our Board of Directors has no current intention to sell control of Provident Bancorp Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and

bylaws federal regulations Delaware law and various other factors may make it more difficult for companies or persons to acquire

control of Provident Bancorp without the consent of our Board of Directors One may want take over attempt to succeed because for

example potential acquirer could offer premium over the then prevailing market price of our common stock The factors that may

discourage takeover attempts or make them more difficult include

Certificate of Incorporation and statutory provisions Provisions of the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of Provident Bancorp

and Delaware law may make it more difficult and expensive to pursue
takeover attempt that management opposes These provisions

also would make it more difficult to remove our current Board of Directors or management or to elect new directors These provisions

also include limitations on voting rights of beneficial owners of more than 10% of our common stock supermajority voting

requirements for certain business combinations the election of directors to staggered terms of three years and plurality voting Our

bylaws also contain provisions regarding the timing and content of stockholder proposals and nominations and qualification for

service on the Board of Directors

Required change in control payments and issuance of stock options and Recognition and Retention Plan shares We have entered

into employment agreements with executive officers which require payments to be made to them in the event their employment is

terminated following change in control of Provident Bancorp or Provident Bank We have issued stock grants and stock options in

accordance with the 2004 Provident Bancorp Inc Stock Incentive Plan In the event of change in control the vesting of stock and

option grants accelerate In 2006 we adopted the Provident Bank Affiliates Transition Benefit Plan The plan calls for severance

payments ranging from 12 weeks to one year for employees not covered by separate agreements if they are terminated in connection

with change in control of the Company These payments and the acceleration of grants would increase the cost of acquiring

Provident Bancorp thereby discouraging future takeover attempts

ITEM lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable

ITEM Properties

We maintain our executive offices commercial lending division and investment management and trust department at leased facility

located at 400 Rella Boulevard Montebello NY consisting of 48172 square feet At September 30 2010 we conducted our business

through 35 full-service branches Of our 35 branches 14 are located in Orange County NY 12 in Rockland County NY in Ulster

County NY in Sullivan County NY in Putnam County NY in Westchester County and in Bergen County NJ Additionally

18 of our branches are owned and 17 are leased

In addition to our branch network and corporate headquarters we lease and own additional properties which are held for general

corporate purposes
and foreclosed properties The total acreage of two foreclosed properties located in Sullivan and Ulster counties

total 87.93 acres The total square footage of the remaining six foreclosed properties is 28284 square feet and they are located in

Orange Rockland Sullivan and Ulster counties This total
acreage

does not include the South Fallsburg land former branch

location totaling 1.9 acres See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further detail on our premises and

equipment

ITEM Lea1 Proceedin2s

Provident Bancorp is not involved in any pending legal proceedings other than routine legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary

course of business which in the aggregate involve amounts that are believed by management to be immaterial to Provident Bancorps

financial condition and results of operations

ITEM Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to vote of stockholders during the quarter ended September 30 2010
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PART II

ITEM Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The shares of common stock of Provident New York Bancorp are quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select NASDAQ under the

symbol PBNY As of September 30 2010 Provident New York Bancorp had 33 registered market makers 5589 stockholders of

record excluding the number of persons or entities holding stock in street name through various brokerage firms and 38262288
shares outstanding

Market Price and Dividends The following table sets forth market price and dividend information for the common stock for the past

two fiscal years

Cash Dividends

Quarter Ended High Low Declared

September 30 2010 10.03 7.92 0.06

June 30 2010 10.40 8.42 0.06

March 31 2010 9.57 8.01 0.06

December 31 2009 9.41 8.00 0.06

September 30 2009 10.44 7.93 0.06

June 30 2009 10.15 7.75 0.06

March31 2009 11.91 7.31 0.06

December 31 2008 13.60 9.54 0.06

Payment of dividends on Provident New York Bancorps common stock is subject to determination and declaration by the Board of

Directors and depends on number of factors including capital requirements regulatory limitations on the payment of dividends the

results of operations and financial condition tax considerations and general economic conditions No assurance can be given that

dividends will be declared or if declared what the amount of dividends will be or whether such dividends will continue

Repurchases of the Companys shares of common stock during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended September 30 2010 are

detailed in below There were no sales of unregistered securities during the quarter ended September 30 2010

Set forth below is stock performance graph comparing the yearly total return on our shares of common stock commencing with the

closing price on September 30 2005 with the cumulative total return on stocks included in the NASDAQ Composite Index and

the cumulative total return on stocks included in the SNL Mid-Atlantic Thrift Index

There can be no assurance that our stock performance in the future will continue with the same or similar trend depicted in the graph

below We will not make or endorse any predictions as to future stock performance
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PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP

At

Index 09/30/05 09/30/06 09/30/07 09/30/08 09/30/09 09/30/10

ProvidentNewYorkBancorp 100.00 119.17 115.85 119.00 88.16 79.52

NASDAQ Composite 100.00 105.84 127.56 99.60 102.13 115.14

SNL Mid-Atlantic Thrift Index 100.00 111.75 111.64 95.91 71.04 80.32

source SNL Financial

This stock performance graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this

Form 10-K under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended except to the extent

that Provident New York Bancorp specifically incorporates this information by reference and shall not otherwise be deemed filed

under such Acts

Not Applicable

Total Return Performance
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum Number

Total Number of or Approximate

Shares or Units Dollar Value of

Total Number Average Purchased as Part Shares or Units

of Shares Price Paid of Publicly that may yet be

or Units per share Announced Plans Purchased Under the

Purchased or Unit or Programs Plans or Programs

Period 2010 1598167

July 1-July31 10000 9.41 10000 1588167

August August31 229000 8.57 229000 1359167

September September30 127189 8.36 125000 1234167

Total 366189 8.52 364000

The total number of shares purchased during the periods includes shares deemed to have been received from

employees who exercised stock options by subm itting previously acquired shares of common stock in satisfaction

of the exercise price or shares withheld for tax purposes $18366 or 2189 shares as is permitted under the

Companys stock benefit plans and shares repurchased as part of previously authorized repurchase program.

The Company announced its fifth repurchase program on December 17 2009 authorizing the repurchase of

2000000 shares
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ITEM Selected Financial Data

The following financial condition data and operating data are derived from the audited consolidated financial

statements of Provident New York Bancorp Additional information is provided in Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related

notes included as Item and Item of this report respectively

At September 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Selected Financial Condition Data

Total assets 3021025 3021893 2984371 2802099 2841337

Loans net 1670698 1673207 1708452 1617669 1453185

Securities available for sale 901012 832583 791688 794997 951729

Securities held to maturity 33848 44614 43013 37446 60987

Deposits 2142702 2082282 1989197 1713684 1729659

Borrowings 363751 430628 566008 661242 682739

Equity 430955 427456 399158 405089 405286

Years Ended September 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Selected Operating Data

Interestanddividendincome 119774 131590 148982 151626 135616

Interest expense 26440 37720 53642 66888 50859

Net interest income 93334 93870 95340 84738 84757

Provision for loan losses 10000 17600 7200 1800 1200

Net interest income after provision for loan

losses 83334 76270 88140 82938 83557

Non-interest income 27201 39953 21042 19845 17152

Non-interest expense 83170 80187 75500 74590 71256

Income before income tax expense 27365 36036 33682 28193 29453

Incometaxexpense 6873 10175 9904 8566 9258

Net income 20492 25861 23778 19627 20195

footnotes on following page
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At or For the Years Ended September 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data

Performance Ratios

Retum on assets ratio of net income to average

total assets 0.70 0.89 0.84 0.70 /b 0.75 0/

Return on equity ratio of net income to average

equity 4.82 6.22 5.88 4.82 5.15

Average interest rate spread 3.51 3.46 3.49 2.97 3.19

Netinterestmargin3 3.78 3.81 3.96 3.57 3.68

Efficiencyratio4 68.96 65.11 61.20 66.40 65.30

Non-interest expense to average total assets 2.85 2.77 2.68 2.68 2.63

Ratio of average interest-earning assets to

average interest-bearing liabilities 126.66 123.54 122.26 122.34 122.48

Per Share Related Data

Basic earnings per share 0.54 0.67 0.61 0.48 0.49

Diluted earnings per share 0.54 0.67 0.61 0.48 0.49

Dividends per share 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.20 0.20

Book value per share 11.26 10.81 10.03 9.82 9.49

Dividend payout ratio 44.44 35.82 39.34 41.67 40.82

Asset Quality Ratios

Non-performing assets to total assets 1.02 0.93 0.57 0.26 0.18

Non-performing loans to total loans 1.58 1.55 0.97 0.44 0.34

Allowance for loan losses to non-performing

loans 115 114 137 281 406

Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.81 1.76 1.33 1.24 1.38

Capital
Ratios

Equity to total assets at end of year 1427 14.15 13.37 14.46 14.26

Average equity to average assets 14.60 14.36 14.34 14.61 14.49

Tier leverage ratio bank only 8.4 8.6 8.0 8.1 7.8

Other Data

Number of full service offices 35 33 33 33 33

Excludes loans held for sale

The average interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted-average yield on interest-earning assets and

the weighted-average cost of interest-bearing liabilities for the period

The net interest margin represents net interest income as percent of average interest-earning assets for the period Net

interest income is commonly presented on tax-equivalent basis This is to the extent that some component of the

institutions net interest income will be exempt from taxation e.g was received as result of its holdings of state or

municipal obligations an amount equal to the tax benefit derived from that component is added back to the net interest

income total This adjustment is considered helpful in comparing one financial institutions net interest income pre-tax to

that of another institution as each will have different proportion of tax-exempt items in their portfolios Moreover net

interest income is itself component of second financial measure commonly used by financial institutions net interest

margin which is the ratio of net interest income to average earning assets For purposes of this measure as well tax-

equivalent net interest income is generally used by financial institutions again to provide better basis of comparison from

institution to institution We follow these practices

The efficiency ratio represents non-interest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and non-interest income As

in the case of net interest income generally net interest income as utilized in calculating the efficiency ratio is typically

expressed on tax-equivalent basis Moreover most financial institutions in calculating the efficiency ratio also adjust

both noninterest expense and noninterest income to exclude from these items as calculated under generally accepted

accounting principles certain component elements such as non-recurring charges other real estate expense and

amortization of intangibles deducted from noninterest expense and securities transactions and other non-recurring items

excluded from noninterest income We follow these practices

The dividend payout ratio represents dividends per share divided by basic earnings per share

Book value per share is based on total stockholders equity and 38262288 39547207 39815213 41230618 and

42699046 outstanding common shares at September 30 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 respecttvely For this purpose

common shares include unallocated employee stock ownership plan shares but exclude treasury
shares
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ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

The Company provides financial services to individuals and businesses in New York and New Jersey The

Companys business is primarily accepting deposits from customers through its banking offices and investing those

deposits together with funds generated from operations and borrowings into commercial real estate loans

commercial business loans ADC loans residential mortgages consumer loans and investment securities

Additionally the Company offers investment management services The financial condition and results of

operations of Provident New York Bancorp are discussed herein on consolidated basis with the Bank Reference to

Provident New York Bancorp or the Company may signify the Bank depending on the context

Our results of operations depend primarily on our net interest income which is the difference between the interest

income on our earning assets such as loans and securities and the interest expense paid on our deposits and

borrowings Results of operations are also affected by non-interest income and expense the provision for loan losses

and income tax expense Results of operations are also significantly affected by general economic and competitive

conditions as well as changes in market interest rates government policies and actions of regulatory authorities The

Federal Reserve Board through series of reductions to the federal funds target rate to an unprecedented 0-25 basis

points has acted to increase liquidity in the credit markets These rate reductions significantly lowered yields on the

short end of the treasury yield curve more so than the long end of the curve resulting in steeper yield curve than

existed at the prior fiscal year-end

As described in greater detail below the key factors that have affected our results over the last three
years

include

the effects of the economic downturn on our asset quality which has led to higher levels of provisions for

loan losses than historically had been the case

the current low interest rate environment which has contributed to margin pressure on net interest income

managements decision to take advantage of the interest rate environment and realize securities gains to

reduce future interest rate exposure

limited opportunities to make loans that meet our credit standards and pricing criteria and

increased costs of FDIC insurance due to assessments utilized to restore the federal deposit insurance fund

The last recession and slow
recovery over the past two years have resulted in borrowers experiencing higher levels

of stress which resulted in our increased levels of charge-offs and provisions for loan losses In particular small

businesses and borrowers involved in Acquisition Development and Construction projects have been affected

During the
year our provisions were only modestly in excess of our net charge-offs Management of our loan

portfolio continues to be top priority We were able to grow commercial real estate loans which was substantially

offset by declines in one-to-four family residential mortgages as we sold substantial portion of our new production

In addition we continue to experience pressure on net interest income Low rates continue to have the effect of

causing many assets to prepay or to be called In anticipation of this we have also been selling certain investment

securities when market conditions imply it is in our best interest to do so Reinvestment of cash is necessarily made

at lower interest rates Many of our liabilities are at rates that are either fixed or already very low so maintaining net

interest margin is function of loan growth growth in non-interest bearing deposits and continuation of our deposit

pricing discipline Transaction accounts grew 11.9% during the year non-time deposits grew as well while CDs
declined This helped support our net interest margin which was 3.78% this year compared to 3.8 1% last year

Operating expenses were stable while fee income excluding securities gains declined slightly Deposit fees

declined primarily due to changed customer behavior partially offset in other categories

Net income for the year ended September 30 2010 decreased 20.8% to $20.5 million or $0.54 per diluted share

from $25.9 million or $0.67 per diluted share for the year ended September 30 2009 Net interest income on tax

equivalent basis decreased $400000 or 0.4% for the year
ended September 30 2010 as compared to the

year ended

2009 Net interest margin decreased basis points to 3.78% at September 30 2010 from 3.81% at September 30
2009 Average loans decreased $44.3 million to $1.66 billion at September 30 2009 from $1.70 billion at

September 30 2009 The decrease in
average loans is due to refinancing of residential loans as well as the sale of
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residential loans to the secondary market The provision for loan losses decreased $7.6 million from September 30

2009 to $10.0 million for the year
ended September 30 2010

Net income for the year ended September 30 2009 increased 8.8% to $25.9 million or $0.67 per diluted share from

$23.8 million or $0.61 per diluted share for the year ended September 30 2008 Net interest income on tax

equivalent basis decreased $1.1 million or 1.1% for the year
ended September 30 2009 as compared to the

year

ended 2008 Net interest margin decreased 15 basis points to 3.81% at September 30 2009 from 3.96% at

September 30 2009 Average loans increased $56.0 million to $1.70 billion at September 30 2009 from $1.64

billion at September 30 2008 The provision increased $10.4 million from September 302008 to $17.6 million at

September 30 2009 primarily due to an increase in charge-offs concentrated in the community business loan

portfolio and due to the slow down in the economic activity as result of the recession that started in December

2007

Non-interest income decreased $12.8 million to $27.2 million for the year ended September 30 2010 from $40.0

million for the year ended September 30 2009 primarily resulting from decrease of $9.9 million in net securities

gains $1.1 million increase in the fair value loss on interest rate caps and decrease of $1.1 million in deposit fees

and service charges Non interest income increased $18.9 million to $40.0 million for the year ended September 30

2009 from $21.0 million for the year
ended September 30 2008 primarily due to increase of $17.1 million in net

securities gains and an increase in bank owned life insurance due to death payment

Non-interest expense increased $3.0 million to $83.2 million for the year ended September 302010 from $80.2

million for the year
ended September 30 2009 primarily resulting from increased employee benefits and incentives

staffing for new offices occupancy expense
associated with the new offices and professional fees Non interest

expense increased $4.7 million to $80.2 million at September 30 2009 from $75.5 million at September 30 2008

primarily due to increased FDIC assessments during 2009

Total assets were essentially unchanged at $3.0 billion for the year ended September 30 2010 and 2009 Net loans

remained flat decreasing by 1% as commercial lending increases in outstanding balances were offset by decreases

in residential mortgage balances significant portion of residential mortgage originations were sold in to the

secondary market Deposits increased $60.4 million in 2010 primarily in business and retail transaction accounts

municipal NOW accounts savings and money market deposit accounts

The following is an analysis of the financial condition and results of the Companys operations This item should be

read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes filed herewith in Part II Item

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and the description of the Companys business filed here within

Part Item Business
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting and reporting policies are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America and conform to general practices within the banking industry Accounting policies

considered critical to our financial results include the allowance for loan losses accounting for goodwill and other

intangible assets accounting for deferred income taxes and the recognition of interest income

The methodology for determining the allowance for loan losses is considered by management to be critical

accounting policy due to the high degree of judgment involved the subjectivity of the assumptions utilized and the

potential for changes in the economic environment that could result in changes to the amount of the allowance for

loan losses considered necessary We evaluate our loans at least quarterly and review their risk components as

part of that evaluation See Note Basis of Financial Statement Presentation and Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of the risk components

We consistently review the risk components to identify any changes in trends At September 30 2010 Provident has

recorded $30.8 million in its allowance for loan losses

Accounting for goodwill is considered to be critical policy because goodwill must be tested for impairment at least

annually using two-step approach that involves the identification of reporting units and the estimation of fair

values The estimation of fair values involves high degree of judgment and subjectivity in the assumptions utilized

The Company additionally utilized discounted cash flow analysis to determine goodwill impairment as of

September 30 2010 The analysis showed no impairment as the net present value under several discount rate and

multiple assumptions was higher than stockholders equity If goodwill is determined to be impaired it would be

expensed in the period in which it became impaired The Company has $160.9 million in recorded goodwill at

September 30 2010

We also use judgment in the valuation of other intangible assets core deposit base intangible asset has been

recorded for core deposits defined as checking money market and savings deposits that were acquired in

acquisitions that were accounted for as purchase business combinations The core deposit base intangible asset has

been recorded using the assumption that the acquired deposits provide more favorable source of funding than more

expensive wholesale borrowings An intangible asset has been recorded for the present value of the difference

between the expected interest to be incurred on these deposits and interest expense that would be expected if these

deposits were replaced by wholesale borrowings over the expected lives of the core deposits If we find these

deposits have shorter life than was estimated we will write down the asset by expensing the amount that is

impaired Other intangible assets have been recorded in connection with the acquisition of HVIA for non-

competition and customer intangibles At September 30 2010 the Company had $3.6 million recorded in core

deposit and other intangibles

We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes Under this method deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement

carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases If current available information

raises doubt as to the realization of the deferred tax assets valuation allowance is established Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those

temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled We exercise significant judgment in evaluating the

amount and timing of recognition of the resulting tax liabilities and assets including projections of future taxable

income These judgments and estimates are reviewed on continual basis as regulatory and business factors change

At September 30 2010 Provident has net deferred tax assets of $2.0 million

Interest income on loans securities and other interest-earning assets is accrued monthly unless management
considers the collection of interest to be doubtful Loans are placed on non-accrual status when payments are

contractually past due 90 days or more or when management has determined that the borrower is unlikely to meet

contractual principal or interest obligations unless the assets are well secured and in the process of collection At

such time unpaid interest is reversed by charging interest income for interest in the current fiscal year or the

allowance for loan losses with respect to prior year income Interest payments received on non-accrual loans

including impaired loans are not recognized as income unless future collections are reasonably assured Loans are

returned to accrual status when collectability is no longer considered doubtful At September 30 2010 Provident

has $21.4 million in loans in non-accrual status
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Comparison of Financial Condition at September 30 2010 and September 30 2009

Total assets as of September 30 2010 were $3.0 billion essentially unchanged from September 30 2009 Cash and

due from banks decreased $69.5 million to $90.9 million at September 30 2010 due primarily to deposits received

on September 30 2009 and high levels of balances maintained at the Federal Reserve in 2009 Core deposit and

other intangibles decreased by $1.8 million Goodwill was unchanged The Company had $5.9 million in loans held

for sale as of September 30 2010 and $1.2 million at September 30 2009 Premises and equipment increased $2.9

million primarily related to new office locations in Nyack and Yonkers New York and platform automated systems

Net loans as of September 30 2010 were $1.7 billion decrease of $2.5 million or 0.1% over net loan balances of

$1.7 billion at September 30 2009 Commercial real estate loans increased $35.2 million or 6.4% and Acquisition

Development and Construction loans ADC increased $27.9 million or 13.8% to $229.5 million compared to

$201.6 million as of September 2009 Consumer loans decreased by $13.3 million or 5.3% during the fiscal year

ended September 30 2010 residential loans decreased by $49.5 million or 10.7% Total loan originations

excluding loans originated for sale were $472.1 million for the fiscal year ended September 30 2010 while

repayments were $464.6 million for the fiscal year ended September 30 2010 There were increases in the reserves

for ADC commercial business loans and home equity lines of credit with decreases in commercial real estate and

residential mortgages The variances were driven by modifications in reserve factors as well as changes in loan

balances

Total securities increased by $57.7 million to $934.9 million at September 30 2010 from $877.2 million at

September 30 2009 Security purchases were $853.6 million sales of securities were $443.4 million and

maturities calls and repayments were $362.8 million

Deposits as of September 30 2010 were $2.1 billion an increase of $60.4 million or 2.9% from September 30

2009 Included in deposits for September 30 2010 were approximately $212.0 million in short-term seasonal

municipal deposits compared to $201.0 million at September 30 2009 As of September 30 2010 transaction

accounts were 44.1% of deposits or $945.5 million compared to $844.9 million or 40.6% at September 30 2009 As

of September 30 2010 savings deposits were $392.3 million an increase of $34.5 million or 9.6% Money market

accounts increased $42.7 million or 11.1% to $427.3 million at September 30 2010 Offsetting the increases in

savings and money market accounts was decrease of $117.4 million or 23.7% in certificates of deposits as the

Company while maintaining competitive rate structures did not compete with the highest pricing in the market

place The Company attributes the change in mix and net increases to customers unwilling to place significant

amounts of deposits in term maturities in the current rate environment as well as the success of its marketing efforts

Borrowings decreased by $66.9 million or 13.9% from September 2009 to $415.2 million The decrease is related

to the borrowings being paid down by maturing investment securities and deposits

Stockholders equity increased $3.5 million from September 30 2009 to $431.0 million at September 30 2010 The

increase was due to $9.2 million increase in the Companys retained earnings and $2.6 million improvement in

accumulated other comprehensive income after realizing securities gains in the fiscal year of $8.2 million During

fiscal 2010 the Company repurchased 1515823 shares of its common stock at cost of $12.9 million under the

treasury repurchase program and issued net 231004 shares from its stock based compensation plans

As of September 30 2010 the Company had authorization to purchase up to additional 1234167 shares of common

stock Bank Tier capital to assets was 8.43% at September 30 2010 Tangible capital as percentage of tangible

assets at the holding company level was 9.33%
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The following table presents the dollar amount of changes in interest income on fully tax-equivalent basis and

interest expense for the major categories of our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities Information is

provided for each category
of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities with respect to changes

attributable to changes in volume i.e changes in
average

balances multiplied by the prior-period average rate and

ii changes attributable to rate i.e changes in average rate multiplied by prior-period average balances For

purposes of this table changes attributable to both rate and volume which cannot be segregated have been allocated

proportionately to the change due to volume and the change due to rate

2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

Increase Decrease Due Total Increase Decrease Due Total

to Increase to Increase

Volume Rate Decrease Volume Rate Decrease

Dollars in thousands

Interest-earning assets

Loans 2546 2061 4607 3782 14266 10484

Securities taxable 2786 10130 7344 2585 3810 6395

Securities tax exempt 1260 870 390 1233 175 1058

Federal Reserve Bank 98 92 144 144

Other eaming assets 127 100 27 480 865 1345

Total interest-earning

assets 1275 12955 11680 1950 18972 17022

Interest-bearing

liabilities

NOW deposits 121 212 91 197 542 345

Savings deposits 63 418 355 32 517 485

Moneymarket deposits 286 1537 1251 1323 3915 2592

Certificates of deposit 2662 5499 8161 750 7297 6547

Senior Debt 740 20 760 1269 1269

Borrowings 2182 2182 5899 1323 7222

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 3634 7646 11280 3597 12325 15922

Less tax equivalent

adjustment 441 305 136 423 53 370

Change in net interest

income 4468 5004 536 5124 6594 1470

Analysis of Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between interest income on interest-earning assets and interest expense on

interest-bearing liabilities Net interest income depends on the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities and the interest rates earned or paid on them respectively

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended September 30 2010 and September 30 2009

Net income for the year
ended September 30 2010 was $20.5 million or $0.54 per

diluted share Excluding net

securities gains and the fair value adjustment of interest caps adjusted net income was $16.3 million or $0.43 per

diluted share for the year ended September 30 2010 This compares to net income of $25.9 million or $0.67 per

diluted share for the year ended September 30 2009 Excluding net securities gains adjusted net income was $15.1

million or $0.39 earnings per diluted share for the year ended September 30 2009
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Earnings excluding securities gains and the fair value adjustment of interest rate caps are presented below The

Company presents earnings excluding these factors so that investors can better understand the results of the

Companys core banking operations and to better align with the views of the investment community

In thousands except share data

Twelve months ended

September 30

2010 2009

Net Income

Net Income 20492 25861

Securities gains 4844 10735

Fair value loss on interest rate caps 657

Net adjusted income 16305 15126

Earnings per common share

Diluted Earnings per common share 0.54 0.67

Securities gains 0.13 0.28

Fair value loss on interest rate caps 0.02

Diluted adjusted earnings per common share 0.43 0.39

Non-interest income

Total non-interest income 27201 39953

Securities gains 8157 18076
Fair value loss on interest rate caps 1106

Adjusted non interest-income 20150 21877

After marginal tax effect 40.61%

Interest Income Interest income on tax equivalent basis for the year ended September 30 2010 decreased to

$124.0 million decrease of $11.7 million or 8.6% compared to the prior year The decrease was primarily due to

declines in general market interest rates on variable rate loans lower loan balances sales of taxable securities in

which gains of $8.2 million were realized and the proceeds reinvested at lower rates Average interest-earning

assets for the year ended September 30 2010 were $2.6 billion an increase of $9.9 million or 0.4% over average

interest-earning assets for the year ended September 30 2009 Average loan balances decreased by $44.4 million
balances at the Federal Reserve Bank decreased $36.6 million and average balances of other earning assets

decreased by $2.1 million primarily FHLB stock On tax-equivalent basis average yields on interest earning

assets decreased by 48 basis points to 4.80% for the
year ended September 30 2010 from 5.28% for the year ended

September 30 2009 The re-pricing of floating rate assets the sale of securities with subsequent reinvestment and

lower loan balances were the primary reasons for the decrease in asset yields

Interest income on loans for the year ended September 30 2010 decreased $4.6 million to $92.5 million from $97.1

million for the prior fiscal year Interest income on commercial loans for the year ended September 30 2010

decreased to $56.5 million as compared to commercial loan interest income of $56.6 million for the prior fiscal

year Average balances of commercial loans grew $15.7 million to $976.9 million with 10 basis point decrease in

the average yield There was no change in the prime rate during fiscal
year 2010 Commercial loans adjustable with

the prime rate totaled $363.9 million at September 30 2010 Interest income on consumer loans decreased to $11.1

million as compared to consumer loan interest income of $11.9 million for the prior fiscal year Average balances

of consumer loans decreased $5.8 million to $246.6 million with 20 basis point decrease in the
average yield

Consumer loans adjustable with the prime rate totaled $171.1 million at September 30 2010 Income earned on
residential mortgage loans was $24.9 million for the year ended September 30 2010 down $3.8 million from the

prior year as result of refinancing activity and lower outstanding average balances
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Tax-equivalent interest income on securities balances at Federal Reserve Bank and other earning assets decreased to

S3 1.4 million for the year ended September 30 2010 compared to $38.5 million for the prior year This was due to

tax-equivalent decrease of 103 basis points in yields The Company sold $443.4 million in securities and recorded

S8.2 million in gains on the sales Further during fiscal 2010 $362.8 million in securities matured and the proceeds

were reinvested at current market rates with shorter duration

Interest Expense Interest expense
for the year ended September 30 2010 decreased by $11.3 million to $26.4

million decrease of 29.9% compared to interest expense
of $37.7 million for the prior fiscal year The decrease in

interest expense was primarily due to the significant decrease in the average rates paid on interest-bearing deposits

for the year
ended September 30 2010 Rates paid on interest bearing liabilities decreased to 1.30% from 1.81% in

fiscal 2009 The average
interest rate paid on certificates of deposit decreased by 111 basis points to 1.35% for the

year ended September 30 2010 from 2.46% for the prior year The average interest rate paid on savings decreased

to 0.1% or 11 basis points for the year ended September 30 2010 from 0.2 1% paid during fiscal 2009 The average

rate paid on money market rates also declined 37 basis points to 0.35% for the year ended September 30 2010 The

rates paid on NOW accounts decreased basis points for fiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009 The average cost

of borrowings remained flat at 3.64% at September 30 2010 and 2009 although average
balances decreased $60.1

million

Net Interest Income for the fiscal year ended September 30 2010 was $93.3 million compared to $93.9 million for

the year
ended September 30 2009 The tax equivalent net interest margin decreased by basis points to 3.78%

while the net interest spread increased by basis points to 3.5 1% The Banks average cost of interest-bearing

liabilities has decreased although the average asset yields decreased faster due to lower volume of loans and the

lower rates earned on variable rate loans and sales of securities during 2010 Further the greater increase of interest

earning assets compared to interest bearing liabilities partially offset the decline in net interest income

Provision for Loan Losses We recorded $10.0 million and $17.6 million in loan loss provisions for the
years

ended

September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 respectively Provision for loan losses decreased $7.6 million to $10.0

million as the allowance is now at target levels At September 30 2010 the allowance for loan losses totaled $30.8

million or 1.81% of the loan portfolio compared to $30.1 million or 1.76% of the loan portfolio at September 30

2009 Net charge-offs for the years ended September 30 2010 and 2009 were $9.2 million and $10.7 million

respectively an annual rate of O.56/o and 0.62% respectively of the average
loan portfolio Our credit-scored

small business loan portfolio continued to account for the single largest share of our net charge-offs During the year

we recorded net charge-offs of $4.5 million in this portfolio on average outstanding balances of $97.1 million

At September 30 2010 substandard loans totaled $131.8 million up from $89.4 million at September 30 2009

Doubtful loans increased from SO to $300000 at September 30 2010 compared to September 30 2009 The bulk of

the increase came from downgrades in the ADC portfolio as home sales remain depressed and more borrowers are

feeling stress in liquidity resources The substandard classification for many of these loans is due to delayed

progress in the projects and stress on liquidity reserves or expected outside non-project related cash flows These

loans however continue to pay interest on current basis and do not otherwise warrant non-accrual classification

All significant loans classified substandard or special mention are reviewed for impairment under applicable

accounting and regulatory standards Specific reserves for impairment were $2.3 million at September 30 2009 and

$2.4 million September 30 2010 Specific reserves are established when current information indicates that the

carrying value of loan is probably not recoverable but there is sufficient uncertainty about the actual occurrence of

loss or the amount of any loss to be incurred Our non-performing loans increased to $26.8 million at September

30 2010 from S26.5 million at September 30 2009 an increase of $300000 Loans transferred from the non-

performing category into other real estate owned during fiscal 2010 totaled $3.6 million

Non-interest income consists primarily of income on securities sales banking fees and service charges net

increases in the cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance BOLl contracts title insurance fees and

investment management fees Non-interest income was $27.2 million for the fiscal year ended September 30 2010

compared to $40.0 million at September 30 2009 During the year ended September 30 2010 the Company

recorded gains on sales of investment securities totaling $8.2 million compared to $18.1 million for the prior year

Periodic reviews of current prepayment speeds are performed in order to ascertain whether prepayment estimates

require modification that would cause amortizalion or accretion adjustments As result of our reviews we

anticipated an acceleration of prepayments management sold $279.4 million in mortgage backed securities and
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realized $6.4 million in gains on the sales The proceeds were reinvested in securities with yields lower than the

recorded yields of the securities sold This activity also provided greater diversification in the portfolio Deposit

fees and service charges decreased by $1.2 million or 9.4% Income derived from the Companys BOLl

investments decreased by $711000 or 25.8% due to $723 thousand in death benefit proceeds received in 2009
Title insurance fee income derived from the Hardenburgh Abstract Company Inc increased $152000 due to an

increase in residential mortgage originations Investment management fees increased $494000 which is related to

increased market values on assets under management During fiscal 2010 the Company originated and sold $52.8

million in residential mortgage loans and recorded $867000 in gains compared to $50.7 million in loans sold with

$961000 in gains at September 30 2009

Non-interest expense consists primarily of salaries and employee benefits stock-based compensation occupancy

and office expenses advertising and promotion expense professional fees intangible assets amortization data

processing expenses and FDIC/other regulatory assessments Non-interest expense for the fiscal year ended

September 30 2010 increased by $3.0 million or 3.7% to $83.2 million compared to $80.2 million for the same

period in 2009 The increase was primarily attributable to compensation and employee benefits of $4.1 million

resulting from annual merit raises and increases in incentive compensation Further the Company opened offices in

Yonkers and Nyack during the fiscal
year 2010 as well as experiencing full year of salary expense for the White

Plains office Occupancy and office operations increased $632000 or 4.9% as the Company invested in new
branch locations and automation in 2010 Professional fees increased $929000 due to increased consulting fees as

well as elevated external costs of collection for problem loans Stock-based compensation decreased by $1.4 million

mostly due to the vesting of stock based compensation awards in addition to lower ESOP expense FDIC insurance

decreased by $582000 or 13.7% due to declines in FDIC assessments and ATM debit card expense decreased

$5i4000 or 3.2%

Income Taxes Income tax expense was $6.9 million for the fiscal
year ended September 30 2010 compared to

$10.2 million for fiscal 2009 representing effective tax rates of 25.1% and 28.2% respectively The lower tax rate

in 2010 was primarily due to the high proportion of tax-free income BOLl and insurance relative to the total levels

of pre-tax income and the set up of captive insurance company
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Comparison of Operatin2 Results for the Years Ended September 30 2009 and September 30 2008

Net income for the year ended September 30 2009 was $25.9 million or $0.67 per
diluted share excluding net

securities gains adjusted net income was $15.1 million or $0.39 per diluted share This compares to net income of

$23.8 million or $0.61 per diluted share for the year ended September 30 2008 Excluding net securities gains

adjusted net income was $23.2 million or $0.59 earnings per diluted share for the year
ended September 30 2008

Earnings excluding securities gains and the fair value adjustment of interest rate caps are presented below The

Company presents earnings excluding these factors so that investors can better understand the results of the

Companys core banking operations and to better align with the views of the investment community

In thousands except share data

Twelve months ended

September 30

2009 2008

Net Income

Net Income 25861 23778

Securities gains 10735 584
Net adjusted income 15126 23194

Earnings per common share

Diluted Earnings per common share 0.67 0.61

Securities gains 0.28 0.01

Fair value loss on interest rate caps

Diluted adjusted earnings per common share 0.39 0.59

Non-interest income

Total non-interest income 39953 21042

Securities gains 18076 983
Fair value loss on interest rate caps

Adjusted non interest-income 21877 20059

After marginal tax effect 40.61%

2Rounding

Interest Income Interest income on tax equivalent basis for the year ended September 30 2009 decreased to

$135.6 million decrease of $17.0 million or 11.2% compared to the prior year The decrease was primarily due

to declines in general market interest rates on variable rate loans sales of taxable securities in which gains of $18.1

million were realized and the proceeds reinvested at lower rates as well as decline in the average balances of

taxable securities Average interest-earning assets for the year ended September 30 2009 were $2.6 billion an

increase of $70.0 million or 2.8% over average interest-earning assets for the year ended September 30 2008 of

$2.5 billion Average loan balances grew by $56.0 million balances at the Federal Reserve Bank was $56.6 million

and average balances of other earning assets decreased by $8.0 million primarily FHLB stock On tax-equivalent

basis average yields on interest earning assets decreased by 83 basis points to 5.28% for the year ended September

30 2009 from 6.1 1%.for the
year

ended September 30 2008 The re-pricing of floating rate assets the sale of

securities and larger cash position were the primary reasons for the decrease in asset yields

Interest income on loans for the year ended September 30 2009 decreased 9.7% to $97.1 million from $107.6

million for the prior fiscal year Interest income on commercial loans for the year ended September 30 2009

decreased to $56.6 million as compared to commercial loan interest income of $63.5 million for the prior fiscal

year Average balances of commercial loans grew $59.7 million to $961.2 million with 116 basis point decrease

in the average yield The decrease in yield relates to the decline in the prime rate of 175 basis points during fiscal

2009 Commercial loans adjustable with the prime rate totaled $367.0 million at September 30 2009 Interest
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income on consumer loans decreased by $2.4 million or 16% and $174.1 million of consumer loans adjust with the

prime rate Income earned on residential mortgage loans was $28.7 million for the year ended September 30 2009
down $1.2 million from the prior year

Tax-equivalent interest income on securities balances at Federal Reserve Bank and other earning assets decreased to

$38.5 million for the year ended September 30 2009 compared to $45.0 million for the prior year This was due to

tax-equivalent decrease of 83 basis points in yields along with $34.6 million decline in the average balances of

securities which was offset in part by $56.6 million increase in balances at the Federal Reserve Bank As noted

above the Company sold $539.3 million in securities and recorded $18.1 million in gains on the sales further

during fiscal 2009 $176.2 million in securities matured and the proceeds were reinvested at current market rates

Interest Expense Interest expense for the year ended September 30 2009 decreased by $15.9 million to $37.7

million decrease of 29.7% compared to interest
expense

of $53.6 million for the prior fiscal year The decrease in

interest expense was primarily due to the significant decrease in the average rates paid on interest-bearing deposits

for the year ended September 30 2009 Rates paid on interest bearing liabilities decreased to 1.8 1% from 2.62% in

fiscal 2008 The average interest rate paid on certificates of deposit decreased by 127 basis points to 2.46% for the

year
ended September 30 2009 from 3.73% for the prior year The

average interest rate paid on savings decreased

to 0.21% for the year ended September 30 2009 from 0.35% paid during fiscal 2008 The average rate paid on

money market rates also declined 114 basis points to 0.72% for the
year ended September 30 2009 The rates paid

on NOW accounts decreased 25 basis points for fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 By comparison this

average cost of borrowings decreased 21 basis points which reflects higher proportion of fixed rate borrowings

outstanding in both years

Net Interest Income for the fiscal year ended September 30 2009 was $93.9 million compared to $95.3 million for

the year ended September 30 2008 The net interest margin decreased by 15 basis points to 3.8 1% while the net

interest spread decreased by basis points to 3.46% The Banks average cost of interest-bearing liabilities has

decreased although the
average asset yields decreased faster due to the level of variable rate loans and sales of

securities during 2009 Further the greater increase of interest earning assets compared to interest bearing liabilities

partially offset the decline in net interest income

Provision for Loan Losses We recorded $17.6 million and $7.2 million in loan loss provisions for the years ended

September 30 2009 and September 30 2008 respectively At September 30 2009 the allowance for loan losses

totaled $30.1 million or 1.76% of the loan portfolio compared to $23.1 million or 1.33% of the loan portfolio at

September 30 2008 Net charge-offs for the years ended September 30 2009 and 2008 were $10.7 million and $4.5

million respectively an annual rate of 0.62% and 0.28% respectively of the average loan portfolio Our credit-

scored small business loan portfolio continued to account for the majority of our charge-offs During the year we
recorded net charge-offs of $6.8 million in this portfolio on average outstanding balances of $104 million

At September 30 2009 substandard loans totaled $89.4 million up from $23.8 million at September 30 2008 The

bulk of the increase came from downgrades in the ADC portfolio as home sales remain depressed and more
borrowers are feeling stress in liquidity resources Our non-performing loans increased to $26.5 million at

September 30 2009 from $16.9 million at September 30 2008 an increase of $9.4 million The increase was driven

by an increase in ADC loans of $5.7 million $3.1 million in residential mortgage loans and $1.8 million in

comniercial mortgage loans with $1.6 million transferred from the non-performing category into other real estate

owned during fiscal 2009 The increase in substandard loans compared to nonperforming loans resulted from the

underlying status of ADC loans The substandard classification for many of these loans is due to delayed progress
in the projects and stress on liquidity reserves or expected outside non-project related cash flows These loans

however continue to pay interest on current basis and do not otherwise warrant non-accrual classification We
increased provisions for loan losses to account for increased net charge-offs growth in the criticized special

mention and classified loans in the portfolio and increased factors allocated to the non-criticized or classified ADC
and residential mortgage portfolios All significant loans classified substandard or special mention are reviewed for

impairment under applicable accounting and regulatory standards Specific reserves for impairment were $1.3

million at September 30 2008 and $2.3 million at September 30 2009 Specific reserves are established when

current information indicates that the entire book balance of loan is probably not recoverable but there is sufficient

uncertainty about the actual occurrence of loss or the amount of
any loss to be incurred
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Non-interest income consists primarily of income on securities sales banking fees and service charges net

increases in the cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance BOLl contracts title insurance fees and

investment management fees Non-interest income was $40.0 million for the fiscal year ended September 30 2009

compared to $2 1.0 million at September 30 2008 During the year
ended September 30 2009 the Company

recorded gains on sales of investment securities totaling $18.1 million compared to $983000 for the prior year

Periodic reviews of current prepayment speeds are performed in order to ascertain whether prepayment estimates

require modification that would cause amortization or accretion adjustments As result of our reviews we

anticipated an acceleration of prepayments Management sold $453.2 million in mortgage backed securities and

realized $16.7 million in gains on the sales Such proceeds were reinvested in securities with yields which were

lower than the recorded yields of the securities sold and more diversified risk profile Deposit fees and service

charges decreased by $36000 or .29% Income derived from the Companys BOLl investments increased by

$923000 or 50.4% due to $723 thousand in death benefit proceeds received in 2009 Title insurance fee income

derived from the Hardenburgh Abstract Company Inc increased $86 thousand due to the second quarter increase in

residential mortgage originations Investment management fees decreased $436 thousand which is related to

decreased balances under management During fiscal 2009 the Company originated and sold $49.7 million in

residential mortgage loans and recorded $1.0 million in gains No gains on loan sales were recorded in 2008

Non-interest expense consists primarily of salaries and employee benefits stock-based compensation occupancy

and office expenses advertising and promotion expense professional fees intangible assets amortization data

processing expenses and FDIC/other regulatory assessments Non-interest expense
for the fiscal year

ended

September 30 2009 increased by $4.7 million or 6.2% to $80.2 million compared to $75.5 million for the same

period in 2008 The increase was primarily attributable to FDIC assessments of $3.4 million which included

increased assessments and the special assessment imposed as of June 30 2009 which were due to the losses

experienced by the FDIC bank closures as result of the recession Also contributing to the increase were employee

benefits Compensation and employee benefits increased by $2.5 million or 6.7% to $39.5 million for the year

ended September 30 2009 The Company experienced increases in its health insurance programs and pension

expense even though the pension plan is frozen Occupancy and office operations increased $368 thousand or

3.0% as the Company invested in branch relocations in 2008 and 2009 Stock-based compensation decreased by $.9

million due to lower acceleration of vesting of restricted stock awards and its first step ESOP loan maturing in

December 2007 requiring less share allocations going forward Marketing expenses
decreased $245 thousand to

$3.1 million at September 30 2009 as compared to $3.3 million at September 30 2008 due primarily to the 2008

production costs associated with our media campaigns

Income Taxes Income tax expense was $10.2 million for the fiscal year
ended September 30 2009 compared to

$9.9 million for fiscal 2008 representing effective tax rates of 28.2% and 29.4% respectively The lower tax rate in

2009 was primarily due to the continued shift to tax-exempt securities and the non-taxable BOLl payout partially

offset by the maturity of the first-step ESOP loan which was primarily non-deductible expense

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of operations the Company engages in variety of financial transactions that in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles are not recorded in the financial statements or are recorded in

amounts that differ from the notional amounts These transactions involve to varying degrees elements of credit

interest rate and liquidity risk Such transactions are used by the Company for general corporate purposes or for

customer needs

The Companys off-balance sheet arrangements which principally include lending commitments are described

below At September 30 2010 and 2009 the Company had no interests in non-consolidated special purpose entities

Lending Commitments Lending commitments include loan commitments letters of credit and unused credit lines

These instruments are not recorded in the consolidated balance sheet until funds are advanced under the

commitments The Company provides these lending commitments to customers in the normal course of business

For commercial customers loan commitments generally take the form of revolving credit arrangements to finance

customers working capital requirements or for development and construction in the case of real estate businesses

For retail customers loan commitments are generally lines of credit secured by residential property At September
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30 2010 commercial and retail loan commitments totaled $114.8 million Approved closed undrawn lines of credit

totaled $119.7 million $147.3 million and $15.4 million for commercial retail accounts and overdraft protection

lines respectively Letters of credit totaled $23.1 million Letters of credit issued by the Company generally are

standby letters of credit Standby letters of credit are commitments issued by the Company on behalf of its

customer/obligor in favor of beneficiary that specify an amount the Company can be called upon to pay upon the

beneficiarys compliance with the terms of the letter of credit These commitments are primarily issued in favor of

local municipalities to support the obligors completion of real estate development projects The credit risk involved

in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers Standby

letters of credit are conditional commitments to support performance typically of contract or the financial

integrity of customer to third party and represent an independent undertaking by the Company to the third party

Provident Bank applies essentially the same credit policies and standards as it does in the lending process when

making these commitments See Note 15 to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item hereof for additional

information regarding lending commitments

Contractual Obligations In the ordinary course of our operations we enter into certain contractual obligations

Such obligations include operating leases for premises and equipment

Payments Due by Period The following table summarizes our significant fixed and determinable contractual

obligations and other funding needs by payment date at September 30 2010 The payment amounts represent those

amounts due to the recipient and do not include any unamortized premiums or discounts or other similar carrying

amount adjustments

Contractual Obligations

FHLB and other borrowings

Time deposits

Letters of credits

Undrawn lines of credit

Operating leases

Total

Conmiitments to extend credit

Payments Due by Period

Less than One to Three Three to Five More Than

One Year Years Years Five Years Total

Dollars in thousands

44873 101704 45125 223545 415247

316096 38117 23360 377573

7586 4443 1734 9341 23104

282428 282428

2537 4815 4101 16729 28182

653520 149079 74320 249615 1126534

80935 30640 490 2757 114822

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated fmancial statements and related notes of Provident New York Bancorp have been prepared in

accordance with U.S GAAP U.S GAAP generally requires the measurement of financial position and operating

results in terms of historical dollars without consideration for changes in the relative purchasing power of money
over time due to inflation The impact of inflation is reflected in the increased cost of our operations Unlike

industrial companies our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary in nature As result changes in market

interest rates have greater impact on performance than the effects of inflation
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The overall objective of our liquidity management is to ensure the availability of sufficient cash funds to meet all

financial commitments and to take advantage of investment opportunities We manage liquidity in order to meet

deposit withdrawals on demand or at contractual maturity to repay borrowings as they mature and to fund new

loans and investments as opportunities arise

Our primary sources of funds are deposits principal and interest payments on loans and securities wholesale

borrowings the proceeds from maturing securities and short-term investments and the proceeds from the sales of

loans and securities The scheduled amortizations of loans and securities as well as proceeds from borrowings are

predictable sources of funds Other funding sources however such as deposit inflows mortgage prepayments and

mortgage loan sales are greatly influenced by market interest rates economic conditions and competition

Our cash flows are derived from operating activities investing activities and financing activities as reported in the

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in our consolidated financial statements Our primary investing activities are

the origination of commercial real estate and residential one- to four-family loans and the purchase of investment

securities and mortgage-backed securities During the years ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 our loan

originations totaled $472.1 million $450.6 million and $596.6 million respectively Purchases of securities

available for sale totaled $830.6 million $708.7 million and $263.9 million for the years ended September 30 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively Purchases of securities held to maturity totaled $23.0 million $25.1 million and $19.2

million for the
years

ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively These activities were funded primarily

by borrowings and by principal repayments on loans and securities Loan origination commitments totaled $114.8

million at September 30 2010 and consisted of $100.7 million at adjustable or variable rates and $14.1 million at

fixed rates Unused lines of credit granted to customers were $282.4 million at September 30 2010 We anticipate

that we will have sufficient funds available to meet current loan commitments and lines of credit

The Companys investments in BOLT are considered illiquid and are therefore classified as other assets Earnings

from BOLT are derived from the net increase in cash surrender value of the BOLT contracts and the proceeds from

the payment on the insurance policies if any The recorded value of BOLT contracts totaled $50.9 million and $49.6

million at September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 respectively

Deposit flows are generally affected by the level of market interest rates the interest rates and other conditions on

deposit products offered by our banking competitors and other factors The net increase decrease in total deposits

was $60.4 million $93.1 million and $275.5 million for the years ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively Certificates of deposit that are scheduled to mature in one year or less from September 30 2010 totaled

$316.1 million Based upon prior experience and our current pricing strategy management believes that significant

portion of such deposits will remain with us although we may be required to compete for many of the maturing

certificates in highly competitive environment

Credit markets improved during fiscal 2010 from the extreme conditions that existed for fiscal 2009 Credit spreads

narrowed steadily during the past year and many are very near historical levels Notwithstanding these

improvements loan demand remains muted causing liquidity to increase Furthermore the extremely low interest

rate environment has enhanced our deposit growth which has also strengthened our liquidity position Many banks

are experiencing situation similar to ours resulting in the industry liquidity to be at significantly elevated levels

However much of this liquidity is held in the form of very
short-term securities and non-maturity deposit accounts

The preference of depositors to stay short could portend potential liquidity reductions in the future and possibly put

pressure on us to raise rates in the future to retain these funds

We generally remain fully invested and utilize additional sources of funds through Federal Home Loan Bank of New

York FHLB advances and other sources of which $415.2 million was outstanding at September 30 2010 At

September 30 2010 we had the ability to borrow an additional $188.9 million under our credit facilities with the

Federal Home Loan Bank The Bank may borrow up to an additional $178.3 million by pledging securities not

required to be pledged for other purposes as of September 30 2010 Further at September 30 2010 we had only

$18.6 million in Brokered Certificates of Deposit including certificates of deposit accounts registry service

CDARs reciprocal CDs of $7.9 million and have relationships with several brokers to Uti11ZC thcsc sources of
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funding should conditions warrant further sources of funds Provident Bank is subject to regulatory capital

requirements that are discussed in Capital Requirements under Regulation

Cash and short-term borrowing capacity at September 30 2010 is summarized below

Cash and Due from Banks 90872

Unpiedged investment Securities 188904

Unpiedged mortgage collateral 178311

Total immediate funding 458087

The Companys tangible capital to tangible asset ratio is strong 9.33% Further the Company has an active

common stock repurchase program with 1.2 million shares remaining under its current board authorization The

Banks regulatory capital ratio were as follows

Tier leverage 8.40%

Tier risk based capital 12.1%

Total risk based capital 13.3%

The levels are well above current regulatory capital requirements to be considered well capitalized Management is

currently studying the impact on capital resulting from the Basel III accords
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

We make statements in this Report and we may from time to time make other statements regarding our outlook or

expectations for earnings revenues expenses and/or other matters regarding or affecting Provident New York

Bancorp that are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words such as believe expect anticipate intend

outlook estimate forecast project and other similar words and expressions or future or conditional verbs

such as will should would and could These statements are not historical facts but instead represent our

current expectations plans or forecasts and are based on the beliefs and assumptions of the management and the

information available to management at the time that these disclosures were prepared

Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions risks and uncertainties which change over time

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made We do not assume any duty and do not

undertake to update our forward-looking statements Because forward-looking statements are subject to

assumptions and uncertainties actual results or future events could differ possibly materially from those that we

anticipated in our forward-looking statements and future results could differ materially from our historical

performance

The following factors among others could cause our future results to differ materially from the plans objectives

goals expectations anticipations estimates and intentions expressed in the forward-looking statements

Legislative and regulatory changes such as the Dodd-Frank Act and its pending and future implementing

regulations that adversely affect our business including changes in regulatory policies and principles or the

interpretation of regulatory capital or other rules

deterioration in general economic conditions either nationally or in our market areas including

extended declines in the real estate market and constrained financial markets

Our ability to make accurate assumptions and judgments about an appropriate level of allowance for loan

losses and the collectability of our loan portfolio including changes in the level and trend of loan

delinquencies and write-offs that may lead to increased losses and non-performing assets in our loan

portfolio result in our allowance for loan losses not being adequate to cover actual losses and require us to

materially increase our reserves

Our use of estimates in determining fair value of certain of our assets which estimates may prove to be

incorrect and result in significant declines in valuation

Changes in the levels of general interest rates and the relative differences between short and long term

interest rates deposit interest rates our net interest margin and funding sources

Computer systems on which we depend could fail or experience security breach implementation of new

technologies may not be successful and our ability to anticipate and respond to technological changes can

affect our ability to meet customer needs and

Our business and operating results can be affected by widespread national disasters terrorist activities or

international hostilities either as result of the impact on the economy and financial and capital markets

generally or on us our customers suppliers or counterparties

Additional factors that may affect our results are discussed in this annual report on Form 10-K under Item 1A Risk

Factors and elsewhere in this Report or in other filings with the SEC These risks and uncertainties should be

considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements
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ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Management believes that our most significant form of market risk is interest rate risk The general objective of our

interest rate risk management is to determine the appropriate level of risk given our business strategy and then

manage that risk in manner that is consistent with our policy to limit the exposure of our net interest income to

changes in market interest rates Provident Banks Asset/Liability Management Committee ALCO which

consists of certain members of senior management evaluates the interest rate risk inherent in certain assets and

liabilities our operating environment and capital and liquidity requirements and modifies our lending investing

and deposit gathering strategies accordingly committee of the Board of Directors reviews the ALCOs activities

and strategies the effect of those strategies on our net interest margin and the effect that changes in market interest

rates would have on the economic value of our loan and securities portfolios as well as the intrinsic value of our

deposits and borrowings

We actively evaluate interest rate risk in connection with our lending investing and deposit activities We
emphasize the origination of commercial mortgage loans commercial business loans ADC loans and residential

fixed-rate mortgage loans that are repaid monthly and hi-weekly fixed-rate commercial mortgage loans adjustable-

rate residential and consumer loans Depending on market interest rates and our capital and liquidity position we

may retain all of the fixed-rate fixed-term residential mortgage loans that we originate or we may sell or securitize

all or portion of such longer-term loans generally on servicing-retained basis We also invest in shorter-term

securities which generally have lower yields compared to longer-term investments Shortening the average maturity

of our interest-earning assets by increasing our investments in shorter-term loans and securities may help us to better

match the maturities and interest rates of our assets and liabilities thereby reducing the
exposure of our net interest

income to changes in market interest rates These strategies may adversely affect net interest income due to lower

initial yields on these investments in comparison to longer-term fixed-rate loans and investments

Management monitors interest rate sensitivity primarily through the use of model that simulates net interest

income Nil under varying interest rate assumptions Management also evaluates this sensitivity using model

that estimates the change in the Company and the Banks net portfolio value NPV over range of interest rate

scenarios NPV is the present value of expected cash flows from assets liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts

The model assumes estimated loan prepayment rates reinvestment rates and deposit decay rates that seem

reasonable based on historical experience during prior interest rate changes

Estimated Changes in NPVand Nil The table below sets forth as of September 30 2010 the estimated changes

in our NPV and our NIT that would result from the designated instantaneous changes in the U.S Treasury yield

curve Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous assumptions

including relative levels of market interest rates loan prepayments and deposit decay and should not be relied upon
as indicative of actual results

Change in Estimated Increase Decrease Increase Decrease in

Interest Rates Estimated in NPV Estimated Estimated Nil

basis points NPV Amount Percent Nil Amount Percent

Dollars in thousands

300 273012 5318 -1.9% 92916 10972 13.4%

200 289886 11556 4.2% 90966 9022 11.0%

100 298894 20564 7.4% 87666 5722 7.0%

278330 0.0% 81944 0.0%

The table set forth above indicates that at September 30 2010 in the event of an immediate 200 basis point increase

in interest rates we would be expected to experience 4.2% increase in NPV and 11.0% increase in NIl Due to

the current level of interest rates management is unable to reasonably model the impact of decreases in interest rates

on NPV and NIT

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the above interest rate risk measurements Modeling

changes in NPV and Nil requires making certain assumptions that may or may not reflect the manner in which
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actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates The NPV and NIT table presented above assumes

that the composition of our interest-rate sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of period remains

constant over the period being measured and accordingly the data does not reflect any actions management may

undertake in response to changes in interest rates The table also assumes that particular change in interest rates is

reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration to maturity or the re-pricing characteristics of

specific assets and liabilities Accordingly although the NPV and Nil table provides an indication of our sensitivity

to interest rate changes at particular point in time such measurements are not intended to and do not provide

precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on our net interest income and will differ from actual

results

During the past fiscal year the federal funds target rate remained in range of 0.00 0.25% as the Federal Open

Market Committee FOMC did not change the target ovemight lending rate U.S Treasury yields in the two year

maturities decreased by 53 basis points from 0.95% to 0.42% during fiscal year
2010 while the yield on U.S

Treasury 10 year notes decreased 78 basis points from 3.31% to 2.53% over the same time period The

disproportional greater rate of decrease on longer term maturities has resulted in the 2-10 year treasury yield curve

being flatter at the end of the past fiscal year than it was when the year began The overall lower yield curve caused

significant reduction in rates paid on deposits and short-term borrowings as well as rates charged on loans and

other assets To fight the economic downturn the FOMC declared willingness to keep the federal funds target low

for an extended period Should economic conditions improve the FOMC could reverse direction and increase the

federal funds target rate This could cause the shorter end of the yield curve to rise disproportionably more than the

longer end thereby resulting in margin compression We hold $50 million in notional principal of interest rate caps

to help mitigate this risk Should rates not increase sufficiently to collect on such derivatives the fair value of this

derivative would decline and eventually mature The value at risk is $262000

ITEM Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following are included in this item

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of September 30 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the years ended September 30 2010 2009

and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The supplementary data required by this item selected quarterly financial data is provided in Note 21 of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Provident New York Bancorp

The management of Provident New York Bancorp the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining

effective internal control over financial reporting The Companys system of internal controls is designed to provide
reasonable assurance to the Companys management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair

presentation of published financial statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

All internal control systems have inherent limitations Therefore even those systems determined to be effective can

provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation Also projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2010 This

assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission COSO Based on this assessment we have concluded that as of September 30 2010 the Companys
internal control over financial reporting is effective

The Companys independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report on the effective operation
of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2010 This report appears on the

following page

By /s/ George Strayton

George Strayton

President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

December 13 2010

By /s/ Paul Maisch

Paul Maisch

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

December 13 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reportin2

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Provident New York Bancorp

We have audited Provident New York Bancorps the Company internal control over financial reporting as of

September 30 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Provident New York Bancorps

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment

of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of

Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion Provident New York Bancorp maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of September 30 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated statements of financial condition of Provident New York Bancorp and subsidiaries as of

September 30 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in stockholders equity

and cash flows for each of the three years ended September 30 2010 and our report dated December 13 2010

expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements

/s/Crowe Horwath LLP

Livingston New Jersey

December 13 2010
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Report of Independent Rcjstered Public Accountin2 Firm on Financial Statements

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Provident New York Bancorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Provident New York Bancorp
and subsidiaries the Company as of September 30 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of

income changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September

30 2010 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Provident New York Bancorp and subsidiaries as of September 30 2010 and 2009 and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30 2010 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the effectiveness of Provident New York Bancorps internal control over financial reporting as of September

30 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated December 13 2010 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon

/s/Crowe Horwath LLP

Livingston New Jersey

December 13 2010
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PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Dollars in thousands except per
share data

September 30

ASSETS 2010 2009

Cash and due from banks 90872 160408

Securities including $719172 and $521228 pledged as collateral for borrowings

and deposits in 2010 and 2009 respectively

Available for sale at fair value note3 901012 832583

Held to maturity at amortized cost fair value of $35062 and $45739 in 2010

and 2009 respectively note 33848 44614

Total securities 934860 877197

Loans held for sale 5890 1213

Loans note

One to four family residential mortgage loans 411239 460728

Commercial real estate commercial business and construction loans 1052078 991007

Consumer loans 238224 251522

Gross loans 1701541 1703257

Allowance for loan losses 30843 30050

Total loans net 1670698 1673207

Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB stock at cost 19572 23177

Accrued interest receivable note 11069 10472

Premises and equipment net note 43598 40692

Goodwill note 160861 160861

Core deposit and other intangible assets note 3640 5489

Bank owned life insurance 50938 496

Other assets notes 11 and 12 29027 19566

Total assets 3021025 3021893

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposits note 2142702 2082282

FHLB and other borrowings including repurchase agreements of $222500 and

$230000 in 2010 and 2009 respectively note 363751 430628

Borrowing senior unsecured note FDIC insured note 51496 51494

Mortgage escrow funds note 8198 8405

Other note 11 23923 21628

Total liabilities 2590070 2594437

Commitments and Contingent liabilities note 17

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY note 15
Preferred stock par value $0.01 per share 10000000 shares authorized none

issued or outstanding

Common stock Qiar value $0.01 per share 75000000 shares authorized

45929552 issued 38262288 and 39547207 shares outstanding in

2010 and 2009 respectively
459 459

Additional paid-in capital
356912 355753

Unallocated common stock held by employee stock ownership plan ESOP
note 12 6637 7136

Treasury stock at cost 7667264 shares in 2010 and 6382345 shares in 2009 87336 77290

Retained earnings
162433 153193

Accumulated other comprehensive income net of taxes of 5124 2477

$3577 in 2010 and$1694 in2009 note 11 and 13 ___________

Total stockholders equity
430955 427456

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 3021025 3021893

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the years ended September 30

Dollars in thousands except per share data

2010 2009 2008

Interest and dividend income

Loans including fees 92542 97149 107633

Taxable securities 18208 25552 31947

Non-taxable securities 7774 7520 6832

Other earning assets 1250 1369 2570

Total interest and dividend income 119774 131590 148982

Interest expense

Deposits 8517 18375 28344

Borrowings 17923 19345 25298

Total interest expense 26440 37720 53642

Net interest income 93334 93870 95340

Provision for loan losses 10000 17600 7200

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 83334 76270 88140

Non-interest income

Deposit fees and service charges 11228 12393 12429

Net gain on sale of securities 8157 18076 983

Title insurance fees 1157 1005 919

Bank owned life insurance 2044 2755 1832

Gain loss on sale of premises and equipment 54 517

Net gain on sales of loans 867 961

Investment management fees 3070 2576 3012

Fair value loss on interest rate caps 1106
Other 1838 1670 1867

Total non-interest income 27201 39953 21042

Non-interest expense

Compensation and employee benefits 43589 39520 37045

Stock-based compensation plans 1543 2942 3809

Occupancy and office operations 13434 12802 12434

Advertising and promotion 3252 3093 3338

Professional fees 4019 3090 3339

Data and check processing 2285 2284 2551

Amortization of intangible assets 1849 2185 2599

ATMldebit card expense 1601 2115 1936

FDIC insurance and regulatory assessments 3675 4257 875

Other 7923 7899 7574

Total non-interest expense 83170 80187 75500

Income before income tax expense 27365 36036 33682

Income tax expense 6873 10175 9904

Net income 20492 25861 23778

Weighted average common shares

Basic 38161180 38537881 38907372

Diluted 38185122 38705837 39226641

Earnings per common share note 14

Basic 0.54 0.67 0.61

Diluted 0.54 0.67 0.61

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Provisions for loan losses

Gain loss on other real estate owned

Depreciation of premises and equipment

Amortization of intangibles

Net gain on sale of securities

Fair value loss on interest rate cap

Gains on loans held for sale

Gain loss on sale of premises and equipment

Net amortization accretion of premium and discounts on securities

Accretion of premiums on borrowings includes calls on borrowings

ESOP and RRP expense

ESOP forfeitures

Stock option compensation expense

Originations of loans held for sale

Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale

Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance

Deferred income tax benefit expense

Net changes in accrued interest receivable and payable

Other adjustments principally net changes in other assets and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of securities

Available for sale

Held to maturity

Proceeds from maturities calls and other principal payments on securities

Available for sale

Held to maturity

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale

Proceeds from sales of securities held to maturity

Loan originations

Loan principal payments

Purchase of Interest rate cap derivatives

Proceeds from sale of FHLB stock net

Purchases of premises and equipment

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

Purchases of BOLl

Net cash used in provided by investing activities

PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands

2010 2009 2008

20492 25861 23778

10000 17600 7200

18 186

5144 4675 4616

1849 2185 2599

8157 18076 983

1106

867 961
54 517

3209 1715 47
223 440 739

1325 2178 2889

29 293
247 768 1196

52839 50677 189

49029 49653

1327 1961 1832
26 1640 2528

1536 585 134

5624 9273 4504

21861 20687 40305

830613 708727 263857

23023 25095 19248

328993 153585 223492

33780 22548 13623

443389 556796 40438

625

472066 450551 596593

461632 469157 498610

1368
3605 5498 4126

8152 8852 11253
48 718

5000

63775 15702 115662
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PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Continued

Years Ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands

2010 2009 2008

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in transaction savings and money market deposits 177808 124037 312793

Net decrease in time deposits 117388 30952 37267
Net decrease in short-term borrowings 62500 153791 230400
Gross repayments of long-term borrowings 4152 3995 14161
Gross proceeds from long-term borrowings 22840 150066

Net increase in borrowings senior unsecured note 51500

Net decrease increase in mortgage escrow funds 207 1133 1290

Treasury shares purchased 13062 3785 20230
Stock option transactions 1008 473 1270

Other stock-based compensation transactions 87 128 40

Cash dividends paid 9216 9379 9525
Net cash provided by used in financing activities 27622 1791 153876

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 69536 34598 78519

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 160408 125810 47291

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 90872 160408 125810

Supplemental cash flow infonnation

Interest payments 27379 38714 55268

Income tax payments 7993 11739 13227

Loans transferred to real estate owned 2943 1815

Net change in unrealized gains losses recorded on securities available for sale 5241 25900 3341
Change in deferred taxes on unrealized gains losses on securities available for sale 2122 10506 1370

Issuance of RRP shares 81

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars in thousands except per share data

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Provident New York Bancorp Provident Bancorp

or the Company Hardenburgh Abstract Title Company which provides title searches and insurance for

residential and commercial real estate Hudson Valley Investment Advisors LLC HVIA registered

investment advisor Provident Risk Management captive insurance company Provident Bank the Bank and

the Banks wholly owned subsidiaries These subsidiaries are Provident Municipal Bank PMB which is

limited-purpose New York State-chartered commercial bank formed to accept deposits from municipalities in the

Companys market area ii Provident REIT Inc and WSB Funding Inc which are real estate investment trusts

that hold portion of the Companys real estate loans iii Provest Services Corp which has invested in low-

income housing partnership and iv Provest Services Corp II which has engaged third-party provider to sell

mutual funds and annuities to the Banks customers and Limited Liability Companies which hold foreclosed

properties acquired by the bank Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America In preparing the consolidated financial statements management is

required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities income and

expense Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current fiscal year presentation

Nature of Business

Provident New York Bancorp Provident Bancorp or the Company unitary savings and loan holding

company is Delaware corporation that owns all of the outstanding shares of Provident Bank the Bank
Provident Bancorp was formed in connection with the second step offering on January 14 2004

On June 29 2005 Provident Bancorp Inc changed its name to Provident New York Bancorp in order to

differentiate itself from the numerous bank holding companies with similar names It began trading on the

NASDAQ under the stock symbol PBNY on that date Prior to that date from January 1999 its common

stock traded under the stock symbol PBCP

The Bank is community bank offering financial services to individuals and businesses primarily in Rockland

and Orange Counties New York and the contiguous Sullivan Ulster Westchester and Putnam Counties New

York and Bergen County New Jersey The Banks principal business is accepting deposits and together with

funds generated from operations and borrowings investing in various types of loans and securities The Bank

is federally-chartered savings association and its deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit

Insurance Fund of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC The Office of Thrift Supervision OTS
is the primary regulator for the Bank and for Provident New York Bancorp Of the Banks loans 86% are

collateralized or dependent on real estate

Use of estimates

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America In preparing the consolidated financial statements management is

required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities income and

expense Actual results could differ significantly from these estimates An estimate that is particularly

susceptible to significant near-term change is the allowance for loan losses which is discussed below Also

subject to change are estimates involving goodwill impairment evaluations mortgage servicing rights benefit

plans deferred income taxes and fair values of financial instruments

Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows cash equivalents include highly liquid short-term investments such as

ovemight federal funds as well as cash and deposits with other financial institutions Net cash flows are

reported for customer loan and deposit transactions and short-term borrowings with an original maturity of 90

days or less
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PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars in thousands except per share data

Long Term Assets

Premises and equipment core deposit and other intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment or

when events indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows If

impaired the assets are recorded at fair value

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions as

more fully disclosed in separate note Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant

judgment regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments and other factors especially in the absence of broad

markets for particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the

estimates

09 Adoption of New Accounting Standards

ASC Topic 15-20-65-2 Employers Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets requires the

expansion of disclosure by requiring the following how investment allocation decisions are made by

management major categories of plan assets and significant concentrations of risk Additionally ASC
715-20-65-2 requires employers to disclose information about the valuation of plan assets similar to that

required in ASC topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures The effect of adopting this new guidance

was immaterial

ASC Topic 15-10-65-3 Derivatives and hedging expands the disclosure requirements for derivative

instruments and hedging activities ASC 815-10-65-3 requires qualitative disclosure about objectives and

strategies for using derivative and hedging instruments quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of the

instruments and gains and losses on such instruments as well as disclosures about credit-risk features in

derivative agreements The effect of adopting this new guidance was immaterial

ASC Topic 260-10-45-65-2 Earnings Per share addresses whether instruments granted in share-based payment

transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and therefore included in the earnings allocation in

computing earnings per share EPS under the two-class method ASC 260-10-45-65-2 provides that

unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents

whether paid or unpaid are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of EPS pursuant to

the two-class method The effect of adopting this new guidance was immaterial

Securities

Securities include U.S Treasury U.S Government Agency and Government Sponsored Agencies municipal

and corporate bonds mortgage backed securities collateralized mortgage obligations and marketable equity

securities

The Company can classify its securities among three categories held to maturity trading and available for

sale Management determines the appropriate classification of the Companys securities at the time of

purchase

Held-to-maturity securities are limited to debt securities for which management has the intent and the

Company has the ability to hold to maturity These securities are reported at amortized cost

Trading securities are debt and equity securities held principally for the
purpose

of selling them in the near

term These securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings The

Company does not engage in securities trading activities

All other debt and marketable equity securities are classified as available for sale These securities are reported

at fair value with uurealized gains and losses net of the related deferred income tax effect excluded from

earnings and reported in separate component of stockholders equity accumulated other comprehensive
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income or loss Available-for-sale securities include securities that management intends to hold for an

indefinite period of time such as securities to be used as part of the Companys asset/liability management

strategy or securities that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates changes in prepayment risks the

need to increase capital or similar factors

Premiums and discounts on debt securities are recognized in interest income on level-yield basis over the

period to maturity Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts on mortgage backed securities are

based on the estimated cash flows of the mortgage backed securities periodically adjusted for changes in

estimated lives on level yield basis The cost of securities sold is determined using the specific identification

method Unrealized losses are charged to earnings when management determines that the decline in fair value

of security is other than temporary

Securities are evaluated at least quarterly and more frequently when economic and market conditions warrant

such an evaluation For securities in an unrealized loss position management considers the extent and

duration of the unrealized loss and the financial condition of the issuer Management also assesses whether it

intends to sell or is more likely than not that it will be required to sell security in an unrealized loss

position before recovery of its amortized cost basis If either criteria regarding intent to sell is met the entire

difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized as impairment through earnings If the

Company does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security the Company does not

intend to sell the security and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the

security before recovery of its amortized cost basis the other than temporary impairment is separated into

the amount representing the credit loss and the amount related to all other factors The amount of other

than temporary impairment related to credit loss is recognized in earnings while the amount related to other

factors is recognized in other comprehensive income net of applicable taxes The cost basis of individual

equity securities is written down to estimated fair value through charge to earnings when declines in value

below cost are considered to be other than temporary Based on review of each of the securities in the

investment portfolio in accordance with FASB ASC 320 at September 30 2010 the Company concluded that

it expects to recover the amortized cost basis of its investments and therefore there were no impairment

charges As of September 30 2010 the Company does not intend to sell nor is it more likely than not that it

would be required to sell any of its securities with unrealized losses prior to recovery of its amortized cost

basis less any current-period credit loss

Loans

Loans where management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or

payoff other than loans held for sale are reported at amortized cost less the allowance for loan losses

Mortgage loans originated and held for sale in the secondary market if any are reported at the lower of

aggregate cost or estimated fair value Fair value is estimated based on outstanding investor commitments or

in the absence of such commitments based on current investor yield requirements Net unrealized losses are

recognized in valuation allowance by charge to earnings Interest income on loans is accrued on the level

yield method

loan is placed on non-accrual status when management has determined that the borrower may likely be

unable to meet contractual principal or interest obligations or when payments are 90 days or more past due

unless well secured and in the process of collection Accrual of interest ceases and in general uncollected past

due interest is reversed and charged against current interest income related to the current year and interest

recorded in the prior year is charged to the allowance for loan losses Interest payments received on non-

accrual loans including impaired loans are not recognized as income unless warranted based on the

borrowers financial condition and payment record

The Company defers nonrefundable loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination

costs and amortizes the net amount as an adjustment of the yield over the estimated life of the loan If loan is

prepaid or sold the net deferred amount is recognized in the statement of income at that time Interest and fees

on loans include prepayment fees and late charges collected
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through provisions for losses charged to earnings Losses on loans

including impaired loans are charged to the allowance for loan losses when management believes that the

collection of principal is unlikely Recoveries of loans previously charged-off are credited to the allowance

when realized

The allowance for loan losses is an amount that management believes is necessary to absorb probable incurred

losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible Managements evaluations which are subject to

periodic review by the OTS take into consideration factors such as the Companys past loan loss experience

changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio overall portfolio quality review of specific problem

loans and collateral values and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers ability to pay
Future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary based on changes in economic and real

estate market conditions further information obtained regarding known problem loans results of regulatory

examinations the identification of additional problem loans and other factors The
process

of assessing the

adequacy of the allowance for loan loss is subjective particularly in times of economic downturns It is

reasonably possible that future credit losses may exceed historical loss levels and may also exceed

managements current estimates As such there can be no assurance that future charge-offs will not exceed

managements current estimate of what constitutes reasonable allowance for loan losses

The Company considers loan to be impaired when based on current information and events it is probable

that the borrower will be unable to comply with contractual principal and interest payments due Certain loans

are individually evaluated for collectability in accordance with the Companys ongoing loan review procedures

principally commercial real estate commercial business and construction loans Smaller-balance

homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment such as residential mortgage loans and

consumer loans Impaired loans are based on one of three measures the present value of expected future

cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the loans observable market price or the fair value

of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent If the measure of an impaired loan is less than its recorded

investment portion of the allowance for loan losses is allocated so that the loan is reported net at its

measured value

Troubled Debt Restructuring

Troubled debt restructurings are renegotiated loans for which concessions have been granted to the borrower

that the Company would not have otherwise granted and the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty

Restructured loans are recorded in accrual status when said loans have demonstrated performance generally

evidenced by six months of payment performance in accordance with the restructured terms or by the
presence

of other significant items. The Company has troubled debt restructurings of $21504 $674 and $0 as of

September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively As of September 30.2010 $5457 of restructured loans were

in nonaccrual and $16047 were making payments in accordance with current terms

Mortgage Servicing Assets

Servicing assets represent the fair value of retained servicing rights on loans sold as well as the cost of

purchased rights Servicing assets are expensed in proportion to and over the period of estimated net

servicing revenues Impairment is evaluated based on the fair value of the assets using groupings of the

underlying loans as to interest rates and then secondarily as to loan type and investor Fair value is determined

using prices for similar assets with similar characteristics when available or based upon discounted cash flows

using market-based assumptions Any impairment of grouping is reported as valuation allowance to the

extent that fair value is less than the capitalized amount for grouping Upon adoption of FASB ASC Topic

860- Transfers and Servicing the Company elected to continue to use the amortization method

72



PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars in thousands except per share data

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

As member of the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB of New York the Bank is required to hold certain

amount of FHLB stock This stock is non-marketable equity security and accordingly is reported at cost

Premises and Equipment

Land is reported at cost while premises and equipment are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation

and amortization Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of

the related assets which range from three years for equipment and 40 years for premises Leasehold

improvements are amortized on straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases including renewal

options or the estimated useful lives of the improvements whichever is shorter Routine holding costs are

charged to expense as incurred while significant improvements are capitalized

ii Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill resulting from business combinations prior to January 2009 represents the excess of the purchase

price over the fair value of the net assets of business acquired Goodwill resulting from business

combinations after January 2009 represents the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired

that are not individually identified and separately recognized Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in

purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized but tested

for impairment at least annually Goodwill is the only intangible asset with an indefinite life on our balance

sheet

We asses the carrying value of our goodwill at least annually in order to determine if this intangible asset is

impaired In reviewing the carrying value of our goodwill we asses the recoverability of such assets by

evaluating the fair value of the related business unit If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fair

value an impairment loss is recognized for the amount of the excess and the carrying value of goodwill is

reduced accordingly An impairment would be required to be recorded during the period identified

Testing for impairment of goodwill and intangible assets involves the identification of reporting units and the

estimation of fair values The estimation of fair values involves high degree of judgment and subjectivity in

the assumptions used Using discount rate of 12% and terminal multiple of 14 times expected earnings

the net present value of Provident New York Bancorp shares exceed recorded book value by 17% as of

September 30 2010

The core deposit intangibles recorded in acquisitions are amortized to expense using an accelerated method

over their estimated lives of approximately eight years Intangibles related to HVIA are amortized over 10

years on straight-line basis Impairment losses on intangible assets are charged to expense if and when they

occur

Real Estate Owned

Real estate properties acquired through loan foreclosures are recorded initially at estimated fair value less

expected sales costs with any resulting write-down charged to the allowance for loan losses Subsequent

valuations are performed by management and the carrying amount of property is adjusted by charge to

expense to reflect any subsequent declines in estimated fair value Fair value estimates are based on recent

appraisals and other available information Routine holding costs are charged to expense as incurred while

significant improvements are capitalized Gains and losses on sales of real estate owned are recognized upon

disposition Total foreclosed properties included in other assets are $3.9 million and $1.7 million at

September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively
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Securities Repurchase Agreements

In securities repurchase agreements the Company transfers securities to counterparty under an agreement to

repurchase the identical securities at fixed price on future date These agreements are accounted for as

secured financing transactions since the Company maintains effective control over the transferred securities

and the transfer meets other specified criteria Accordingly the transaction proceeds are recorded as

borrowings and the underlying securities continue to be carried in the Companys securities portfolio

Disclosure of the pledged securities is made in the consolidated statements of financial condition if the

counterparty has the right by contract to sell or re-pledge such collateral

Income Taxes

Net deferred taxes are recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and liabilities Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years

in which the temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets

and liabilities of change in tax laws or rates is recognized in income tax expense in the period that includes

the enactment date of the change

deferred tax liability is recognized for all temporary differences that will result in future taxable income

deferred tax asset is recognized for all temporary differences that will result in future tax deductions subject

to reduction of the asset by valuation allowance in certain circumstances This valuation allowance is

recognized if based on an analysis of available evidence management determines that it is more likely than

not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized The valuation allowance is subject

to ongoing adjustment based on changes in circumstances that affect managements judgment about the

realizability of the deferred tax asset Adjustments to increase or decrease the valuation allowance are charged

or credited respectively to income tax expense The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to

income tax matters in income tax expense

The Company evaluates uncertain tax positions in two step process The first step is recognition which

requires determination whether it is more likely than not that tax position will be sustained upon
examination The second step is measurement Under the measurement step tax position that meets the

more likely than not recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than

fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement Tax positions that previously failed to meet

the more likely than not recognition threshold should be recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting

period in which that threshold is met Previously recognized tax position that no longer meets the more likely

than not recognition threshold should be derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in

which the threshold is no longer met The Company did not have any such position as of September 30
2010 See note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Bank Owned Life Insurance BOLl

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key executives Bank owned life insurance is

recorded at its cash surrender value or the amount that can be realized

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Compensation expense is recognized for the Employee stock ownership plan ESOP equal to the fair value

of shares that have been allocated or committed to be released for allocation to participants Any difference

between the fair value at that time and the ESOPs original acquisition cost is charged or credited to

stockholders equity additional paid-in capital The cost of ESOP shares that have not yet been allocated or

committed to be released for allocation is deducted from stockholders equity

The Company applies FASB ASC Topic 718 Compensation-Stock Based in accounting for its stock option

plan During 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company issued 321976 88861 and 275134 new stock-based option
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awards and recognized total non-cash stock-based compensation cost of $247 $768 and $1196 As of

September 30 2010 the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options

was $998 Options granted in 2010 have two year vesting period

The Companys stock-based compensation plans allow for accelerated vesting when employees retire under

circumstances in accordance with the terms of the plans Grants issued subsequent to adoption of FASB ASC

Topic 718 October 2005 which are subject to such accelerated vesting are expensed over the shorter of

the time to retirement age or the vesting schedule in accordance with the grant Thus the vesting period can be

less than the vesting period expressed in the option agreement depending upon the age of the grantee As of

September 30 2010 600 restricted shares and 36000 stock options were potentially subject to accelerated

vesting and have been expensed The Company recognized expense associated with the acceleration of

and 10000 restricted shares in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The Company recognized expense

associated with the acceleration of 27000 and 3100 stock option shares in 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share EPS is computed by dividing net income applicable to common stock by the

weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period

Diluted EPS is computed in similar manner except that the weighted average number of common shares is

increased to include incremental shares computed using the treasury stock method that would have been

outstanding if all potentially dilutive stock options were exercised and unvested RRP shares became vested

during the periods For purposes of computing both basic and diluted EPS outstanding shares exclude

unallocated ESOP shares

Segment Information

Public companies are required to report certain financial information about significant revenue- producing

segments of the business for which such information is available and utilized by the chief operating decision

maker As community-oriented financial institution substantially all of the Companys operations involve

the delivery of loan and deposit products to customers Management makes operating decisions and assesses

performance based on an ongoing review of the community banking operation which constitutes the

Companys only operating segment for financial reporting purposes
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Acquisitions

Summary of Acquisition Transactions Below is the summary of the acquisition transactions for Warwick

Community Bancorp 2005 WSB Ellenville National Bank 2004 ENB National Bank of Florida 2002
one purchase in 2005 of branch office of HSBC Bank USA National Association HSBC and Hudson

Valley Investment Advisors HVIA

HVIA HSBC WSB ENB NBF Total

At Acquisition Date

Number of shares issued 208331 6257896 3969676 10435903

Loans acquired 2045 284522 213730 23112 523409

Deposits
assumed 23319 475150 32L284 88182 913935

Cash paid/received 2500 18938 72601 36773 28100 121036

Goodwill 2531 91576 51794 13063 158964

Core deposit/other intangibles 2830 1690 10395 6624 1787 23326

At September 30 2010

Goodwill 3279 92145 52101 13336 160861

Accumulated core depositlother amortization 1227 1511 8697 6498 1753 19686

Net core deposit/other intangible 1603 179 1698 126 34 3640

In addition to the above the Company also canies $1172 in mortgage servicing rights
included in other assets at September 30 2010

The changes to goodwill reflected above are due to tax related items in connection with acquisitions and the $750

settlement of the earn out provision for HVIA in 2007

Future Amortization of Core Deposit and Other Intangible Assets The following table sets forth the future

amortization of core deposit and other intangible assets

September 30 September 30

Amoritization Schedule 2010 2009

Lessthanoneyear 1364 1853

One to two years 941 1360

Two to three years 580 941

Three to four years 283 580

Four to five years 283 283

Beyond five years 189 472

Total 3640 5489

Goodwill is not amortized to expense and is reviewed for impairment at least annually with impairment losses

charged to expense if and when they occur The core deposit and other intangible assets are recognized apart from

goodwill and they are amortized to expense over their estimated useful lives and evaluated at least annually for

impairment
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Securities Available for Sale

The following is summary of securities available for sale

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

September 30 2010

Mortgage-backed securities-residential

Fannie Mae 149084 4105 153188

Freddie Mac 56632 1820 58452

Ginnie Mae 9047 268 9315

CMO/OtherMBS 38338 680 359 38659

253101 6873 360 259614

In vestment securities

U.S Government securities 71071 1222 72293

Federal agencies 344154 1919 54 346019

Corporate bonds 29406 1134 30540

State and municipal securities 180879 10798 20 191657

Equities 1146 257 889

626656 15073 331 641398

Total available for sale 879757 21946 691 901012

September 30 2009

Mortgage-backed securities-residential

Fannie Mae 238723 4606 266 243063

Freddie Mac 92885 1621 94506

Ginnie Mae 26586 358 15 26929

CMO/OtherMBS 66784 174 941 66017

424978 6759 1222 430515

Investment securities

U.S Government securities 20893 183 21076

Federal agencies 186301 678 279 186700

Corporate
bonds 25245 579 25823

State and municipal securities 158007 9591 14 167584

Equities 1145 260 885

391591 11031 554 402068

Total available for sale 816569 17790 1776 832583
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The following is sunmary of the amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for sale other
than equity securities by remaining period to contractual maturity Actual maturities may differ because certain

issuers have the right to call or prepay their obligations

Remaining period to contractual maturity

Less than one year

One to five years

Five to ten years

Greater than ten years

Total

September 30 2010

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale during the
years ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

totaled $443389 $556796 and $40438 respectively These sales resulted in
gross realized gains of $8518

$18043 and $983 for the years ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively and gross realized losses of

$361 $0 $0 in fiscal year 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Securities including held to maturity securities with carrying amounts of $228442 and $231190 were pledged as

collateral for borrowings at September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 respectively Securities with carrying
amounts of $490730 and $290038 were pledged as collateral for municipal deposits and other purposes at

September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 respectively

Securities Available for Sale with Unrealized Losses The following table summarizes those securities available for

sale with unrealized losses segregated by the length of time in continuous unrealized loss position

As of September 30 2010

Continuous Unrealized Loss Position

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses

Total

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

Mortgage-backed securities-residential

U.S Government and agency securities

State and municipal securities

Equity securities

Total

610$ 8$
40638 54

1541 20
99

42888 885

5511 352 6121

40638

1541

___________
889

_________
49189

As of September 30 2009

Continuous Unrealized Loss Position

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses

Total

Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

Mortgage-backed securities-residential

U.S Government and agency securities

Corporate bonds

State and municipal securities

Equity securities

Tuithl

63965

64689

2185

1710

1222
279

14
260
1It\

I11 fO

5353

408318

149075

62764

625510

5424

412796

156636

65653

640509

790

6301

251
603S

360
54
20

257
691

494 9651 728 73616

278 42 64731

2185

14 1710

885 260 885

132549 Q1\ lfl 7O OC 1AJ/O 7OJ.P i31/
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The Company as of June 30 2009 adopted the provisions under FASB ASC Topic 320 Investments- Debt and

Equity Securities which requires forecast of recovery of cost basis through cash flow collection on all debt

securities with fair value less than its amortized cost less any current period credit loss with an assertion on the

lack of intent to sell or requirement to sell prior to recovery of cost basis Based on review of each of the

securities in the investment portfolio in accordance with FASB ASC 320 at September 30 2010 the Company
concluded that it expects to recover the amortized cost basis of its investments and therefore there were no

impairment charges As of September 30 2010 the Company does not intend to sell nor is it more than likely than

not that it would be required to sell any of its securities with unrealized losses prior to recovery of its amortized cost

basis less any current-period credit loss

Substantially all of the unrealized losses at September 30 2010 relate to investment grade securities and are

attributable to changes in market interest rates subsequent to purchase There were no securities with unrealized

losses that were individually significant dollar amounts at September 30 2010 total of 16 available for sale

securities were in continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and 11 securities for 12 months or

longer For securities with fixed maturities there are no securities past due or securities for which the Company

currently believes it is not probable that it will collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the

investment

Within the collateralized mortgage-backed securities CMOs category of the available for sale portfolio there are

four individual private label CMOs that have an amortized cost of $6355 and fair value carrying value of

$5996 as of September 30 2010 One of the four securities is below investment grade and has an amortized cost of

$2308 and fair value of $2044 at September 30 2010 The remaining three securities are rated at or above Aa3

These securities were all performing as of September 30 2010 and are expected to perform based on current

information In determining whether there existed other than temporary impairment on these securities the

Company evaluated the present value of cash flows expected to be collected based on collateral specific

assumptions including credit risk and liquidity risk and determined that no losses are expected The Company
will continue to evaluate its portfolio in this manner on quarterly basis

79



PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars in thousands except per share data

Securities Held to Maturity

The following is summary of securities held to maturity

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

September 30 2010

Mortgage-backed securities-residential

Fannie Mae 1835 96 1931

Freddie Mac 2389 124 2513

GinnieMae 16 17

CMOOtherMBS 729 19 748

4969 240 5209

Investment securities

State and municipal securities 27879 980 44 28815

Other 1000 38 1038

28879 1018 44 29853

Total held to maturity 33848 1258 44 35062

September 30 2009

Mortgage-backed securities-residential

FannieMae 2713 110 2823

Freddie Mac 2834 82 2916

Ginnie Mae 45 45

CMO/Other MBS 860 866

6452 198 6650

Investment securities

State and municipal securities 37162 940 47 38055

Equities 1000 34 1034

38162 974 47 39089

Total held to maturity 44614 1172 47 45739

The following is summary of the amortized cost and fair value of investment securities held to maturity by

remaining period to contractual maturity Actual maturities may differ because certain issuers have the right-to call

or repay their obligations

September 30 2010

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Remaining period to contractual maturity

Less than one year 12592 12665

One to five years 8927 9.324

Five to ten years 2086 2304

Greater than ten years 5274 5560

Total 28879 29853
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Proceeds from sales of securities held to maturity during the years ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 totaled

$0 $625 and $0 respectively These sales resulted in gross realized gains of $0 $33 and $0 for the years ended

September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively and gross realized losses of $0 in fiscal year 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively These securities can be considered maturities per FASB ASC Topic 320 Investments Debt

Equity securities as the sale of the securities occurred after at least 85 percent of the principal outstanding had been

collected since acquisition

The following table summarizes those securities held to maturity with unrealized losses segregated by the length of

time in continuous unrealized loss position

Continuous Unrealized Loss Position

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

As of September 30 2010 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

State and municipal securities 676 44 676 44
Total 676 44 676 44

Continuous Unrealized Loss Position

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

As of September 30 2009 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

State and municipal securities 1019 47 1019 47
Total 1019 47 1019 47

All of the unrealized losses on held to maturity securities at September 30 2010 relate to local municipal general

obligation bonds and are attributable to changes in market interest rates and credit risk spreads subsequent to

purchase There were no securities with unrealized losses that were individually significant dollar amounts at

September 30 2010 There were no held-to-maturity securities in continuous unrealized loss position for less than

12 months and one security for 12 months or longer For securities with fixed maturities there are no securities past

due or securities for which the Company currently believes it is not probable that it will collect all amounts due

according to the contractual terms of the investment Because the Company has the ability and intent to hold

securities with unrealized losses until maturity the Company did not consider these investments to be other-than

temporarily impaired at September 30 2010
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Loans

The components of the loan portfolio excluding loans held for sale were as follows

September 30

2010 2009

One- to four-family residential mortgage loans

Fixed rate 369417 419863

Adjustable rate 41822 40865

411239 460728

Commercial real estate loans 581965 546767

Commercial business loans 240650 242629

Acquisition development construction loans 229463 201611

1052078 991007

Consumer loans

Home equity lines of credit 176134 180205

Homeowner loans 48941 54941

Other consumer loans including overdrafts 13149 16376

238224 251522

Total loans 1701541 1703257

Allowance for loan losses 30843 30050

Total loans net 1670698 1673207

Total loans include net deferred loan origination costs of $720 and $1651 at September 30 2010 and September 30

2009 respectively

substantial portion of the Companys loan portfolio is secured by residential and commercial real estate located in

Rockland and Orange Counties of New York and contiguous areas such as Ulster Sullivan Putnam and Westchester

Counties of New York and Bergen County New Jersey The ability of the Companys borrowers to make principal

and interest payments is dependent upon among other things the level of overall economic activity and the real

estate market conditions prevailing within the Companys concentrated lending area Commercial real estate and

acquisition development and construction loans are considered by management to be of somewhat greater credit

risk than loans to fund the purchase of primary residence due to the generally larger loan amounts and dependency

on income production or sale of the real estate Substantially all of these loans are collateralized by real estate

located in the Companys primary market area
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The principal balances of non-performing loans were as follows

90 days

past due and

still accruing Non-Accrual

440 10830

211 371

4560 21909

Troubled debt restructured still accruing 16047

Gross interest income that would have been recorded if the foregoing non-accrual loans had remained current in

accordance with their contractual terms totaled $1201 $1429 and $1129 for the years ended September 30 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively compared to interest income actually recognized including income recognized on

cash basis of $383 $724 and $724 respectively

Substantially all impaired loans are collateral-dependent loans measured based on the fair value of the collateral

The Company determines the need for specific allocation of the allowance for loan losses on loan-by-loan basis

for impaired loans Impaired loans were as follows

2010 2009

Year end loans with no allocated allowance for loan losses

Year end loans with allocated allowance for loan loses

Total impaired loans

Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated

Average of individually impaired loans during year

Interest income recognized during impairment

Cash-basis interest income recognized

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is summarized as follows

Balance at beginning of year

Provision for loan losses

Charge-offs

Recoveries

Net Charge offs

Balance at end of year

10319 7895

31763 14206

42082 22101

3046

27032

1975

1157

Year ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

30050 23101 20389

10000 17600 7200

10330 11289 4929
1123 638 441

9207 10651 4488
30843 30050 23101

2010

90 days

past due and

still accruing Non-Accrual

2009

One- to four-family residential mortgage loans

Commercial real estate loans

Commercial business loans

Acquisition development construction loans

Consumer loans

Total non-performing loans

1953

2971

6080

6886

1376

5730

2932

977

503 1341

5427 21413

4425

5826

457

674

2349

19310

1429

723
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Certain residential mortgages originated by the Company are sold in the secondary market Non-interest income

includes net gains on such sales of $867 in fiscal 2010 $961 in fiscal 2009 and SO in fiscal 2008 At September 30

2010 and 2009 there were $5890 and $1213 residential mortgage loans held for sale respectively

Other assets at September 30 2010 and 2009 include capitalized mortgage servicing rights with carrying amount

of $1172 and $840 respectively which are recorded at the lower of amortized cost or fair market value net of

valuation allowance of $54 at September 30 2010 and $115 at September 30 2009 No valuation allowance was

required at September 30 2008 The Company generally retains the servicing rights on mortgage loans sold

Servicing loans for others involves collecting payments maintaining escrow accounts making remittances to

investors and if necessary processing foreclosures Mortgage loans serviced for others including loan

participations totaled approximately $186562 $163621 and $129331 at September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively Mortgage escrow funds include balances of $1390 and $1018 at September 30 2010 and 2009

respectively related to loans serviced for others Mortgage servicing income recorded in other income was $630

$141 and $240 in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Accrued Interest Receivable

The components of accrued interest receivable were as follows

September 30

2010 2009

Loans 5728 5417

Securities 5341 5055

Total accrued interest receivable 11069 10472

Premises and Equipment Net

Premises and equipment are summarized as follows

September 30

2010 2009

Land and land improvements 7505 4320

Buildings 31480 31332

Leasehold improvements 8965 8553

Furniture fixtures and equipment 34857 30963

82807 75168

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 39209 34476
Total premises and equipment net 43598 40692
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Deposits

Deposit balances and weighted average interest rates at September 30 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows

September 30

2010 2009

Amount Rate Amount Rate

Demand Deposits

Retail 174731 169122

Commercial 277217 236516

Municipal 77909 86596

Total Non-interest bearing deposits 529857 492234

NOW Deposits

Retail 139517 0.05 127595 0.11

Commercial 34105 0.31 36972 0.22

Municipal 241995 0.23 188074 0.28

Total Transaction deposits 945474 844875

Savingsdeposits 392321 0.11 357814 0.11

Money market deposits 427334 0.29 384632 0.43

Certificates of deposit 377573 1.12 494961 1.83

Total deposits 2142702 0.31 2082282 0.57

Municipal deposits held by PMB totaled $513760 and $470170 at September 30 2010 and September 30 2009

respectively See Note Securities Available for Sale for the amount of securities that are pledged as collateral

for municipal deposits and other purposes Deposits received for tax receipts were $219000 and $201000 at

September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 respectively

Certificates of deposit had remaining periods to contractual maturity as follows

September 30

2010 2009

Remaining period to contractual maturity

Less than one year 316096 439642

One to two years 24844 19081

Two to three years 13273 10952

Three to four years 16623 8741

Four to five years 6737 16545

Total certificates of deposit 377573 494961

Certificate of deposit accounts with denomination of $100 or more totaled $105717 and $160660 at September

30 2010 and 2009 respectively The Company had $18554 including certificates of deposit account registry

service CDARs reciprocal CDs of $7889 and $20578 $10558 of which were reciprocal CDARs of brokered

deposits as of September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively
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Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows

Years ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

Savings deposits 403 758 1244

Money market and NOW deposits 2035 3377 6313

Certificates of deposit 6079 14240 20787

Total interest expense 8517 18375 28344

FHLB and Other Borrowings

The Companys FHLB and other borrowings and weighted average interest rates are summarized as follows

September 30

2010 2009

Amount Rate Amount Rate

By type of borrowing

Advances 141251 4.16% 200628 4.16%

Repurchase agreements 222500 3.98% 230000 3.95%

Senior unsecured debt FDIC insured 51496 2.75% 51494 2.74%

Total borrowings 415247 3.88% 482122 3.91%

By remaining period to maturity

Less than one year 44873 3.82% 62677 4.09%

One to two years 73996 3.14% 44921 3.79%

Two to three years 27708 4.00% 73994 3.14%

Threetofouryears 25125 4.14% 31639 3.98%

Fourtofiveyears 20000 2.96% 25159 4.14%

Greater than fie years 223545 4.19% 243732 4.09%

Total borrowings 415247 3.88% 482122 3.91%

As member of the FHLB the Bank may borrow in the form of term and overnight borrowings up to the amount of

eligible residential mortgage loans and securities that have been pledged as collateral under blanket security

agreement As of September 30 2010 and 2009 the Bank had pledged residential mortgage loans totaling $313587

and $350538 respectively The Bank had also pledged securities with carrying amounts of $228442 and $231190

as of September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 respectively to secure repurchase agreements As of September

30 2010 the Bank may increase its borrowing capacity by pledging securities and mortgages not required to be

pledged for other purposes with market value of 53672 15 FHLB advances are subject to prepayment penalties if

repaid prior to maturity

Securities repurchase agreements had weighted average remaining terms to maturity of approximately 5.38 years

and 6.2 years at September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively Average borrowings under securities repurchase

agreements were $224375 and $238750 during the years ended September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively and the

maximum outstanding month-end balance was $230000 and $250000 respectively

FHLB borrowings includes advance and repurchase agreements of $227500 and $227500 at September 30 2010

and 2009 respectively are putable quarterly at the discretion of the FHLB These borrowings have weighted

average remaining term to the contractual maturity dates of approximately 6.16 year and 6.75 years and weighted

average interest rates of 4.24% and 4.63% at September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively An additional $40 million

are putable on one time basis after initial lockout periods beginning in February 2011 with an weighted average

interest rate of 3.27%
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10 Derivatives

The Company purchased two interest rate caps in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 to assist in offsetting portion of

interest rate exposure
should short term rate increases lead to rapid increases in general levels of market interest

rates on deposits These caps are linked to LIBOR and have strike prices of 3.50% and 4.0% These caps are stand

alone derivatives and therefore changes in fair value are reported in current period earnings the amount for fiscal

year 2010 was loss of $1.1 million The fair value of the interest rate caps at September 30 2010 is reflected in

other assets with corresponding credit charge to income recorded as gain loss to non-interest income

The Company acts as an interest rate swap counterparty with certain commercial customers and manage this risk by

entering into corresponding and offsetting interest rate risk agreements with third parties The swaps are considered

derivative instrument and must be carried at fair value As the swaps are not designated qualifying hedge the

change in fair value is recognized in current earnings with no offset from any other instrument There was no net

gain or loss recorded in earnings during fiscal
year

2010 Interest rate swaps are recorded on our consolidated

statements of financial condition as other asset or other liability at estimated fair value

At September 30 2010 summary information regarding these derivatives is presented below

September 30 2010

Weighted Weighted

Notional Average Average Average

Amount Maturity Rate Variable Rate Fair Value

Interest Rate Caps 50000 4.18 3.75 NA 262

3rd party interest rate swap 1182 9.37 6.25 Libor 2.5% 173

Customer interest rate swap 1182 9.37 6.25 Libor 2.5% 173

The Company enters into various commitments to sell real estate loans into the secondary market Such

commitments are considered to be derivative financial instruments and therefore are carried at estimated fair value

on the consolidated balance sheets The fair values of these commitments are not considered material

11 Income Taxes

Income tax expense consists of the following

Years ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

Current tax expense

Federal 5410 10369 10774

State 1437 1446 1658

6847 11815 12432

Deferred tax expense benefit

Federal 375 1567 2056
State 349 73 472

26 1640 2528
Total incomc tax cxpcnsc 6873 10175 9904
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Actual income tax expense differs from the tax computed based on pre-tax income and the applicable statutory

Federal tax rate for the following reasons

Years ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

Tax at Federal statutory rate of 35% 9578 12612 11789

State income taxes net of Federal tax benefit 652 892 771

Tax-exempt interest 2645 2536 2241
BOLT income 715 964 641
Other net 171 226

Actual income tax expense 6873 10175 9904

Effective income tax rate 25.1% 28.2% 29.4%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities are summarized below

The net amount is reported in other assets or other liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial condition

September 30

2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses 12525 12203

Deferred compensation 3370 3715

Purchase accounting adjustments 13 105

Accrued post retirement expense 1121 1111

Other 190 1014

Total deferred tax assets 17219 18148

Deferred tax liabilities

Undistributed earnings of subsidiary not consolidated

for tax return purposes REIT Income 6138 6518

Prepaid pension costs 3592 3866

Core deposit intangibles 32 367

Purchase accounting fair value adjustments 165 249

Depreciation of premises and equipment 743 705

Other comprehensive income 3577 1694

Goodwill 53 184
Other 876 980

Total deferred tax liabilities 15176 14195

Net deferred tax asset 2043 3953

Based on managements consideration of historical and anticipated future pre-tax income as well as the reversal

period for the items giving rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

was not considered necessary at September 30 2010 and 2009

The Bank is subject to special provisions in the Federal and New York State tax laws regarding its allowable tax bad

debt deductions and related tax bad debt reserves Tax bad debt reserves consist of defined base-year amount

plus additional amounts accumulated after the base year Deferred tax liabilities are recognized with respect to

reserves accumulated after the base year as well as any portion of the base-year amount that is expected to become

taxable or recaptured in the foreseeable future The Banks base-year tax bad debt reserves for Federal tax

purposes were $9313 at both September 30 2010 and 2009 The Banks tax bad debt reserves for NY State
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purposes were $44340 and $46555 at September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively Associated deferred tax

liabilities of $5755 and $5872 have not been recognized at those dates since the Company does not expect that the

Federal base-year reserves $3260 and New York State bad debt reserves $3839 and $2612 net of federal

benefit at September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively will become taxable in the foreseeable future Under the tax

laws events that would result in taxation of certain of these reserves include redemptions of the Banks stock or

certain excess distributions by the Bank to Provident New York Bancorp

In 2010 the New York State law was modified to conform to the Federal treatment of the tax bad debt deduction

These changes in the law are effective for taxable years beginning on or after January 2010 Therefore going

forward there will no longer be separate New York State deduction for bad debts and the establishment and

maintenance of New York reserve is no longer necessary for thrift institutions Taxpayers that cease to be thrift

institution will not be required to recapture any amounts of the New York reserve for losses

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

The Company does not have unrecognized tax benefits as of September 2010 or September 2009

The total amount of interest and penalties recorded in the consolidated statement of income in income tax expense

benefit for the years ended September 30 2010 September 30 2009 and September 30 2008 were $0 $89 and

$58 respectively

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax of the state of New

York and various other state income taxes The tax years
that are currently open

for audit are 2006 and later for both

federal and for New York State income tax

12 Employee Benefit Plans and Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Pension Plans

The Company has noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering employees that were eligible as of

September 30 2006 In July 2006 the Board of Directors of the Company approved curtailment to the

Provident Bank Defined Benefit Pension Plan the Plan as of September 30 2006 At that time all benefit

accruals for future service ceased and no new participants may enter the plan The purpose of the Plan

curtailment was to afford flexibility in the retirement benefits the Company provides while preserving all

retirement plan participants earned and vested benefits and to manage the increasing costs associated with the

defined benefit pension plan The Companys funding policy is to contribute annually an amount sufficient to

meet statutory
minimum funding requirements but not in excess of the maximum amount deductible for

Federal income tax purposes Contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to service to

date but also for benefits expected to be earned in the future
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The following is summary of changes in the projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets The

Company uses September 30th measurement date for its pension plans

September 30

2010 2009

Changes in projected benefit obligation

Beginning of year 27963 23100

Service cost

Interest cost 1555 1593

Actuarial loss 3296 4130
Contract conversion

Benefits paid 1705 860
End of

year 31109 27963

Changes in fair value of plan assets

Beginning of year 25503 20926
Actual gain on plan assets 2498 287

Employer contributions 500 5150

Benefits and distributions paid 1705 860
End of year 26796 25503

Funded status at end of year 4313 2460

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income loss at September 30 2010 and 2009 consisted

of

2010 2009

Unrecognized actuarial loss 13159 11980
Deferred tax asset 5344 4865
Net amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income loss 7815 7115

Discount rates of 5.00% 5.75% and 7.0% were used in determining the actuarial present value of the projected

benefit obligation at September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively No compensation increases were used as the

plan is frozen The weighted average long-term rate of return on plan assets was 7.75% for fiscal years ended 2010
2009 and 2008 The accumulated benefit obligation was $31109 and $27963 at year end September 30 2010 and

2009 respectively The discount rate used in the determination of net periodic pension expense were 5.75% 7.0%

and 6.25% for the years ending September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future service as appropriate are expected to be paid

2011 1406

2012 1375

2013 1462

2014 1509

2015 1965

2016-2019 9054

90



PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars in thousands except per share data

The components of the net periodic pension expense benefit were as follows

Years ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

Service cost

Interest cost 1555 1593 1558

Expected return on plan assets 1890 1778 2110
Amortization of unrecognized loss 1509 826

Recognized net actuarial loss

Net periodic pension expense benefit 1174 641 552

Unrecognized actuarial loss and prior service cost totaling $2.0 million is expected to be amortized to pension

expense during the next fiscal year ending September 30 2011

Equity Debt Invest Funds and Other Securities The fair values for investment securities are determined by quoted

market prices if available Level For securities where quoted prices are not readily available fair values are

calculated based on market prices of similar securities Level For securities where quoted prices or market prices

of similar securities are not available fair values are calculated using discounted cash flows or other market

indicators Level

The fair value of the plan assets at September 30 2010 by asset category is as follows

Fair Value

Measurements

at

September 30

2010 Level Level Level

Asset Category

LargeU.S equity 14355 14355

Small Mid U.S equity 2848 2848

Intemational Equity 2792 2792

Total Equity 19995 19995

High yield bond 1043 1043

Intermediate term bond 4727 4727

Inflation protected bond 1031 1031 __________

Tbtal Fixed Income 6801 6801

Cash

Total Assets 26796 26796
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Weighted-average pension plan asset allocations based on the fair value of such assets at September 30 2010
and September 30 2009 and target allocations for 2011 by asset category are as follows

Weighted

September 30 September 30 Target Allocation Average Expected

2009 2010 Range 2011 Rate ofReturn

Large U.S equity securities 50% 54% 40% 85% 7.00%

Small mid U.S equity securities 10% 11% 40% 85% 15.00%

International equity securities 10% 10% 40% 85% 12.00%

Total equity securities 70% 75% 40% 85% 8.84%

Highyieldbond 3% 4% 20%-40% 8.00%

Intermediate term bond 23% 17% 20% 40% 6.00%

Inflation protected bond 4% 4% 20% 40% 3.00%

Total fixed income 30% 25% 20% 40% 5.85%

Cash 0% 0% 0%-20% 0%

The expected long-term rate of return assumption as of each measurement date was determined by taking into

consideration asset allocations as of each such date historical returns on the types of assets held and current

economic factors Under this method historical investment returns for each major asset category are applied to

the expected future investment allocation in that category as percentage of total plan assets and weighted

average is determined The Companys investment policy for determining the asset allocation targets was

developed based on the desire to optimize total return while placing strong emphasis on preservation of

capital In general it is hoped that in the aggregate changes in the fair value of plan assets will be less volatile

than similar changes in appropriate market indices Returns on invested assets are periodically compared with

target market indices for each asset type to aid management in evaluating such returns

There were no pension plan assets consisting of Provident New York Bancorp equity securities common
stock at September 30 2010 or at September 30 2009

The Company makes contributions to its funded qualified pension plans as required by government regulation

or as deemed appropriate by management after considering the fair value of plan assets expected returns on

such assets and the present value of benefit obligations of the plans At this time the Company has not

determined whether contributions in 2011 will be made

The Company has also established non-qualified Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan to provide certain

executives with supplemental retirement benefits in addition to the benefits provided by the pension plan due

to amounts limited by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended IRS Code The periodic pension

expense for the supplemental plan amounted to $87 $94 and $82 for the years ended September 30 2010
2009 and 2008 respectively The actuarial present value of the projected benefit obligation was $1763 and

$1587 at September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively and the vested benefit obligation was $1763 and $1587

for the same periods respectively all of which is unfunded

Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Companys postretirement plans which are unfunded provide optional medical dental and life insurance

benefits to retirees or death benefit payments to beneficiaries of employees covered by the Company and Bank

Owned Life Insurance policies The Company has elected to amortize the transition obligation for accumulated

benefits to retirees as an expense over 20-year period
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Data relating to the postretirement benefit plan follows

September 30

Change in accumulated postretirement benefit obligation

Beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Plan participants contributions

Amendments

98

98

2261

91

91

2041

Components of net periodic benefit expense benefit

Service Cost

Interest Cost

Amortization of transition obligation

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization of net actuarial gain

Total

For years ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

28 22 17

107 118 94

24 24 10

49 49 20

95 119 115
113 94 26

There is $13 unrecognized actuarial gain and prior service cost expected to be amortized out of accumulated other

comprehensive income in 2011

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments are expected to be paid in future years

2010 2009

2041 1720

28 22

107 118

183 272

Benefits paid

End of year

Changes in fair value of plan assets

Begiiming of year

Employer contributions

Plan participants contributions

Benefits paid

End of year

Funded status

98
2261

91
2041

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2015-2019

130

132

137

140

143

751
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Assumptions used for plan 2010 2009

Medical trend rate next year 4.50% 4.50%

Ultimate trend rate 4.50% 4.50%

Discount rate 4.50% 5.500/o

Discount rate used to value periodic cost 5.50% 7.25/h

There is no impact of 1% increase or decrease in health care trend rate due to the Companys

cap on cost

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income loss at September 30 2010 and 2009 consisted

of

2010 2009

Post retirement plan unrecognized gain 1047 1.235

Post retirement plan unrecognized service cost 412 461
Post retirement unrecognized transition obligation 51 61
Post retirement SERP 306 182
Post employment BOLl 152 61
Transition obligation 621
Subtotal 126 151
Deferred tax liability 51 61

Net amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income loss 75 90

Employee Savings Plan

The Company also sponsors defined contribution plan established under Section 40 1k of the IRS Code

Eligible employees may elect to contribute up to 50% of their compensation to the plan The Company

currently makes matching contributions equal to 50% of participants contributions up to maximum

matching contribution of 3% of eligible compensation Effective after September 30 2006 the Bank amended

the plan to include profit sharing component which was 3% of eligible compensation in addition to the

matching contributions for 2010 Voluntary matching and profit sharing contributions are invested in

accordance with the participants direction in one or number of investment options Savings plan expense

was $1751 $1594 and $1626 for the years ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

In connection with the reorganization and initial common stock offering in 1999 the Company established an

ESOP for eligible employees who meet certain age and service requirements The ESOP borrowed $3760

from the Bank and used the funds to purchase 1370112 shares of common stock in the open market

subsequent to the Offering The Bank made periodic contributions to the ESOP sufficient to satisfy the debt

service requirements of the loan which matured December 31 2007 The ESOP used these contributions any

dividends received by the ESOP on unallocated shares and forfeitures beginning in 2007 to make principal and

interest payments on the loan

In connection with the Second-Step Stock Conversion and Offering in January 2004 the Company established

an ESOP loan for eligible employees The ESOP borrowed $9987 from Provident New York Bancorp and

used the funds to purchase 998650 shares of common stock in the offering The term of the second ESOP loan

is twenty years

ESOP shares are held by the plan trustee in suspense account until allocated to participant accounts Shares

released from the
suspense account are allocated to participants on the basis of their relative compensation in

the xienr nf nilnrntinn Pnrtrinnntc hernme recteA in the iinrnted chre nxrer nerind nnt tn evreed ue enrc

Any forfeited shares were allocated to other participants in the same proportion as contributions through 2006
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and beginning in 2007 are used by the plan to reduce debt service total of $29 $4 and $293 related to plan

forfeitures were reversed against expense
for the

years
ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

ESOP expense was $413 net of forfeitures $484 net of forfeitures and $802 net of forfeitures for the

years
ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Through September 30 2010 and 2009

cumulative total of 1705078 shares and 1655146 shares respectively have been allocated to participants or

committed to be released for allocation respectively The cost of ESOP shares that have not yet been allocated

to participants or committed to be released for allocation is deducted from stockholders equity 663690 shares

with cost of $6637 and fair value of approximately $5568 at September 30 2010 and 713622 shares with

cost of $7136 and fair value of approximately $6815 at September 30 2009 respectively

supplemental savings plan has also been established for certain senior officers to compensate executives for

benefits provided under the Banks tax qualified plans employees savings plan and ESOP that are limited by

the IRS Code Expense recognized for this plan including the defined benefit component was $146 $212 and

$234 for the years
ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Amounts accrued and recorded in

other liabilities at September 30 2010 and 2009 including the defined benefit component were $3.1 million

and $2.8 million respectively

Recognition and Retention Plan

In February 2000 the Companys stockholders approved the Provident Bank 2000 Recognition and Retention

Plan the RRP The principal purpose of the RRP is to provide executive officers and directors proprietary

interest in the Company in manner designed to encourage their continued performance and service total of

856320 shares were awarded under the RRP in February 2000 and the grant-date fair value of these shares of

$2995 was charged to stockholders equity The awards vested at rate of 20/s on each of five annual vesting

dates the first of which was September 30 2000 As of February 2010 27413 shares remaining from this plan

were no longer eligible to be granted In January 2005 the Companys stockholders approved the Provident

Bancorp Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan under the terms of which the Company is authorized to issue up to

798920 shares of common stock as restricted stock awards On March 10 2005 total of 762400 shares were

awarded under the RRP and the grant-date fair value of $12.84 per share $9789 was charged to

stockholders equity The awards vested 10% on September 30 2005 The remainder will vest 20% on each of

four annual vesting dates beginning on September 30 2006 and 10% on March 10 2010 Employees who

retire under circumstances in accordance with the terms of the Plan may be entitled to accelerate the vesting of

individual awards Such acceleration would require charge to earnings for the award shares that would then

vest As of September 30 2010 600 shares were potentially subject to accelerated vesting

Under the 2004 restricted stock plan 49620 shares of authorized but un-issued shares remain available for

future grant at September 30 2010 Forfeited shares are available for re-issuance The Company also can fund

the restricted stock plan with treasury stock The fair market value of the shares awarded under the restricted

stock plan is being amortized to expense on straight-line basis over the five year vesting period of the

underlying shares Compensation expense related to the restricted stock plan was $883 $1.7 million and $1.8

million for the years
ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The remaining unearned

compensation cost is $84 as of September 30 2010 and is recorded as reduction of additional paid in capital

On grant date shares awarded under the restricted stock plan were transferred from treasury stock at cost with

the difference between the fair market value on the grant date and the cost basis of the shares recorded as

reduction to retained earnings or an increase to additional paid-in capital as applicable The fair value of the

shares awarded measured as of the grant date continues to be recognized and amortized on straight-line basis

to compensation expense over the vesting period of the awards
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summary of restricted stock award activity under the plan for the year ended September 30 2010 is

presented below

Weighted

Average

Number Grant-Date

of Shares Fair Value

Nonvested shares at September 30 2009 74750 12.93

Granted

Vested 68500 12.88

Forfeited

Nonvested shares at September 30 2010 6250 $13.51

The total fair value of restricted stock vested for fiscal year ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 was

$575 $1.3 million and $1.9 million respectively

fl Stock Option Plan

The Companys stockholders approved the Provident Bank 2000 Stock Option Plan the Stock Option Plan in

February 2000 total of 1712640 shares of authorized but unissued common stock was reserved for issuance

under the Stock Option Plan although the Company may also fund option exercises using treasury shares The

Companys stockholders also approved the Provident Bancorp Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan in February

2005 Under terms of the plan total of 1997300 shares of authorized but un-issued common stock were

reserved for issuance under the Stock Option Plan Under both plans options have ten-year term and may be

either non-qualified stock options or incentive stock options Reload options may be granted under the terms of

the 2000 Stock Option Plan and provide for the automatic grant of new option at the then-current market

price in exchange for each previously owned share tendered by an employee in stock-for-stock exercise In

February 2010 the 2000 Stock Option Plan expired with 338594 options ungranted and were no longer

eligible for grant The 2004 Plan options do not contain reload options However the 2004 plan allows for the

grant of stock appreciation rights Each option entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an

exercise price equal to the fair market value of the stock on the grant date Employees who retire under

circumstances in accordance with the terms of the Plan may be entitled to accelerate the vesting of individual

awards As of September 30 2010 36000 shares were potentially subject to accelerated vesting

Substantially all stock options outstanding are expected to vest Compensation expense related to stock option

plans was $247 $768 and $1.2 million for the
years

ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The following is summary of activity in the Stock Option Plan

Weighted

Shares subject Average

to option exercise price

Outstanding at September 30 2009 2241494 11.66

Granted 321976 9.66

Exercised 324929 4.97

Forfeited 315697 11.62

Outstanding shares at September 30 2010 1922844 $12.47

The total intrinsic value of stock options vested exercisable for fiscal years ended September 30 2010 2009

and 2008 was $0 $4.1 million and $5.6 million respectively The unrecognized compensation cost associated

with stock options was $998 as of September 30 2010 The intrinsic value of stock options exercised during

2010 was $1.1 million

At September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively there were 93257 shares and 363154 shares available for

future rnt The yrecyte intrincie v1uie cf untinQ riittndno cf Sprteniher fl 7ffl1 The

aggregate intrinsic value represents the total ire-ta intrinsic value the difference between the Companys
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closing stock price on the last trading date of the year ended September 30 2010 and the exercise price

multiplied by the number of in the money options The cash received from option exercises was $984 and

$354 for fiscal 2010 and 2009 respectively There was no tax benefit recorded in the results of operations to

the Company from the exercise of options for either fiscal 2010 or fiscal 2009

summary of stock options at September 30 2010 follows

Outstanding
Exercisable

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Number of Exercise Life Number of Exercise Life

Stock Options Price in Years Stock Options Price in Years

Range of Exercise Price

$10.03 to $11.85 370314 10.61 7.8 120314 11.78 7.8

$11.85 to $12.84 1321700 12.84 4.3 1314700 12.84 4.3

$12.84 to $15.66 230830 13.34 6.7 125530 13.40 6.7

1922844 12.47 5.3 1560544 12.80 4.8

The aggregate intrinsic value of options currently exercisable as of September 30 2010 was $0 All non

vested shares are expected to vest

The Company used an option pricing model to estimate the grant date fair value of stock options granted The

weighted-average estimated value per option granted was $2.69 in 2010 $1.97 in 2009 and $2.99 in 2008 The

fair value of options granted was determined using the following weighted-average assumptions as of the grant

date

2010 2009 2008

Risk-free interest rate 2.2 1.9 3.4

Expectedstockpricevolatility
33.2 61.5 28.0

Dividend yield
1.9 3.3 1.9

Expected term in years
7.7 .91 5.5

represents the yield on risk free rate of return either the US Treasury curve or the SWAP curve

in periods with high volatility in US Treasury securities with remaining term equal to the expected

option term

represents the approximate annualized cash dividend rate paid with respect to share of common

stock at or near the grant date
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13 Comprehensive Income Loss

Comprehensive income loss represents the sum of net income and items of other comprehensive income or loss

that are reported directly in stockholders equity such as the change during the period in the after-tax net unrealized

gain or loss on securities available for sale and change in the funded status of defined benefit plans The Company
has reported its comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of changes in stockholders equity

The components of other comprehensive income loss are summarized as follows

Year ended September 30
2010 2009 2008

Net unrealized holding gain loss

arising during the year on securities available for sale

net of related income tax expense benefit of $5435

$17834 and $l769 respectively 7963 26142 1391
Reclassification adjustment for net realized gains included

in net income net of related income tax expense

of $3313 $7328 and $399 respectively 4844 10748 584
3119 15394 1975

Change in funded status of defined benefit plans net of related

income tax benefit of $327 $2280 and $2326 472 3336 3402
2647 12058 5377

The Companys accumulated other comprehensive income loss included in stockholders equity at September 30
2010 and 2009 consists of the after-tax net unrealized gain loss on available for sale securities of $12621 and

$9502 respectively and the recognition of the funded status of defined benefit plans of $7497 and $7025 after

tax at September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively
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14 Earnings Per Common Share

The following is summary of the calculation of earnings per share EPS

Years ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

Net income 20492 25861 23778

Weighted average common shares

outstanding for computation of

basic EPSl 38161 38538 38907

Common-equivalent shares due to

the dilutive effect of stock

options and RRP awards2 24 168 320

Weighted average common shares

for computation of diluted EPS 38185 38706 39227

Earnings per common share

Basic 0.54 0.67 0.61

Diluted 0.54 0.67 0.61

Excludes unallocated ESOP shares and non vested RRP shares

Represents incremental shares computed using the treasury stock method

As of September 30 20102009 and 2008 there were 1826519 1934637 and 1155653 stock options

respectively that were considered anti-dilutive for these periods and were not included in common-equivalent

shares

15 Stockholders Equity

Regulatory Capital Requirements

OTS regulations require banks to maintain minimum ratio of tangible capital to total adjusted assets of 1.5%

minimum ratio of Tier core capital to total adjusted assets of 4.0% and minimum ratio of total core and

supplementary capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.0%

Under its prompt corrective action regulations the OTS is required to take certain supervisory actions and

may take additional discretionary actions with respect to an undercapitalized institution Such actions could

have direct material effect on the institutions fmancial statements

The regulations establish framework for the classification of banks into five categories well capitalized

adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized

Generally an institution is considered well-capitalized if it has Tier core capital ratio of at least 5.0%

Tier risk-based capital ratio of at least 6.0% and total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.0%

The foregoing capital ratios are based in part on specific quantitative measures of assets liabilities and certain

off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices Capital amounts and

classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the OTS about capital components risk weightings

and other factors These capital requirements apply only to the Bank and do not consider additional capital

retained by Provident New York Bancorp

Management believes that as of September 30 2010 and 2009 the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements

to which it was subject Further the most recent OTS notification categorized the Bank as well-capitalized
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institution under the prompt corrective action regulations There have been no conditions or events since that

notification that management believes have changed the Banks capital classification

The following is summary of the Banks actual regulatory capital amounts and ratios at September 30 2010

and 2009 compared to the OTS requirements for minimum capital adequacy and for classification as well-

capitalized institution PMB is also subject to certain regulatory capital requirements which it satisfied as of

September 30 2010 and 2009

OTS requirements

Minimum capital Classification as well

Bank actual adequacy capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

September 30 2010

Tangible capital 240230 8.4% 42734 1.5%

Tier core capital 240230 8.4 113958 4.0 142447 5.0%

Risk-based capital

Tier 240230 12.1 119251 6.0

Total 265148 13.3 159002 8.0 198752 10.0

September 30 2009

Tangible capital 246339 8.6% 42784 1.5%

Tier core capital 246339 8.6 114090 4.0 142613 5.0%

Risk-based capital

Tier 246339 12.6 117447 6.0

Total 270807 13.8 156596 8.0 195746 10.0

Tangible and Tier capital amounts represent the stockholders equity of the Bank less intangible assets and

after-tax net unrealized gains losses on securities available for sale and any other disallowed assets such as

deferred income taxes Total capital represents Tier capital plus the allowance for loan losses up to

maximum amount equal to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets

The following is reconciliation of the Banks total stockholders equity under accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America GAAP and its regulatory capital

September 30

2010 2009

Total GAAP stockholders equity Provident Bank 403630 408555

Goodwill and certain intangible assets 158127 159600
Unrealized gains losses on securities available for sale

included in other accumulated comprehensive income 12770 9641
Other Comprehensive loss income 7497 7025

Tangible tier core and

Tier risk-based capital 240230 246339

Allowance for loan losses 24918 24468
Total risk-based capital 265148 270807

Dividend Payments

Under OTS regulations savings associations such as the Bank generally may declare annual cash dividends

up to an amount equal to the sum of net income for the current calendar
year

and net income retained for the

two preceding calendar
years

Dividend payments in excess of this amount require OTS approval After

September 30 2010 the amount that can be paid to Provident New York Bancorp by Provident Bank is $16.2
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million plus earnings for the remainder of calendar year 2010 The Bank paid $29.4 million in dividends to

Provident New York Bancorp during the fiscal year
ended September 30 2010 $10.5 million during the year

ended 2009 and $19 million during the year ended September 30 2008

Unlike the Bank Provident New York Bancorp is not subject to OTS regulatory limitations on the payment

of dividends to its stockholders

Stock Repurchase Programs

The Company announced its fifth stock repurchase program on December 17 2009 authorizing the

repurchase of 2000000 shares of which 1234167 remain to be purchased at September 30 2010

The total number of shares repurchased under repurchase programs during the fiscal year
ended September

30 2010 2009 and 2008 was 1515923 415811 and 1570757 respectively at total cost of $12.9

million $3.5 million and $19.8 million respectively

Liquidation Rights

Upon completion of the second-step conversion in January 2004 the Bank established special liquidation

account in accordance with OTS regulations The account was established for the benefit of Eligible

Account Holders and Supplemental Eligible Account Holders as defined in the plan of conversion in an

amount equal to the greater of the Mutual Holding Companys ownership interest in the retained earnings

of Provident Federal as of the date of its latest balance sheet contained in the prospectus or ii the retained

earnings of the Bank at the time that the Bank reorganized into the Mutual Holding Company in 1999 Each

Eligible Account Holder and Supplemental Eligible Account Holder that continues to maintain his or her

deposit account at the Bank would be entitled in the event of complete liquidation of the Bank to pro rata

interest in the liquidation account prior to any payment to the stockholders of the Holding Company The

liquidation account is reduced annually on December 31 to the extent that Eligible Account Holders and

Supplemental Eligible Account Holders have reduced their qualifying deposits as of each anniversary date

Subsequent increases in deposits do not restore such account holders interest in the liquidation account The

Bank may not pay cash dividends or make other capital distributions if the effect thereof would be to reduce

its stockholders equity below the amount of the liquidation account
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16 Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business the Company is party to off-balance-sheet financial instruments that involve to

varying degrees elements of credit risk and interest rate risk in addition to the amounts recognized in the

consolidated fmancial statements The contractual or notional amounts of these instruments which reflect the extent

of the Companys involvement in particular classes of off-balance-sheet financial instruments are summarized as

follows

September 30

2010 2009

Lending-related instruments

Loan origination commitments 114822 133547

Unused lines of credit 282428 302455

Letters of credit 23104 24569

As of September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 86% and 94% respectively of lending related off balance sheet

instruments were at variable rates

The contractual amounts of loan origination commitments unused lines of credit and letters of credit represent the

Companys maximum potential exposure to credit loss assuming the instruments are fully funded at later date

ii the borrowers do not meet the contractual payment obligations and iiiany collateral or other security proves to

be worthless The contractual amounts of these instruments do not necessarily represent future cash requirements

since certain of these instruments may expire without being funded and others may not be fully drawn upon
Substantially all of these lending-related instruments have been entered into with customers located in the

Companys primary market area described in Note Loans

Loan origination commitments are legally-binding agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation

of any condition established in the contract Commitments have fixed expiration dates generally ranging up to 60

days or other termination clauses and may require payment of fee by the customer The Company evaluates each

customers credit worthiness on case-by-case basis The amount of collateral if any obtained by the Company
upon extension of credit is based on managements credit evaluation of the borrower Collateral varies but may
include mortgages on residential and commercial real estate deposit accounts with the Company and other

property The Companys loan origination commitments at September 30 2010 provide for interest rates ranging

principally from 2.19% to 7.75%

Unused lines of credit are legally-binding agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of
any

condition established in the contract Lines of credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination

clauses The amount of collateral obtained if deemed
necessary by the Company is based on managements credit

evaluation of the borrower

Letters of credit are commitments issued by the Company on behalf of its customer in favor of beneficiary that

specify an amount the Company can be called upon to pay upon the beneficiarys compliance with the terms of the

letter of credit These commitments are nearly all standby letters of credit and are primarily issued in favor of local

municipalities to support the obligors completion of real estate development projects The credit risk involved in

issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers

As of September 30 2010 the Company had $23104 in outstanding letters of credit of which $10276 were secured

by collateral
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17 Commitments and Contingencies

Certain premises and equipment are leased under operating leases with terms expiring through 2033 The Company

has the option to renew certain of these leases for additional terms Future minimum rental payments due under

non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms of more than one year at September 30 2010 were as

follows for fiscal years ending September 3Oth

2011 2537

2012 2483

2013 2332

2014 2118

2015 1983

2016 and thereafter 16729

28182

Occupancy and office operations expense
include net rent expense

of $2802 $2726 and $2398 for the years

ended September 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The Company is defendant in certain claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business

Management after consultation with legal counsel does not anticipate losses on any of these claims or actions that

would have material adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements
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18 Fair value measurements

Effective October 2008 the Company adopted provisions of FASB Codification Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosure This topic establishes hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs The fair values hierarchy is as follows

LEVEL Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

LEVEL Valuation is determined from quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets quoted prices for

identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active or by model-based techniques in which all significant inputs
are observable in the market

LEVEL Valuation is derived from model-based techniques in which at least one significant input is unobservable and
based on the Companys own estimates about the assumptions that the market participants would use to value the asset or

liability

When available the Company attempts to use quoted market prices in active markets to determine fair value and classifies such

items as Level or Level If quoted market prices in active markets are not available fair value is often determined using
model-based techniques incorporating various assumptions including interest rates prepayment speeds and credit losses

Assets and liabilities valued using model-based techniques are classified as either Level or Level depending on the lowest

level classification of an input that is considered significant to the overall valuation

The following is description of the valuation methodologies used for the Companys assets and liabilities that are measured
on recurring basis at estimated fair value

In vestment securities available for sale

The majority of the Companys available for sale investment securities have been valued by reference to prices for similar

securities or through model-based techniques in which all significant inputs are observable and therefore such valuations have

been classified as Level Certain investments are actively traded and therefore have been classified as Level valuations

U.S Treasuries and certain government sponsored agencies

The Company utilizes an outside vendor to obtain valuations for its traded securities as well as information received from
third party investment advisor The majority of the Companys available for sale investment securities mortgage backed
securities issued by US government corporations and government sponsored entities have been valued by reference to prices
for similar securities or through model-based techniques in which all significant inputs are observable Level The

Company utilizes prices from leading provider of market data information and compares them to dealer indicative bids from
the Companys external investment advisor For securities where there is limited trading activity private label CMOs and
less observable valuation inputs the Company has classified such valuations as Level

The Company reviewed the volume and level of activity for its available for sale securities to identify transactions which may
not be orderly or reflective of significant activity and volume Although estimated prices were generally obtained for such

securities there has been decline in the volume and level of activity in the market for its private label mortgage backed
securities The market assumptions regarding credit adjusted cash flows and liquidity influences on discount rates were
difficult to observe at the individual bond level Because of the inactivity in the markets and the lack of observable valuation

inputs the Company has classified the valuation of privately issued residential mortgage backed securities as Level as of

April 2009 with at fair value of $9534 As of September 30 2010 these securities have an amortized cost of $6355 and
fair value of $5996 In determining the fair value of these securities the Company utilized unobservable inputs which reflect

assumptions regarding the inputs that market participants would use in pricing these securities in an orderly market Present

value estimated cash flow models were used discounted at rate that was reflective of similarly structured securities in an

orderly market The resultant prices were averaged with prices obtained from two independent third parties to arrive at the fair

value as of September 30 2010 These securities have weighted average coupon rate of 3.22% weighted average
life of

4.18
years weighted average month prepayment history of 8.17 years and weighted average twelve month default rate of

2.91 CDR One of the four securities is below investment grade and has an amortized cost of $2308 and fair value of $2044
at September 30 2010 The remaining three securities are rated at or above Aa3
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Derivatives

The fair values of derivatives are based on valuation models using observable market data as of the measurement date Level

Commitments to sell real estate loans

The Company enters into various commitments to sell real estate loans into the secondary market Such commitments are

considered to be derivative financial instruments and therefore are carried at estimated fair value on the consolidated balance

sheets The estimated fair values of these commitments were generally calculated by reference to quoted prices in secondary

markets for commitments to sell to certain government sponsored agencies The fair values of these commitments generally

result in Level classification The fair values of these commitments are not considered material

summary of assets and liabilities at September 30 2010 measured at estimated fair value on recurring basis were as

follows

Fair Value

Measurements

at

September 30

2010 Level Level Level

Investment securities available for sale

U.S Treasury and federal agencies
418312 418312

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 191657 191657

Government issued or guaranteed mortgage-backed securities 253618 253618

Privately issued collateralized mortgage obligation 5996 5996

Corporate debt securities 30540 30540

Equities
889 889

Total investment securities available for sale 901012 418312 476704 5996

Other assets
435 435

Total assets
901447 418312 477139 5996

Other liabilities2
173 173

Total Liabilities
173 173

Interest rate caps and swaps

Swaps
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summary of assets and liabilities at September 30 2009 measured at estimated fair value on recurring basis were as
follows

Fair Value

Measurements

at

September 30

2009 Level Level Level
Investment securities available for sale

U.S Treasury and federal agencies 207776 207776

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 167584 167584
Government issued or guaranteed mortgage-backed securities 420104 420104
Privately issued collateralized mortgage obligation 10411 10411
Corporate debt securities 25823 25823
Equities

885 885
Total investment securities available for sale 832583 207776 614396 10411

The changes in Level assets measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized as follows for the period ending
September 30 2010

Privately

issued

CMOS
Balance at September 30 2009 10411

Pay downs 1946
Amortization and accretion 49

Change in fair value 380

Loss recognized on Sale 186
Sale 2712

Balance at September 30 2010 5996

The following categories of financial assets are not measured at fair value on recurring basis but are subject to fair value

adjustments in certain circumstances

Loans and Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are not generally recorded at fair value on recurring basis

The Company may record nonrecurring adjustments to the carlying value of loans based on fair value measurements for partial

charge-offs of the uncollectible portions of these loans
Nonrecurring adjustments also include certain impairment amounts for

collateral dependant loans calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 310 Receivables when establishing the allowance
for credit losses Such amounts are generally based on the fair value of the underlying collateral supporting the loan and as

result the carrying value of the loan less the calculated valuation amount does not necessarily represent the fair value of the

loan Real estate collateral is valued using independent appraisals or other indications of value based upon recent comparable
sales of similar

properties or assumptions generally observable by market participants Any fair value adjustments for loans
categorized here are classified as Level Estimates of fair value used for other collateral supporting commercial loans

generally are based on assumptions not observable in the market place and therefore such valuations have been classified as
Level Loans subject to nonrecurring fair value measurements were $28717 and $11857 which equals the carrying value
less the allowance for loan losses allocated to these loans at September 30 2010 and September 30 2009 respectively Loans
subject to nonrecurring fair value measurements have been transferred from Level to Level as of September 30 2010
Changes in fair value recognized on provisions on loans held by the Company were $467 and $2913 for the twelve months
ended September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively

106



PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars in thousands except per share data

Mortgage servicing rights

The Company utilizes the amortization method to subsequently measure the carrying value of its servicing asset In

accordance with FASB ASC Topic 860-Transfers and Servicing the Company must record impairment charges on

nonrecurring basis when the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value To estimate the fair value of servicing rights the

Company utilizes third party vendor which considers the market prices for similar assets and the present value of expected

future cash flows associated with the servicing rights Assumptions utilized include estimates of the cost of servicing loan

default rates an appropriate discount rate and prepayment speeds The determination of fair value of servicing rights is

considered Level valuation Changes in fair value of mortgage servicing rights recognized for the twelve months ended in

the fiscal year ended September 30 2010 was an increase of $332 valuation allowance of $54 and $115 was recorded at

September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively reflecting the lower of amortized cost or fair market value

Assets taken in foreclosure of defaulted loans

Assets taken in foreclosure of defaulted loans are primarily comprised of commercial and residential real property and upon

initial recognition were re-measured and reported at fair value through charge-off to the allowance for loan losses based

upon the fair value of the foreclosed asset The fair value is generally determined using appraisals or other indications of value

based on recent comparable sales of similarproperties or assumptions generally observable in the market place and the related

nonrecurring fair value measurements adjustments have generally been classified as Level Assets taken in foreclosure of

defaulted loans subject to nonrecurring fair value measurement were $3891 and $1712 at September 30 2010 and 2009

respectively Changes in fair value recognized for those foreclosed assets held by the Company totaled $44 and $186 at

September 30 2010 and 2009 respectively

summary of assets and liabilities at September 30 2010 measured at estimated fair value on non -recurring basis were as

follows

Fair Value

Measurements

at

September 30

2010 Level Level Level

Impaired loans with specific allowance allocations 28717 28717

Mortgage servicing rights 1172 1172

Total 29889 29889

summary of assets and liabilities at September 30 2009 measured at estimated fair value on non -recurring basis were as

follows

Fair Value

Measurements

at

September 30

2009 Level Level Level

Impaired loans with specific allowance allocations 11857 11857

Mortgage servicing rights
840 840

Total 840 840
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19 Fair Values of Financial Instruments

FASB Codification Topic 825 Financial Instruments requires disclosure of fair value information for those financial

instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value whether or not such financial instruments are recognized in the

consolidated statements of financial condition for interim and annual periods Fair value is the amount at which financial

instrument could be exchanged in current transaction between willing parties other than in forced sale or liquidation

Quoted market prices are used to estimate fair values when those prices are available although active markets do not exist for

many types of financial instruments Fair values for these instruments must be estimated by management using techniques such

as discounted cash flow analysis and comparison to similar instruments These estimates are highly subjective and require

judgments regarding significant matters such as the amount and timing of future cash flows and the selection of discount rates

that appropriately reflect market and credit risks Changes in these judgments often have material effect on the fair value

estimates Since these estimates are made as of specific point in time they are susceptible to material near-term changes Fair

values disclosed in accordance with FASB Topic 825 do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from the sale of

large volume of particular financial instrument nor do they reflect possible tax ramifications or estimated transaction costs

The following is summary of the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities none of which

were held for trading purposes

September 30 September 30
2010 2009

Carrying Estimated Canying Estimated

amount fair value amount fair value

Financial assets

Cash and due from banks 90872 90872 160408 160408

Securities available for sale 901012 901012 832583 832583

Securities held to maturity 33848 35062 44614 45739

Loans 1670698 1.680939 1673207 1674490

Loans held for sale 5890 5934 1213 1242

Accrued interest receivable 11069 11069 10472 10472

FHLB of New York stock 19572 19572 23177 23177

Financial liabilities

Non-maturity deposits 1765129 1765129 1587321 1587321
Certificates of Deposit 377573 380744 494961 498105
FHLB and other borrowings 415247 473785 482122 524187

Mortgage escrow funds 8198 8198 8405 8405
Accrued interest payable 2307 2307 3246 3246

The following paragraphs summarize the principal methods and assumptions used by management to estimate the fair value of

the Companys financial instruments

Securities

The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes market spreads cash flows live

trading levels market consensus prepayment speeds credit information and the bonds terms and conditions among other

items For certain securities for which the inputs used by independent pricing services were derived from unobservable

market information the Company evaluated the appropriateness of each price In accordance with adoption of FASB
Codification Topic 820 the Company reviewed the volume and level of activity for its different classes of securities to

determine whether transactions were not considered orderly For these securities the quoted prices received from

independent pricing services may be adjusted as necessary to estimate fair value in accordance with FASB Codification
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Topic 820 If applicable adjustments to fair value were based on averaging present value cash flow model projections

with prices obtained from independent pricing services

Loans

Fair values were estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics For valuation purposes the total

loan portfolio was segregated into adjustable-rate and fixed-rate categories Fixed-rate loans were further segmented by

type such as residential mortgage commercial mortgage commercial business and consumer loans Loans were also

segmented by maturity dates Fair values were estimated by discounting scheduled future cash flows through estimated

maturity using discount rate equivalent to the current market rate on loans that are similarwith regard to collateral

maturity and the type of borrower The discounted value of the cash flows was reduced by credit risk adjustment based

on loan categories Based on the current composition of the Companys loan portfolio as well as past experience and

current economic conditions and trends the future cash flows were adjusted by prepayment assumptions that shortened

the estimated remaining time to maturity and therefore affected the fair value estimates

FHLB of New York Stock

The redeemable carrying amount of these securities with limited marketability approximates
their fair value

Deposits and Mortgage Escrow Funds

In accordance with FASB Codification Topic 825 deposits with no stated maturity such as savings demand and money

market deposits were assigned fair values equal to the carrying amounts payable on demand Certificates of deposit and

mortgage escrow funds were segregated by account type and original term and fair values were estimated by discounting

the contractual cash flows The discount rate for each account grouping was equivalent to the current market rates for

deposits of similar type and maturity

These fair values do not include the value of core deposit relationships that comprise significant portion of the

Companys deposit base Management believes that the Companys core deposit relationships provide relatively stable

low-cost funding source that has substantial value separate from the deposit balances

Borrowings

Fair values of FHLB and other borrowings were estimated by discounting the contractual cash flows discount rate was

utilized for each outstanding borrowing equivalent to the then-current rate offered on borrowings of similar type and

maturity

09 Other Financial Instruments

The other financial assets and liabilities listed in the preceding table have estimated fair values that approximate the

respective carrying amounts because the instruments are payable on demand or have short-term maturities and present

relatively low credit risk and interest rate risk

The fair values of the Companys off-balance-sheet financial instruments described in Note 15 Off Balance Sheet

Financial Instruments were estimated based on current market terms including interest rates and fees considering the

remaining terms of the agreements and the credit worthiness of the counterparties At September 30 2010 and September

30 2009 the estimated fair values of these instruments approximated the related carrying amounts which were

insignificant
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20 Recently tssued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

Accounting Standards Update ASU 2009-16 Transfers and Servicing Topic 860-A ccounting for Transfers ofFinancial

Assets has been issued ASU 2009-16 will require more information about transfers of financial assets including
securitization transactions and where entities have continuing exposure to the risks related to transferred financial assets

This standard is effective for the Company October 2010 and is not expected to have material effect on the Companys
consolidated financial statements

ASC 2009-17 Consolidations Topic 810-Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variable

hiterest Entities has been issued ASU 2009-17 changes how reporting entity determines when an entity that is

insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting or similar rights should be consolidated This standard is

effective for the Company October 2010 and is not expected to have material effect on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

ASC 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 Improving Disclosures about Fair Value

Measurements has been issued ASU 2010-06 requires some new disclosures and clarifies some existing disclosure

requirements about fair value measurement This standard is generally effective for the Company October 2010 and is

not expected to have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

ASU 20 10-20 Receivables Topic 310-Disclosures abut the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance

for Credit Losses will require significantly more information about credit quality in financial institutions portfolio This

statement addresses only disclosures and does not seek to change recognition or measurement This standard is effective

for the Company October 2010 and is not expected to have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

See Note for discussion of adoption of new accounting standards

21 Condensed Parent Company Financial Statements

Set forth below are the condensed statements of financial condition of Provident New York Bancorp and the related condensed

statements of income and cash flows

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition September 30

2010 2009

Assets

Cash 10020 2466
Loan receivable from ESOP 7762 8170
Securities available for sale at fair value 790 790

Investment in Provident Bank 404755 409588

Non-bank subsidiaries 8702 7218

Other assets 365 690

Total assets 432394 428922

Liabilities 1439 1466

Stockholders equity 430955 427456

Total liabilities stockholders equity 432394 428922
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Condensed Statements of Income

Interest income

Dividend income on equity securities

Dividends from Provident Bank

Dividends from non-bank subsidiaries

Non-interest expense

Income tax benefit

Income before equity in undistributed

earnings of subsidiaries

Equity in undistributed excess distributed earnings of

Provident Bank

Non-bank subsidiaries

Net income

Year ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

326 358 473

28 28 27

29400 10500 19000

400 607 650

2262 3372 3807
321 797 962

28213 8918 17305

8257 17076 6644

536 133 171
20492 25861 23778

8257

536
1077
27136

350
13062

9216
2196

442

19990

7554

2466

10020

17076
133

475
8443

3785
9379

3055

488

9621
786

3252

2466

6644
171

760

18065

1041
754

287

20230

9525
4001

1382

24372

6594
9846

3252

Year ended September 30

2010 2009 2008

20492 25861 23778

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities

Equity in undistributed excess distributed earnings of

Provident Bank

Non-bank subsidiaries

Other adjustments net

Net cash provided by operating activites

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of equity securities available for sale

ESOP loan principal repayments

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Cash flows from fmancing activities

Capital contribution to subsidiaries

Treasury shares purchased

Cash dividends paid

Stock option transactions including RRP

Other equity transactions

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

408 392

408 392

111



PROVIDENT NEW YORK BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dollars in thousands except per share data

22 Quarterly Results of Operations Unaudited

The following is condensed summary of quarterly results of operations for the years ended September 30 2010 and 2009

First Second Third Fourth

quarter quarter quarter quarter
Year ended SeDtember 30 2010

Interest and dividend income 30418 29627 30408 29321

Interest expense 7532 6693 6210 6005
Net interest income 22886 22934 24198 23316

Provision for loan losses 2500 2500 2750 2250
Non-interest income 8093 6113 5281 7714
Non-interest expense 19894 21173 20741 21362

Income before income

tax expense 8585 5374 5988 7418

Income tax expense 2419 1207 1232 2015

Net income 6166 4167 4756 5403

Earnings per common share

Basic 0.16 0.11 0.12 0.14

Diluted 0.16 0.11 0.12 0.14

Year ended SeDtember 30 2009

Interest and dividend income 35871 33586 31651 30482
Interest

expense 10825 9951 8925 8019
Net interest income 25046 23635 22726 22463

Provision for loan losses 2500 7100 3500 4500
Non-interest income 5771 11123 15255 7804
Non-interest expense 19235 20076 21517 19359

Income before income

tax expense 9082 7582 12964 6408
Income tax expense 2791 2038 4014 1332

Net income 6291 5544 8950 5076

Earnings per common share

Basic 0.16 0.14 0.23 0.13

Diluted 0.16 0.14 0.23 0.13
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ITEM Chances in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accountin2 and Financial Disclosure

Not Applicable

ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of September 30 2010 under the supervision and with the participation of Provident New York Bancorps Chief

Executive Officer CEO and Chief Financial Officer CFO management has evaluated the effectiveness of the

design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures Based on the evaluation the CEO and

CFO concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance

level in timely alerting them to material information required to be included in Provident New York Bancorps

periodic SEC reports There were no changes in the Companys internal controls over financial reporting during the

fourth fiscal quarter of 2010 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys

internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting see Report of Management on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting

Provident New York Bancorps management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal

control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5f and 5d- 15f Under the

supervision and with the participation of the management of Provident New York Bancorps including Provident

New York Bancorps CEO and CFO Provident New York Bancorp conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of

the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2010 based on the framework in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission which is also referred to as COSO Based on that evaluation management of Provident New York

Bancorp concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30

2010 Managements assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting is expressed at the

level of reasonable assurance because control system no matter how well designed and operated can provide only

reasonable but not absolute assurance that the control systems objectives will be met

The effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2010 has been

audited by Crowe Horwath LLP as stated in their report which is included elsewhere herein

ITEM 9B Other Information

Not applicable

PART III

ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Proposal Election of Directors section of Provident New York Bancorps Proxy Statement for the Annual

Meeting of Stocltholders to be held in February 2011 the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

The Proposal Election of Directors section of the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference
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ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Mana2ement and Related Stockholder

Matters

Provident New York Bancorp does not have any equity compensation programs that were not approved by
stockholders other than its employee stock ownership plan

Set forth below is certain information as of September 30 2010 regarding equity compensation that has been

approved by stockholders

Equity compensation plans Number of Number of securities

approved by securities to be Weighted remaining

stockholders issued upon average available for issuance

exercise of Exercise price under plan

outstanding

options and

rights

Stock Option Plans 1922844 $12.47 93257
Recognition and Retention Plan 6250 N/A 49620
Total 1929094 $12.47 142877

Represents shares that have been granted but have not yet vested

Weighted average exercise price represents Stock Option Plan only since RRP shares have no exercise

price

The Proposal Election of Directors section of the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The Transactions with Certain Related Persons section of the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm section of the proxy statement is incorporated herein by
reference

PART IV

ITEM 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

The financial statements filed in Item of this Form 10-K are as follows

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of

September 30 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended

September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the years ended September 30 2010 2009

and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended

September 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have been omitted as the required information is inapplicable or has been included

in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Exhibits

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Provident New York Bancorp

3.2 Bylaws of Provident New York Bancorp as amended2

10.2 Employment Agreement with George Strayton3

10.3 Employment Agreement with Daniel Rothstein4t

10.4 Deferred Compensation Agreement as amended and restateds

10.5 Provident Amended and Restated 1995 Supplemental Executive

Retirement PlanS

10.5.1 Provident 2005 Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan7

10.6 Executive Officer Incentive Program8

10.7 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan for Officers and Directors as amendeds

10.8 Provident Bank 2000 Stock Option
Plan

10.9 Provident Bank 2000 Recognition and Retention Plan

10.10 Employment Agreement with Paul Maisch2

10.11 Provident Bancorp Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan3

10.12 Provident Bank Executive Officer Incentive Planh4

10.13 Employment Agreement with Stephen
Dormer15t

10.14 Employment Agreement with Richard Jones16t

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant
filed herewith

23 Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP filed herewith

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 filed herewith

32 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as amended by Section 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002
filed herewith

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-108795

originally filed with the Commission on September 15 2003

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K File No 0-25233 flied with

the Commission on November 2010

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the 2008 10-K File No 0-25233 files with the Commission

on December 15 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the 2008 10-K File No 0-25233 filed with the Commission

on December 15 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registration Statement on Form S-i of Provident Bancorp

Inc File No 333-63593 filed with the Commission on September 17 1998

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q File No 0-25233 filed

with the Commission on August 11 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q File No 0-2523 filed

with the Commission on August 11 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the 2007 10-K File No 0-25233 filed with the Commission

on December 13 2007

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Amendment No to the Registration Statement on Form S-i

of Provident Bancorp Inc File No 333-63593 flied with the Commission on September 17 1998

10

Incorporated by reference to Appendix of the Proxy Statement for the 2000 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders of Provident Bancorp Inc File No 0-25233 filed with the Commission on January 18

2000
11

Incorporated by reference to Appendix of the Proxy Statement for the 2000 Aimuai Meeting of

Stockholders of Provident Bancorp Inc File No 0-25233 filed with the Commission on January 18

2000
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12

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the 2008 10-K File No 0-25233 filed with the Commission

on December 15 2008
13

Incorporated by reference to Appendix to the Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders of Provident Bancorp Inc File No 0-25233 filed with the Commission on January 19
2005

14

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Cunent Report on Form 8-K File No 0-25233 filed with

the Commission on December 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of the 2008 10-K File No 0-25233 filed with the Commission

on December 15 2008
16

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q File No 0-25233 filed

with the Commission on February 2009
Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Provident New York Bancorp

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned there unto duly authorized

Provident New York Bancorp

Date December13 2010 By /s/ George Strayton

George Strayton

President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

By /s/ George Strayton

George Strayton

President Chief Executive Officer and

Director

Principal Executive Officer

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ William Helmer

William Helmer

Chairman of the Board

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ PaulA Maisch

Paul Maisch

Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Officer

Principal Financial Officer

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ Dennis Coyle

Dennis Coyle

Vice Chairman

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ Navy Djonovic

Navy Djonovic

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ Judith Hershaft

Judith Hershaft

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ Thomas Jauntig Jr

Thomas Jauntig Jr

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ Thomas Kahn

Thomas Kahn

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/R Michael Kennedy

Michael Kennedy

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ Victoria Kossover

Victoria Kossover

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/Donald McNelis

Donald McNelis

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ Carl Rosenstock

Carl Rosenstock

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/ William Sichol Jr

William Sichol Jr

Director

Date December 13 2010

By /s/Burt Steinberg

Burt Steinberg

Director

Date December 13 2010
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Provident Bank an independent full sei vice community bank founded in 1888 is the banking subsid ary of

Provdent New York Bancoip headquaitered in Montebcllo New York With 3.0 billion in ass ts and approxi

mately 600 employees we Jperate 35 branches that serve thc Greater Hudson Valley iegion Our franchise

includes 34 branches located in Rockland Orange Sullivan Ulster and Putnam Counties in New York inc uc ing

three Commercial Banking Centers in Westchester County New York We so oper ste one branch in Be ge

County New Jeisey that opeiates ider the name fowncenter Bank division of Provident Bank New Yrk

We offer deposit services to municipalit es located in the State of Ncw York rhiough Provident Banks saholly

owned subsidiary Provident Municipal Bink and investment advisoiy services through our affiliate Hudson

Valley Investment Advisors LLC Our title insurance agency affiliate Hardenburgh Abstract Company nc

located in Goshen New Yoik provides titlc services thioughout ou Heel York region Provident Bank offc rs

complete ne of commeicial communty business and retal banking products and services We also offer

non deposit investment and nsurance products through our ie ationship with Linsco Private Ledge

Provident New Yoik Bancorp common stock is listed on the NASDAO obal Sc ect Maikct
ci

rdAr the

symbol PBNY

Cc cc as jcr sO

cci affcc tic cp ae Ni at sac sOc cc

cc sill Cc pat These products are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC or any other yoeernment

açjency They are not deposAs or other
oblipaflons of or guaranteed by Provident Punk and are subject to ineeatment rtsk ndudng

possible loss of princrpal



To Our Shareholders

Pushing through the headwinds of the economys slow recovery Provident Bank turned in

solid performance in 2010 Well positioned and prepared we worked through the years

challengesand by continuing to focus on the fundamentals and maintaining our disciplined

approach to banking we performed comparatively well We grew commercial loan balances with

quality loans increased transaction account balances and held expenses under control all con

tributing to healthy earnings

Consistent performance

While net income decreased during the fiscal year ended September 30 2010 our earnings excluding

securities gains and fair value adjustment for derivatives were up 10% Although total loans were relatively

flat due to the sale of $49 million of residential mortgages into the secondary market commercial loans

grew healthy $61 million or 6.2% and we saw pricing return to more traditional levels

Our credit quality held up well despite lingering losses in community business loans and strain in our

construction loans as result of the economic downturn Our level of nonperforming loans remains lower

than many of our peer banks and our loan loss reserves are over 100% of nonperforming loans These

factors led us to reduce our provision for loan losses from $17.6 million to $10.0 million thereby benefiting

net income



During the year we also achieved significant qrowth in deposits with transaction accounts up 12o led by

our commercial deposits Mortgage refinanong also grew driven by low interest rates and aided by our

expertise and accessible mortgage products Notably nearly half of our refinanced mortgages were from

new bank ustomei contributing to fee income

Despitc the ieduction in interest rates we were ahie tn knep net interest income and margins relatively

unchanged which allowed us to position the Bank for increases in interest rates Oui high quality investment

portfolio provided the opportunity to harvest some of its appieciation while shortening the duiation of

the portfolio to enable us to better respond to increasing rates In addition we continued to pay dividend

and bought back million shares as we continually seek ways to enhance shareholder value

lespite the economys sluggish recovery and relatively flat unemployment in our market oui inherent

strength helped us maintain the stability of our franchise drawing on the solid operational and business

framework we continue to enhance each year

During the fiscal year as nonbank loan originators continued to exit our market and many competitois

reduced staff and restricted their lending many new commercial customers seeking relationship banking

found home at Provident Bank Offering commercial customers access to financinq trusted financial

advice and breadth of commercial banking services served us well Consumers also turned to us as they

ought the safety of bank they know and tiust

Our ongoing investment and planning in risk management also helped us successfully continue to manage

through this downturn In fiscal 2010 we strengthened our risk management diligence through com

prehensive review process and enhanced and expanded our Business Intelligence Unit group that

aggregates and analyzes the banks information resources and identifies and reports on key strategic and troj St Ott

financial objectives lnvesting in growing our business while investing in processes to manage our risk

is fundamental value at Provident Bank part of our DNA

Our approach to risk also extends to how we conduct business with our customeis every day By develop

ng close trusted business relationships not only are we better able to spot potential problems that may

Proviaent New York ikanorrp



Financial Highlights

For the Years Ended September 30

Dollarsinthousandsexceptpersharedata 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Selected Financial Condition Data

Total assets $3021025 $3021893 $2984371 $2802099 $2841337

Loans net 1670698 1673207 1708452 1617669 1453185

Securities 934860 877197 834701 832443 1012716

Deposits 2142702 2082282 1989197 1713684 1729659

Borrowings 415247 482122 566008 661242 682739

Equity 430955 427456 399158 405089 405286

Selected Operating Data

Net interest income 93334 93870 95340 84738 84757

Provision for loan losses 10000 17600 7200 1800 1200

Non-interest income 27201 39953 21042 19845 17152

Non-interest expense 83170 80187 75500 74590 71256

Income tax expense 6873 10175 9904 8566 9258

Net income 20492 25861 23778 19627 20195

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data

Return on assets 0.70% 0.89% 0.84% 0.70% 0.75%

Return on equity 4.82 6.22 5.88 4.82 5.15

Net interest margin 3.78 3.81 3.96 3.57 3.68

Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans 115 114 137 281 406

Equityto total assets 14.27 14.15 13.37 14.46 14.26

Diluted earnings per share 0.54 0.67 0.61 0.48 0.49

Dividends per share 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.20 0.20

Closing market price per share 8.39 9.55 13.22 13.11 13.68



arise but we are also able to work with commercial customers to help them understand the changing

finan al marketplace and raise business questions that may enable them to avert problems or take advan

sage of opportunities they might otherwise miss In short we recognize that when our customers thrive

so do we

trusted presence in our communities we are leading full service community bank in the lower Hudson

Valley region with $3 billion in assets With our wide range of banking lending investment and insurance

services we continually look for ways to deepen relationships with our customers We take pride in our

ability to deliver consistent quality service whether through our branches website phone bank or AIM

network as we work to empower people to use our tools and services to benefit themselves

With more lenders in oui legacy market than any other bank Provident holds the number one market

share in total dollar volume of small business loan originations in Orange and Sullivan Counties and the

second largest market share in Rockland County excluding credit card lenders according to annual lend

ing reports required by the Community Reinvestment Act CRA Provident also holds the number two

position in overall deposits in our legacy markets as our extended hours convenient locations electronic

banking online bill payment and wide range of services supporting our deposit products make Provident

an attractive alternative to other banks Most impoitant we not only have the products that enable us to

compete effectively against money center banks but also the people who can deliver them with attentive

personalized service

While many banks retrenched during the fiscal year while managing their own financial issues we continued

to grow During the yeai we opened new branch office in Nyack adding to our strong presene in

Rockland County and we bolstered our lending staff and service capabilities throughout our legacy market

Continuing our successful expansion into Westchester County we opened third commercial lending

office in Yonkers Strengthening our capabilities we nearly doubled the number of lenders in our

Westchester market hiring top notch lenders who know the area and dedicated our banks most senior

lender to developing relationships in the region Our experienced Corporate Services Group also works

Piovicieit Nw York Bncorp



directly with oui commercial lenders to develop and maintain islationships helping us attract commer

cial customs rs fiom other banks seeking relationship banking fiom reliable attentive sour

In fiscal 2010 we continued investing in our infrastructure to enhance our dedication to service while

improv ng our opeiations and efficiencies We seamlessly teplaced and cnhanced our platform sales sys

tom including our moitgage origination system to provide greatoi ease of operation and faster more ac ii

rate customer service We improved our sales tracking incentive and sei viLe excellence training and took

greater advantage of our marketing database system to more effectively identify sales opportunities In

addition our corporate cash management lnernet banking blI pay systems and remote electionic

deposit product saw healthy growth and continued to attract customers

While the economy recovery has remained slow believe we are in better position today than we were

yeai ago and we are starting to see early signs of economic improvement As consumers and businesses

in our market rega confidence we stand ready to take advantage of our market position with the people

pioducts and capital to grow and dtive our company forward With our proven infiastructure and disci

plined approach to bankirtg we believe we are well positioned whether for rising interest rates regula

tory changes or new market opportunities

Building on our strong foundation we will continue to seek ways to deepen our customer ccl sti nships

and enhance out services as we work to maximize value for both our customers and shareholders

Sincerely

Ii

George Strayton

Pres/dent and C/irs Officer
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leader in our marketplace customers turn to Provident

for the personal attention of local community bank

with
sophisticated banking products and services of

larger financial services provider
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Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will

be held at the Pearl River Hilton 500

Veterans Memorial Drive Pearl River New
York on February 17 2011 at 1100a.m

Stock Listing

The Companys common stock is listed on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market under

the symbol PBNY

Corporate Counsel

Arnold Porter

555 Twelfth Street NW
Washington D.C 20004-1206

Annual Report on Form 10-K

For more detailed financial information

refer to the Form 10-K copy of the

Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended September 30 2010 is included

herein and will be furnished without charge

to shareholders upon written request to

Manager of Shareholder Relations

Provident New York Bancorp
400 Rella Boulevard P0 Box 600

Montebello New York 10901 or call

845.369.8040

Independent Auditor

Crowe Horwath

354 Eisenhower Parkway Plaza

Livingston NJ 07039-1027

Transfer Agent and
Registrar

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford New Jersey 07016-3572

If you have any questions concerning

your shareholder account call our trans
fer agent noted above at 800.368.5948

This is the number to call if you require

change of address records or informa

tion about lost certificates or dividend

checks

Dividend Reinvestment Plan DRIP
Provident New York Bancorp offers share

holders of PBNY common stock Dividend

Reinvestment Plan DRIP To receive pro

spectus that describes the DRIP or to regis

ter to participate please contact our DRIP

plan administrator Registrar and Transfer

Company at 800.368.5948 or online at

www.rtco.com

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains statements

about the future that are forward-looking

statements for purposes of applicable

securities laws Forward-looking state

ments are subject to numerous assump
tions risks and uncertainties Actual

results could differ materially from those

anticipated in forward-looking state

ments Please refer to the section of the

attached Form 10-K
relating to Cautionary

Statement Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements for important information

relating to forward-looking statements



Provident Bank Corporate Office

Commercial Lending Group

Provident Municipal Bank

400 Rella Boulevard

P.O Box 600

Montebello NY 10901

Phone 845.369.8040

Fax 845.369.8255

Customer Care Center 845.369.8551

Hudson Valley Investment Advisors LLC

117 Grand Street Suite 201

RO Box 268

Goshen NY 10924

845.294.6127

Hardenburgh Abstract Company Inc

12 Scotchtown Avenue

Goshen NY 10924

845.294.5085

www.providentban.com

Provident Bank

Member FDIC

EQUAL HOLLIES

LENDER

Listed on the NASDAq Global Select Market under the symbol PBNY
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